STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
4/17/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the agenda for April 17, 2018.




4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Minutes for March 20, 2018.
5. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures including 020 Computer Workstation; 021 Outside Software-Sharing; 022
PC Care and Computer Equipment; 023 Misuse of IT Resources; 024 Privacy of
County IT Resources; 025 Excessive Use of IT Resources; 026 Disposal of IT
Equipment; 027 Reporting, Suspensions, and Investigations; 028 Removal and
Restriction of Access to Network; and associated request forms; and creating Policies
029 IT Service Request and 030 Network Use and Security.

Il For possible action, approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report.
III For possible action, approval of Treasurer's Report for March 2018.

IV For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $700,133.54 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $212,735.43.

V  For possible action, approval of Buisness License First Readings:
A. WESTERN OILFIELD SUPPLY CO - Contractor / 3404 State Rd ~ Bakersfield,
CA
B. RAM ENTERPRISES, INC - General / 1225 West Main St ~ Elko, NV
C. NORTHERN NEVADA ENTERPRISES - Contractor / 4865 Joule St ~ Reno, NV
D. T.F.ROOF SERVICE INC - Contractor / 1250 Ridgeway ~ Reno, NV
E. BLACKTOP PAVING - General / 4917 West Lake Blvd ~ Homewood, CA
F. HIKARI CO., LTD - General / 418-4 Minaminoda ~ Ehime, JP
G. CORESTATES, INC - General / 3039 Premiere ~ Duluth, GA
H. SOUTHERN DESIGN SERVICES INC - General / 155 Tradd St ~ Spartanburg,
SC
I. JASON CHARLETON - General / 2190 Olympic Cr ~ Reno, NV
J. LEADEC BV & CO. KG - General / 11 Meitnerstrasse ~ Stuttgart, DE
K. TEC EQUIPMENT, INC - General / 1955 E. Greg St ~ Sparks, NV
L. TDA ENTERPRISES, INC - Contractor / 20355 Birdsong Ln ~ Bend, OR
M. Y SAFETY SOLUTIONS LLC - General / 446 E. Pasture Canyon Dr ~ San Tan
Valley, AZ

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Consideration and possible approval of inter-local agreement with The Nevada
Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway for the provision of the
financial, auditing and administrative services.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of interlocal agreement with Lyon County & Mineral County Sheriff's
Office for emergency response services.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Contract to Replace Roofing at Station 71.
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):

Review of the 3rd Quarter 2018 Unaudited Budget to Actual Review.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Action on Policy No. 008 Agenda requests for Board of County Commissioners'
meetings.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License & Cabaret License - Virginia City Brewery
& Taphouse - 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing

business license.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License - Firehouse BBQ - 171 S C St., Virginia
City, NV 89440 - Applicant is Rich Connell.

ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LICENSING BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for Gaming License - Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel & Recharge
Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarrain, NV. Business operations 6595 S Jones, Las Vegas,
NV 89118. Applicant name is Steven Arcana.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




20.

21.

22.

23.

Second reading for General Business License - Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel &
Recharge Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV. Business operations 6595 S Jones, Las
Vegas, NV 89118. Applicant is Steven Arcana.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for General Business License - Rockwell Security, LLC. 1555 E Lincoln
Way, Sparks, NV 89434. Unarmed uniformed security officers.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for General Business License - Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse - 62
N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Commissioner signature requested on the Nevada State Liquor License Application
for the Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business License Second Readings:

A.ESS.I, LLC - Contractor / 1400 W. Shady Grove ~ Grand Prairie, TX

B. PINNACLE GRINDING AND GROOVING LLC - Contractor / 272 Hill St ~ Reno,
NV

C.SWITCH, LTD - General / 240 E. Sydney ~ McCarren, NV

D. TEKLUS CONSTRUCTION. LLC -~ Contractor / 250 De Wick Ct ~ Sparks, NV

E. SPRUCE, LLC - General / 9604 Prototype Ct ~ Reno, NV

F. HOLTZ CONSUTTING GROUP LLC - General / 4770 S. Dragoon Dr ~ Chandler,
AZ

G. ANNIE TAUTZ - General / 5625 De Ponti Dr ~ Orangevale, CA

H. RIDGEVIEW INVESTMENTS P.T. LLC - General / 2573 Shirley Lake Ct ~ Reno,
NV

I. PETRONIK AUTOMATIONA INC - General / 7900 N. Sam Houston Pkwy ~
Houston, TX

J. BREX EQUIPMENT LLC - General / 2600 E. Mustang Rd ~ Sparks, NV

K. FP&C CONSUTLANTS KC, LLC- General / 1330 Burlington St ~ North Kansa
City, MO

L. KOMATSU EQUIPMENT COMPANY - General / 900 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV
M. PURCELL TIRE NW, INC - General / 1250 E. 6th St ~ Reno, NV

N. EVANS COMPONENETS, INC - General / 7606 SW. Bridgeport Rd ~ Portland,
OR

O. ONQGLOBAL CX - General / 2602 Alessandro Ct ~ Sparks, NV

P. RELIANCE ENGINEERING LLC - Contractor / 490 Sunshine Ln ~ Reno, NV

Q. NEVADA CHILLER AND BOILER, INC - Contractor / 415 8th St ~ Hawthorne,
NV




24.

CORRESPONDENCE:

Letter from Gregg Hess and Angelo Petrini regarding damge to the Ponderosa Mine
Tour.

25. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
26. ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family / parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or

letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture




Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 4/11/2018; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By i{{} Dl J@( d W

Vanessa'Ste};ft_gns Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetinvg‘ 'd‘afe: April 17,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

:—d

Title: Approval of the minutes for March 20, 2018.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

w

. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

>

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

w

Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

( gi@ / Department Head Department Name: Clerk
4 /i " County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District Attorney Anne Langer, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Security Director Melanie Keener, Recorder Jen Chapman,
Planning Director/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, IT Director James Deane, Project
Manager Mike Northan, Tourism Director Deny Dotson, Outside Counsel Robert Morris,
Undersheriff Tony Dosen, Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo, Virginia City Senior Center Director
Stacey Gilbert

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for March 20, 2018

County Manager Whitten requested the following changes: Move Item 31 to be heard after Item 7,
Ttem #30 to be heard before Item #25. Correct error on #35 Closed Session agenda: Item II, the word
“fired” should be “hired”.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for March 20, 2018 with changes noted, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for January 16, 2018.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Minutes for January 16, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for February 20, 2018.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Minutes for February 20, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,104,300.09 and accounts payable
claims in the amount of $926,752.20.

I For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. NIKKE MACHINE MANUFACTURING CORP - Contractor / Hyogo, Japan

B. KORBIN CONRAD, DBA: TOP DOG CARPET CLEANING - Home Business /210 5”0" ~ VC, NV
C. WHITE DAISY DESIGNS, LLC - General / 160 C St ~ Virginia City, NV

D. SABER ENGINEERING, INC - General / 5421 Kietzke Ln ~ Reno, NV

E. FLUX RESOUCES LLC - General / 2100 SW River Pkwy ~ Portland, OR

F. CGS MULE, LLC - General / 680 E Glendale Ave ~ Sparks, NV

G. AUTOMATION & CONTROL CONCEPTS, INC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV
H. PRECISION AIR BALANCING CO, INC- General / 1240 N. Jefferson St ~ Anaheim, CA
1. TRAVELERS ALLIANCE GROUP - General / 6775 Engle Rd ~ Middleburg Heights, OH
J. VICTORY WOODWORKS, INC - Contractor / 3401 Kresge Ln ~ Sparks, NV

K. APEX ANODIZING (NEW), INC - General / 280 B Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV

L. ATKINS NORTH AMERICAN, INC - General / 10509 Professional Cr ~ Reno, NV
M. RAGLEN SYSTEM BALANCE, INC - Contractor / 1121 University Terrace ~ Reno, NV
N. DEBBIE TAYLOR - General / 9910 Matterhorn BLVD ~ Reno, NV

O. EUROSOFT-CONTROL LLC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV

P. OCS GROUP LLC - General / 401 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV

Q. JEOL USA, INC - General / 11 Dearborn Rd ~ Peabody, MA

R. ADF INTERNATINAL INC - Contractor / 1401 N. University Dr ~ Coral Springs, FL

S. EDEN HOSPICE AT CARSON CITY - General / 4601 NE 77th ~ Vancouver, WA

T. W.W. GRAINGER, INC - General / 100 Grainger ~ Lake Forest, IL

U. VINNIE'S ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 1773 Walnut Dr ~ Fernley, NV

V. NORTH BEND EQUIPMENT - General / 7453 Empire Dr ~ Florence, KY

W. PIPEWORKS PLLUMBING & HEATING INC - Contractor / 550 E. Plumb Ln ~ Reno, NV

2




X. VIRGINIA CITY LODGING.COM - General / 74 S. “C” St ~ Virginia City, NV

Y. FUNDIN PUMP & WELL SERVICE LLC - Contractor / 4030 Eastlake Blvd ~ Washoe Valley, NV
Z. MARSH CREEK, LLC - Contractor / 2000 E. 88th Ave ~ Anchorage,

AA. ORBIS TECH SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / 1215 Kleppe Ln ~ Sparks, NV

BB. ALPHA OMEGA MECHANICAL LLC - Contractor / 135 Coney Island Dr ~ Sparks, NV

CC. TA OPERATING LLC, DBA: TRAVEL CNTRS OF AMERICA-General/24601 Cntr Ridge
~Westlake, OH

DD. GEORGE DELONG CONSTRUCTION INC - Contractor / 833 E. Fourth St ~ Winnemucca, NV
EE. SAGE RIVER DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 9460 Double R Blvd ~ Reno, NV

FF. VIEGA LLC - General / 12303 Airport Way ~ Broomfield, CO

GG. TIMELY TESTING, LTD - General / 8725 Technology Way ~ Reno, NV

HH. HOTATECH, INC - General / 15348 Valley Blvd ~ City of Industry, CA

II. MARK STAFFORD REAL ESTATE APPRAISER - General / 685 Sienna Park Ct ~ Reno, NV

JJ. DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS - General / 375 Beale St ~ San Francisco, CA

KK. EVOLVED K9 TRAINING LLC - Home Business / 1537 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV

III For possible action, approval of first reading general license- Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse at
62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

IV For possible action, approval of first reading for General Business License name change -
Firehouse BBQ, name change to Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

V For possible action, approval of Storey County to assume original Pipers Opera House elevator
contract with OTIS United Technologies.

V1 For possible action, approval of Treasurer's Report for February 2018.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda for March 20, 2018, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #18-483 authorizing staff to
negotiate with the developers for the formation of Storey County Special Assessment District No. 01
(Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) to provide a portion of the funds needed for the construction of an
effluent water line. Also attached are draft forms of a propose Expense Reimbursement Agreement
and a Deposit Agreement for review and possible approval of the forms.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

County Manager Whitten presented this item and introduced the County’s financial advisor Marty
Johnson and Kendra Follett, bond counsel. Whether or not this was going to be a tax increment area
has been previously discussed. The Commission approved special assessment district guidelines.
This project continues to go through structural design reviews. Approval of this item does not bind
the County to do a Special Assessment District or Special Improvement District. This item allows the

3




County to tell the developer if they want to go any further, this Resolution paves the way for (the
developer) to deposit $175,000 allowing the County to recoup all expenses to date for Mr. Johnson
and Ms. Follett. It also provides for procurement of services for an assessment engineer - Farr West
Engineering, as well as a special appraiser - Mark Stafford. The developer is in agreement. The funds
will be deposited with the County and the County will pay from those funds.

Mr. Whitten read the Resolution title: Resolution No. 18-483. A Resolution Authorizing Staff to
Negotiate with the Developer for the Formation of Storey County, Nevada, Special Assessment
District No. 01 (Tahoe Regional Industrial Center); and providing the effective date.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll, Gold Hill Resident: Requests clarification. Switch, collectively, is identified on the
Expense Agreement as the developer who is the owner, or controls the owners of all property
proposed to be assessed. Does this mean Switch has power of attorney over all companies affected in
this assessment district?

Mr. Whitten: Would say no.
Mr. Toll suggests tweeking or correcting the language to clarify.

Ms. Follett: Was instructed to use Switch as the developer and does not know if that will change.
This is draft form of the Expense Agreement. The Expense Agreement states whoever it is amongst
the developer(s) selected, that they are obligated to pay these expenses.

Mr. Toll: Section 5, Costs and Expenses, is ambiguous implying that this entity (Switch or someone
else) will be billed. Other language suggests that the (County) will get $175,000 to be applied, as
opposed to being billed, for in-house hours. If more than the $175,000 is needed, will that be asked
for as opposed to billing?

Mr. Whitten: Absolutely. Time put in by staff or fixed overhead costs are not billed. These costs fall
under economic development. If someone is hired, or there is overtime, and that amount is not there
- no work will be done until the amount is replenished. Section 5 pertains mostly to staff time.

Mr. Toll: There is language suggesting the County may or may not issue bonds for this project.
Suggested the Commission enable a Board per Senate Bill 462 providing the taxpayers and the
County with transparency and oversight of the GID.

Chairman McBride: This can be looked at in the future, this item is still in its infancy.

Mr. Toll encourages any bonds that are issued to have Storey County taxpayers be “dead last” in
responsibility.




Motion: 1, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve Resolution 18-483 authorizing the staff to
negotiate with the developers of the formation of the Storey County Special Assessment District No.
01 Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center and move to approve the forms of the Deposit Agreement and the
Preliminary Expense Reimbursement Agreement, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2

31. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2018-008 request by the applicant
Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the allowed
3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and approximately 59 feet in
height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57.

Planner, Kathy Canfield: This is a proposed, new hotel in TRIC. Zoning is 12, Heavy Industrial, but
this property is designated commercial per the Development Agreement and follows Commercial
Zoning. Commercial zoning has height restriction of 45 feet. This project is requesting height of 59
feet - a four storey building. Staff supports this request. Actual roof height is 48 feet, the parapet
creates the additional height to 59 feet.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: Included in Conditions of Approval, is compliance with the
Fire District requirements, including the ladder-truck reimbursement consortium coming under the
Government Services Agreement with Tesla wherein Tesla agreed to reimburse the Fire District for
the cost of a truck. If another building comes in in excess of 55 feet, Tesla’s obligation for
reimbursement is reduced by 50%. Whether or not the Fire District can impose a 50% increase on this
applicant is questionable and will probably be decided at the Fire District level. The only portion of
this building over 55 feet is the parapet. Tesla has been contacted but a response has not been
received.

Public Comment:
None

Ms. Canfield read the Findings:

(1)  This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the applicant Evergreen
Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond the
allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and
approximately 59 feet in height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive,
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 005-041-57;

(2)  The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this staff
report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit;

(3)  The subject property is located within an existing mixed use industrial and commercial
neighborhood in the McCarran area of Storey County. The zoning is based on the 1999
Storey County Zoning Ordinance which identifies this property as I-2 Heavy
Industrial. The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center has identified this parcel as eligible for
commercial uses as allowed by the Development Agreement and as such follows the

5




zoning requirements for Commercial zoning. The additional height for this structure is
consistent with what would be permitted for adjacent industrial land uses.

(4)  Granting of the Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in Section 4
of this report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case adversely affect to
a material degree the health or safety of persons/ property in the neighborhood of the
subject property. The project is expected to meet the safety and health requirements for
the subject area. The use will also be subject to building and fire plan review in order to
ensure compliance with federal, state and other codes;

®) The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards
on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal,
state and county regulations;

(6) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 I-2 Heavy
Industrial, 17.28 Commercial, and 17.62 Special Uses.

(7) Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular
case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons working in the
neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to
the public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the
neighborhood or area of the subject property.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-008, a request by the
applicant Evergreen Reno Industrial Park, LLC, to construct a hotel with additional height beyond
the allowed 3 stories or 45 feet in height. The proposed hotel will be four stories and approximately
59 feet in height. The subject property is located at 691 Britain Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-041-57, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:
o The newest corrections officer, Jacob Smiley, recently graduated from the Academy.
e Longtime reserve, Peter Thomas, resigned his position.
o Karen Smith, CERT member, recently passed away.
e Body cameras have been received and will be up and running in the near future.

Shaun Griffin, for Community Chest:
e The certificate of occupancy has been issued for the new building. Itis beautiful.
o This will be a wonderful public space for performance, recreation, and youth programs.
o All funds were raised privately and it is paid for - no debt whatsoever. This is due in large
part to the Pennington Foundation.
s The grand opening will be held June 1st from 5pm to 7pm. The entire community is invited to
attend.




Fire Chief Jeff Nevin:
o The fuels crew is working along Geiger Grade and in Six Mile Canyon cleaning up debris and
burning slash. This work is covered by a grant from the State.
e Longtime resident and volunteer fireman, Ken Lucich, passed away. Ken had a 30 year career
with the Nevada Division of Forestry.
e A fire department employee recently completed paramedic school - a 14 month process. He
was at the top of the class throughout the training.

Project Manager Mike Northan:
Update on 2017 storm damage:
e Station 71 and Community Development buildings are 95% complete.
e Asbestos abatement continues at Station 72.
e Old ceiling tiles have been removed and lights have been taken down in the Clerk’s Office
which is being prepped for plaster work and then paint.
« Wallpaper is being removed from Judges’ chambers. New plaster and wallpaper will be
installed.
« Work on the Courthouse roof has been delayed because of weather. Temporary patches have
been holding through the last few weather events.

Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo:
o Two new inspectors have been hired - one for building and one for fire. They are desperately
needed as it is very busy in TRL

Wastewater Project Coordinator Mike Nevin:
 Mr. Nevin presented and described a slide show of photos taken in various locations of the on-
going project. Photos show old sewer pipes in various states of disrepair and condition, as well
as work that has been completed to date.
o There was a recent archaeological shutdown on 1 Street.
o The project is at 47% in week 25, with 210 days left to substantial completion.
« 183 service connections have been completed.

Mzr. Whitten commented that some of the more difficult areas have been in and near Tunnel 7 and the
Savage Mine locations.

Mr. Nevin: North of Taylor Street there was significant framework and two rock walls of the tunnel.
After hitting the wall, work was shifted to avoid disturbing it. Documentation was made regarding
the remains of the wall.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:

o Despite 2 feet of snow, the St. Patrick’s Day/Rocky Mountain Oyster Festival was a success
with about two-thirds of the normal attendance. The parade was cancelled due to safety and
parking concerns.

¢ Regularly scheduled tours will begin at Pipers Opera House on April 5th,

e The VCTC hired a new employee at the Visitor Center, Lisa Mcllwee.

¢ The V&T Rail Commission is close to naming a new General Manager and getting some
marketing done.




e Travel Nevada, RAD, Carson Valley Visitors Authority, RCVA, and the VCTC, got together
putting out a pitch to bloggers - writers and newspaper guys. A group of them came to
Virginia City and they were invited to be judges at the oyster fry.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:
o Free dump events will be held the first three weekends in April at the Lockwood landfill and
at the Virginia City Waste Management transfer station on May 3, 4, and 5. These events are
open to residential customers only.

Commissioner Gilman asked if there was an update regarding installation of the playground
equipment delivered to Louise Peri Park.

Jason Weizrbicki’s response from the audience was inaudible.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
e Announced that Interim Public Works Director, Jason Weizrbicki, has been hired as Public
Works Director.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

e The County is in open enrollment for employee health benefits. We are working diligently
with LP Insurance and Hometown Health to address the current insurance situation with the
experience rating. Initially there was going to be a 35% increase. Negotiations and
modifications of the planned got this down to 23%. Negotiations continue to get this down.
This will happen by raising deductibles and out-of-pocket expenses. A 30-35% increase is not
acceptable and cannot be put on the taxpayers. Currently open enrollment dates are April 4th
and 6%,

e AT&T is working on the mono-pine in the Highlands. By spring, there should be 12 antennas
on the mono-pine with service to the Highlands. AT&T is also working with the County’s
team to provide service in Virginia City.

o Planner Kathy Canfield is working with businesses and the community on updating the sign
ordinance. This is the time for businesses to express what they want and do not want.

River District RSVP Field Representative Louise Pena:
¢ Thanks to Cherie Nevin for assistance in getting the van up and running. Once the van is
running people will come aboard. There is a huge need to help the seniors.
e Ms. Pena would like to get the Commissioners together at the Senior Center in honor of
National Service Recognition Day.
e Storey County owns the van which enables Ms. Pena and her husband have set up a safety
training for potential residents to drive the van. A plan for safety and driving will help the

insurance.
e April 31 is National Service Recognition Day. A celebration will be held at the Senior Center
in Virginia City.
County Manager Pat Whitten:
e Anupdate on the new Courthouse phone system will be given at the next Commission
meeting.

« County representatives attended the soft-opening at Studio 6 in TRL
8




o Update from Gary Hames:

o Community Development has been able to catch up on permits this week - the calm
before the storm. There are many permits coming forward for work being done
companies such as Fulcrum, Hampton, Conoco, and the Hilton project.

o Community Development is also working with the Secretary of State’s Office on its
Silver Flume - the State’s consolidated business license program at no cost to the
County. The State’s site will enable the State and the County to process business
licenses at the same time.

o 348 building permits have been issued this year to date - last year at this time there
were 242,

o Community Development employees are scheduled for cross-training in the next few
weeks.

e Sewer work will begin next week on B Street. This will be quite intrusive due to the “tight
quarters”. Employees, as well as residents, will be sharing the parking lot so parking will be
limited.

e Multiple calls have been received regarding the traffic light in TRI. There is a delay in
construction due to supply/ material issues that are not available. Construction that was to
start in March is now set to start in May and end in July. NDOT is trying to implement traffic
monitoring and help in the meantime.

9. BOARD COMMENT (No action-No Public Comment):
Vice Chairman McGuffey:
e The Commissioners were unable to attend the annual NACO conference in Washington DC
due to weather events back east.
o Despite weather conditions, the Oyster Festival was a great success. There were a few new
winners this years. Hats off to NDOT, the County, and Mike Nevin for clearing the roads.

Chairman McBride:
o Longtime resident and Pipers Opera House docent, Rae Maeder, passed away.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appoint Storey County representative to the Carson
Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Carson River Watershed Committee as a voting member.

Carson Water Subconservancy District representative Ed James explained the goal of the CWSD,
working cooperatively making the watershed a better place for the community and environment.

Mr. Osborne has attended CWSD Board meetings for years. The Board would like to see a Storey
County representative as an official Watershed Committee voting member. Any plans the CWSD
comes up with are brought to the County to see if the County wants to implement the plan(s) or not.

Public Comment:
None

County Manager Whitten: Staff recommends Austin Osborne as the County’s representative,

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I, County Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to
appoint Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne to represent Storey County as a

9




voting member on the Carson Water Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Carson River
Watershed Committee for the remainder of the 2018 calendar year, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to sign contract between
Storey County and the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) in the amount of $15,000 in
the 2018-19 fiscal year to reimburse the CWSD for development of the Mark Twain drainage area
master plan identifying and quantifying the flood hazard risk in the Mark Twain Estates and
immediate surronding area.

Austin Osborne presented this item which has been discussed in the past. Thisis a $300,000 master
plan study of flood plain area in Mark Twain Estates and the surrounding area mostly funded by
FEMA, and managed and funded through the CWSD. There an overage of approximately $37,000
over what FEMA is providing. This overage amount will be split between Lyon and Storey counties
- 60% and 40% respectively. This item is to approve Storey County’s share of the $37,000.00.

Mr. James discussed the need for this study and plan.

Mr. Osborne: There will be a public meeting/workshop on April 26t at the Mark Twain Community
Center providing the public the opportunity to review maps and meet the developer, J.D. Fuller, and
Mr. James.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to authorize
the County Manager to sign contract between Storey County and the Carson Water Subconservancy
District (CWSD) in the amount of $15,000 in the 2018-19 fiscal year to reimburse the CSWD for
development of the Mark Twain drainage area master plan identifying and quantifying the flood
hazard risk in the Mark Twain Estates and immediate surrounding area, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. PUBLIC HEARING (No Action): Public hearing on an Interfund Loan for the Storey County 5
Mile Water Line project from the General Fund to the Water System Fund in the amount of
$2,126,000.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin stated that Storey County secured USDA loan funds for
$2,126,000 to finance construction of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project. The Letter of
Conditions requires the County to seek interim financing for construction activities. Approval of the
Interfund Loan from the General Fund to the Water Fund for construction financing is being sought.
The Interfund loan will save interest costs that would be incurred if commercial interim financing
was used. The Interfund loan must be repaid within one year of the date it is made. Construction
will be about 8 months and when complete the permanent loan with USDA will come into place.

10




Ms. Nevin explained there are a few conditions still being worked on including a right-of-way grant
from the BLM.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) Rural Development Loan Resolution for the Financing of the Storey County 5 Mile Water
Line Project.

Ms. Nevin: All conditions outlined in the USDA Letter of Intent must be met prior to USDA Rural
Development authorizing the County to go out to bid and to proceed with construction.
Construction should begin in June 2018. One of the conditions is the Loan Resolution before the
Commission. Repayment of the loan is scheduled over 40 years at a very low interest rate of 1.375%.
The budget is contained in the conditions. Ms. Nevin reviewed the costs.

Chair McBride: How many linear feet is the water line?
Mike Nevin: About three miles.

Mr. Whitten: Ames Construction has a “ton” of equipment in town currently. The project is out to
bid at this time and it is hoped Ames will bid which would help the County with mobilization and
de-mobilization costs.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development
Loan Resolution for the financing of the Storey County 5 Mile Water Line Project, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #18-484 authorizing an Interfund
Loan to the Storey County Water Fund from the Storey County General Fund for the Five Mile
Waterline Replacement Project.

Kendra Follett from Sherman & Howard: Strike the language in Resolution Section 4C, and insert:
“the loan will bear an interest rate of 1.4976310% per annum” . Per the Comptroller, this is the local
investment pool rate currently earned with the State. The County is charging itself slightly higher
than what USDA is willing to do.

Chair McBride: Is there a requirement that the County would have to charge interest?

Ms. Follett: There is no requirement.

Mr. Whitten: We are saving the water system money by not having to go out into the interim
financing market. It seems fair to charge the captive water system and that the general fund does not

have to pay or subsidize that. It was agreed to take would the County would earn from the local
government investment pool and use that as the interest rate.

11




Public Comment:
None

Motion: With the change to Section 4C, deleting that no interest will be charged and adding the loan
will bear a 1.4976310% per annum interest rate, I move to approve Resolution #18-484 authorizing an
Interfund Loan to the Storey County Water Fund from the Storey County General Fund for the Five
Mile Waterline Replacement Project, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

Chairman McBride called for recess at 11:47 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:.57AM

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Workshop to review and discuss different performance
evaluation criteria and methods that may be used for evaluating the annual performance of a County
Manager.

Austin Osborne presented this item, a workshop providing direction on evaluating performance ofa
County Manager. This will be lined up with the current job description for County Manager calling
for a review by the Board each year. Mr. Osborne provided and reviewed general criteria for
evaluation of this position as outlined in Enclosure A of this agenda item. Mr. Osborne informed the
Board these are ideas and the Board can provide changes, additions, and direction. Mr. Osborne
reviewed the ICMA (International City/County Manager Association Code of Ethics). These are the
pillars of a good county manager according to the ICMA.

Commissioner Gilman commented that County Manager Whitten has been very involved in helping
address these strategies and where to go with this in the future. Mr. Gilman said he assumes the
appointment of the county manager comes from the Board and is an employee “at will”. Who would
actually interview for this position and also conduct an evaluation?

Mr. Osborne: The three Board members.
Commissioner Gilman: In an open meeting? Is not sure this is the most efficient...

District Attorney Langer: Yes. By statute you (Commission) are his boss and cannot be done in
closed session.

Commissioner Gilman: The interview process with all candidates would be done publicly prior to
hiring? Or is there thought that a department would pre-qualify candidates?

Mr. Osborne: Ultimately evaluation will be done in public meeting. In some counties, each
Commissioner will evaluate the county manager, submit it to Human Resources, and H.R. compiles
the information bringing it to the Board and public for consideration. Some jurisdictions prefer to
bring it to the table then discuss and evaluate on the spot.

Mr. Whitten: Relative to evaluations, appreciates Commissioner Gilman’s concern of having any
subordinate of the county manager be the “gatekeeper”. In some jurisdictions, the Chairman receives

12




input from the other (Commissioners) and then generalizes what the others say. This may not pass
the Open Meeting Law. Maybe the Clerk to the Commission could be appointed- she is not
subordinate - to gather information. The selection could be handled any way the Board wants. Itis
does not mean the County Manager could not make recommendation if the Board requested. A
workshop could be set in a few months to determine how the search would be done.

District Attorney Langer: Agrees with Mr. Whitten.

Commissioner Gilman: These are the items to be discussed at a workshop along with other options.
Criteria is very important - the mechanics of how it will be done is equally important.

Chairman McBride: Likes the format and all of the points in job performance evaluation presented
by Mr. Osborne.

Mr. Osborne: The criteria (in this packet) is not in policy. These are items presented to the Board to
see if (the Board) is comfortable with this being the criteria. If yes, the next step would be that it
would be put into some format - policy, form, or whatever. Direction needs to come from the
Commission on whether to be very structured or not so structured.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Is this process going to be a 360 degree view, including the
county manager’s view of his strengths and weaknesses, accomplishments and areas of
improvement. Input would also come from peers, subordinates, and persons above them. This
feedback is necessary to see performance from all standpoints.

Mr. Osborne: Ms. Barde is right. Right now the Board is being asked what they want. Nothing is
being proposed or recommended.

Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Agrees with Mr. Gilman there should be more transparency in
choosing someone. How the Board and the County Manager interact is important. Recent bonuses
given out without discourse and knowledge of the Board, illustrates something to be careful and
mindful of when looking at evaluation and communication between the overseers and the person
who needs to do his job.

Mr. Osborne: The next step will be to build an outline - the Board can review and comment whether
or not it's going in the right direction.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of administrative policies that give the county
manager either significant job duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are approved
by the board and are followed by staff.

Robert Morse, Outside Counsel: This is a follow up on discussion of the County Manager’s
description and policies that needed some work. Mr. Morris reviewed:
e Revised policy 001: Discusses the purpose and format of the Administrative Policies and
Procedures Manual. Changes have been made to make it more understandable and how
policies are reviewed.

13




« Revised policy 008: Agenda Requests. County Manager Whitten and the Clerk are satisfied
with this policy and it should be adopted by the Board today.

s Revised policy 042: Contracts and Agreements. New text is provided stating that all contracts
must be approved by the Board with few exceptions - exceptions are noted in this policy.

1. All contracts must be reviewed by the District Attorney, the County Manager, and the
Comptroller before consideration by the Board.

2. New text in section D states if a contract has been approved by the Board during the
budget process, it does not have to come back before the Board.

3. New section E sets process for County Manager to approve contracts in emergencies
after review by the District Attorney and Comptroller. This must be put on the next
agenda for Board approval.

4. Section F remains unchanged with a $5,000 limit the County Manager is authorized to
approve and sign.

Chairman McBride questioned the language in Section F regarding change orders that can be signed
by the County Manager, where the amount of 10% of the total bid could be a large sum. The County
Manager has a $5,000 limit on contracts but could sign a change order for $100,000 - shouldn’t this be
$5,000 or 10%, whichever is lesser.

Mr. Morris: This can be done. Change orders are different because there is contract already signed
by the Board. When a contract is approved limits can be set - the Board can say that change orders
over $5,000 must come back to the Board.

Mr. Whitten: Change orders can be to the County’s favor or disfavor - so many are integral. The
Board is cautioned to not set an arbitrarily low number. Probably the change orders should not
exceed the amount of the approved contract.

Mr. Morris: The Board can put limits on change orders - say, any change order over $50,000 goes
back to the Board. Any change order to the County’s benefit does not have to come back. This can be
included in the policy.

Mr. Whitten: This is often included in the contracts.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: When was the last time a decision had to be made on a contract of $5,000
or less?

Mr. Whitten: Feels if it has been allocated in the budget, and the D.A. and Comptroller review it -
there aren’t many $5,000 or less contract - then it can be executed.

Mr. Morris: The policy states nothing prohibits the county manager from having the Board review,
vote on, and sign contracts and change orders, including those items routinely authorized by the
County Manager. The policy does not prohibit the Board from requesting agreements, contracts, or
change orders for vote and/ or review if already signed by the County Manager.

Mr. Whitten: For clarification, a “period” should be added in paragraph F after “...agreements and

contracts that have not been approved by the Board and are valued less than $5,000”. Begin the next
sentence with “Sign change orders on construction projects....”

14




Mr. Morris: This will be done and brought back to the Board.

Chair McBride: Policy 001, paragraph II states the County Manager is responsible for providing a
digital version of the current manual to be on the County’s website. Is this being done?

Mr. Morris: It's already on there - this is not a new obligation.

Mr. Whitter: Note that elected offices - Sheriff and Fire in particular- have their own policies and we
don’t control those.

Commissioner Gilman: Under policy 008, he understood that a County Commissioner may put
something on the agenda that was felt to be important to the community. He believes that the
language in I, Procedure or Policy usurps the power of the Board to place items on the agenda as the
request can be denied.

Mr. Morris; Understands this issue. Under C it says the Board can request an agenda item. Mr.
Morris thinks that a county manager would want to get the request on the agenda because it is
coming from a Board member. The same goes for county staff and public requests. There doesn’t
seem to be any restriction. From a management standpoint, there are some items that are not
appropriate for the agenda and you don’t want people saying “you have to put it on”. Someone
needs to be a “gatekeeper” - in this circumstance it is easier for the County Manager to do this. Ifa
request is denied, the county manager must respond in writing the reasons why. This provides
protection from not having frivolous items.

Commissioner Gilman: Feels the Board has elected powers and responsibility for operating for the
County, and having a non-elected official deciding whether what a Board member submitted should
be heard is not appropriate. The Board is the final decision maker for the County and to deny them
something on an agenda item is not appropriate.

Mr. Morris: Are you suggesting the Board be treated differently than the rest....and the County
Manager would automatically have to put the item on?

Commissioner Gilman: Absolutely. If an elected County board member requested an agenda item to
be heard by the public, it should be put on the agenda.

Mr. Whitten: Pretty sure this is the existing policy - any one Commissioner can ask. Any legal issues
would be discussed, but can’t envision every saying no.

Mr. Morris: Will look at this if the rest of the Board concurs.
Chairman McBride: Has always understood that any Board member can have an item on the agenda.

Mr. Morris: On Voluntary Early Retirement, Comptroller Gallagher was interested in participating in
the calculation of the economic plan showing sufficient money would be saved by an early
retirement. Policy OXI, section 5B, addresses this. Additions can be made stating that the
department head “in conjunction to the Comptroller” will prepare and submit requests, determine
eligibility, and so forth.

15




Mr. Morris: The final policy is 00X, Separation Agreements. This is preliminary and comments from
the Board are requested and would be helpful.

District Attorney Langer: The Voluntary Retirement Programs and the Separation Agreement are
based on different concepts raised during the workshop. Is the Separation Agreement something the
Board is interested in?

Mr. Morris: The idea of the early voluntary retirement is to replace an employee with a higher salary
with one with less salary - which would cover the cost of separation. This policy does not have to be
adopted at this point.

Commissioner Gilman: Is uncomfortable with setting this policy and doesn’t know if it is necessary.
An unusual circumstance can be brought to the Board without setting precedent.

Mr. Whitten: Agrees with Commissioner Gilman.

Chairman McBride: Agrees also. This gives an expectation that someone will get early separation or
something along that line.

Ms. Langer: We're hearing that you are not interested in Separation Agreements. This was a concept
that came up different from the Voluntary Retirement Program and can be removed from the motion.

Chairman McBride: Agrees that this is putting one more layer of bureaucracy in place.

Mr. Whitten: Are the comments directed just at Separation Agreements, or should the Voluntary
Retirement Program be excluded too?

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Was okay with the Voluntary Retirement Program.

Mr. Whitten: Suggests establishing a maximum purchase of $30,000 is questionable and suggests
either raising or limiting the cap. I think it is being over-generous in establishing a 24 month
recapture period when historically it has been 12 months.

Mr. Osborne: The $30,000 could be problematic if a group of people that retire over time, or all at
once - it might be discriminatory for the person that had over 30 years and the PERS buyout ended
up being over $30,000 and would pre-empt that person from the Voluntary Retirement Program,
where persons with lesser buyouts would “scoot on by them”. The Board will consider each of these
- not having a limit will allow the Board to know what is happening in each budget cycle, and not
have to account for inflation and other matters.

Commissioner Gilman: Are we in agreement that we need a cap?

Mr. Whitten: Would not like to see a cap as the scenario put forth by Mr. Osborne is going to trap
some people that you may want to consider. Keep in mind, the focus was on replacing them with
someone at a lower salary and in some cases we haven't replaced. Since the Board has to publicly
approve every action under this program, why have a cap. Would like a one year recapture not two.
Maybe set a target of one year, but not make it policy.

16




Commissioner Gilman: When a cap is set, wouldn’t a person be looking for the maximum cap?

Mr. Osborne: When an employee wants to retire, PERS will come up with what the payment is for
that person to leave at that time as opposed to one more year. It could be $20,000 to $40,000
depending on the length of time the person has been with the organization.

Mr. Whitten: Maybe the cap shouldn’t be a dollar amount, but a period of time.

Chairman McBride: There may be a better rate of return with a Deferred Compensation package than
with PERS. '

Mr. Whitten: Would recommend one year of what PERS is calculated to be would be the cap no
matter where it gets funded or the dollar amount, subject to approval.

Mr. Osborne: Will work with Mr. Morris on structural language and wording of this policy.
Ms. Langer: Items placed on the agenda need to be legal.
Commissioner Gilman: Is concerned with agenda and what legal criteria will be used.

Mr. Whitten: There is current policy regarding legalities. We should trust the system and keep the
existing language.

Ms. Langer recommends continuing 008 to make sure everyone is on the same page.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the adoption of the following policies 001, 002, 042 - with addition of a
period separating $5,000 and the 10% change orders, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: I make a motion to continue policies 0XI and 008 to April 17, 2018, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: I make a motion to eliminate policy 00X, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of Auditor
Recommendations pertaining to Storey County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2017.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed that Storey County Audit Report for year ended June 30, 2017,
the first audit by the firm of DiPietro and Thornton.

17




As noted in the audit report, three special revenue funds and two enterprise funds had expenditures
exceeding appropriations. The funds are:
e Virginia City Tourism Special Revenue Fund: The VCTC has been notified that expenditures
will be monitored on a quarterly basis.
e Mutual Aid Special Revenue Fund: Continued evaluation will be done to prevent future over-
appropriations.
e Emergency Mitigation Special Revenue Fund: This fund will be monitored as significant
events occur.
e Water System Enterprise Fund: Excess expenditures due to addition of pension requirements.
In the future, auditor will move this amount out of operating expenses.
e Virginia Divide Sewer Special Revenue Fund: Also, excess expenditures due to addition of
pension requirements. In the future, auditor will move this amount out of operating expenses.
There was also a depreciation expense error due to new infrastructure being depreciated.
e In addition, the District Court expenses were over due to incorrect input of information.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed each of the above and noted what would be done in the future to control
overages and augmentations. The auditor also made recommendations regarding internal control
and how prior year’s recommendations were handled.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the recommended actions pertaining to the auditors
recommendations for the Audit Report Period ended June 30, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection of an Auditor for Storey County for the year
ended June 30, 2018.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher recommended DiPietro and Thornton as auditor for Storey County.
They did an excellent job for the year ended 2017.

Mr. Whitten: Agrees with Mr. Gallagher. DiPietro and Thornton did a great job under difficult
circumstances.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Under NRS 354.624, Storey County Commissioners due hereby select DiPiertro & Thornton,
CPA, Ltd., as the auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-283 an ordinance
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone to
restrict "adult uses" with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10 Definitions to amend definitions and

18




add definitions for adult uses including "adult retail", "adult bookstore", and "adult motion picture
theatre" uses, and other properly related matters. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person
may complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement supporting or opposing
the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

Mr. Osborne said this item has been previously discussed, the Planning Commission has reviewed,
discussed and provided unanimous approval of recommendation of its Board.

Commissioner Gilman questioned whether or not this (Ordinance) lines up with Historic District
rules.

Mr. Osborne: This ordinance pertains to a C (commercial) zone, allowing up to 20%, with a Special
Use Permit, to display adult merchandise in a back room. The commercial/residential zone prohibits
this. Mr. Osborne is not aware of the Comstock Historic Commission requirements for adult uses
and has not heard of anything that would regulate uses inside buildings. The commercial/ residential
zone that applies to C Street, does prohibit adult uses. What is being presented here, just makes a
clarification of the definitions of adult uses. If requested to look at the commercial/residential zone
for these uses, the Comstock Historic District would be contacted, and a change would have to be
made to the C/R zone.

Public Comment:
None

Mr. Osborne read the title: Ordinance No. 18-283, an ordinance amending Storey County Code Title
17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use
permit, and Chapter 17.10 Definitions to amend definitions and add definitions for adult uses
including “adult retail”, “adult bookstore”, and “adult motion picture theatre” uses, and other
properly related matters.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-283, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.28 C Commercial
Zone to restrict “adult uses” with a special use permit, and Chapter 17.10 Definitions to amend
definitions and add definitions for adult uses including “adult retail”, “adult bookstore”, and “adult
motion picture theatre” uses, and other properly related matters, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 18-284 amending provisions of
the transient lodging tax provisions of Storey County Code chapter 3.60 to provide for the maximum
stay to which the tax applies, to clarify the disposition of the revenues of the tax, providing a route
for review of a transient lodging tax audit and other matters properly relating thereto.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

19




Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: This Ordinance came about when it looked like some hotels
at TRI Center might be extended-stay hotels and whether or not there would be a loss of transient tax
revenue if this were to happen.
e TRIC is zoned I-2 which allows up to 10% commercial zone, providing for hotels/ motels,
which are described as transient, lodging facilities.
e This ordinance increases the length of stay from 28 days to less than 30 days. Stays longer than
30 days are subject to the Landlord and Tenant Act. Such use is not allowed in TRIC pursuant
to zoning ordinance.
e Hotels/motels in TRI that have tenants for more than 30 days may have to have tenants re-
register, and change room number - it's up to the hotels to figure this out.
e Enforcement will be through the audit process authorized by the Transient Lodging Tax
Ordinance.
e A provision in the zoning ordinance allowing stay of up to 180 days outside of TRIC, has been
removed.
e This ordinance does not raise or change the tax.

Mr. Loomis said the VCTC has the authority to audit.
Mr. Whitten: Will the County be able to collect transient lodging tax on extended stays in TRI?

Mr. Loomis: Yes. The hotel/motels will have to avoid a landlord/tenant situation with guests - re-
registering guests after 29 days, having them change rooms. This will start a new hotel/ guest
relationship. This also applies outside of TRI.

Mr. Whitten requested that accommodation be made for long-term stay in an RV park, so an RV does
not have to be moved - but the County does not forego transient lodging tax.

Mr. Loomis: It will be up to the property owner as to how to comply.

Chair McBride: Off-season, some hotels in town rent out rooms long-term. It would be up to the
VCTC to audit to insure transient lodging tax is being collected for long-term guests.

Public Comment:

Sam Toll: Commented there are seven people who claim the Mustang Ranch as their residence and
assumes these people have a relationship/contract with the landlord allowing them to stay. Does the
ordinance affect the Mustang Ranch and the residents?

Mr. Loomis: The proposed ordinance only says that people are subject to the tax - instead of 28 days
now it will be 30 days. It does not affect landlord/tenant relationships.

Mr. Toll: Under the zoning of the Mustang Ranch, those relationships are not possible. Therefore,
the only relationship would be of a room rental.

Mr. Loomis: Is not familiar with circumstances of people staying at the Mustang Ranch. The
ordinance addresses stays less than 30 days - subject to transient lodging tax, over 30 days is a
landlord/tenant relationship not subject to transient lodging tax. You are talking about a zoning
issue.

20




Mr. Toll: Under zoning, is it appropriate for people to live there? Or are these people renting rooms
subject to the room tax?

Mr. Loomis: This is beyond the scope of what is being discussed.
Chairman McBride: This not an agendized item. We are not discussing a specific business.

Mr. Loomis read the title; Ordinance 18-284, an Ordinance amending provisions of the transient tax
provisions of Storey County Code Chapter 3.60 to provide for the maximum stay to which the tax
applies, to clarify the disposition of the revenues of the tax, providing a route for review of a transient
lodging tax audit and other matters properly relating thereto.

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve the first reading of Ordinance 18-284,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Vice Chairman McGulffey leaves the meeting at 2PM

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Interlocal agreement providing the terms and conditions
for the use of Piper's Opera House by the Storey County School District and the display of historic
personal property within Pipers belonging to the School District.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis: At the previous Board meeting an issue was brought up regarding
what items of personal property in Pipers Opera House belong to the Storey County School District.
The School District has provided an inventory of items belonging to the District. The District makes
no claim on any other personal property in Pipers.

Public Comment: \
Nicole Barde: The sideboard (on the list) has been there forever.

Chairman McBride: That showcase used to be in the Bucket of Blood Saloon - there were a couple in
the Firemens Museum. The question is: were they donated or loaned?

Ms. Barde: It really isn’t known who owns it... Aslong as it stays in Pipers in perpetuity.

Chairman McBride: We just have to go by verbal history without having documentation.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the Interlocal Agreement with Storey County School District
and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

22, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Nevada
Department of Public Safety/State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County Fire Protection District and
Storey County.

Storey County Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo stated there has not been an Interlocal Agreement with
the State Fire Marshal for many years.

21




Fire Chief Jeff Nevin this is a “clean up” of some of the agreements that have existed from year to
year with no changes.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ move to approve Interlocal Agreement between Nevada Department of Public
Safety/State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

23. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Chairman McBride called for recess at 2:02 PM
Meeting reconvened at 2:12 PM

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Nevada
Department of Public Safety/State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County Fire Protection District and
Storey County.

Fire Chief Nevin: This is the same as the previous item- this item is for approval of the Fire Board.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Interlocal Agreement between Nevada Department of Public

Safety /State Fire Marshal Division, Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

25. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading for On-Sale Liquor & Cabaret License for
Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse at 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the
existing business license.

Sheriff Antinoro: This is first reading to add a person to the existing license. Everything checks out
so far and approval is recommended.

Public Comment:

None

Commissioner Gilman disclosed that he owns a liquor license on C Street but does not feel that
would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Chairman McBride also disclosed that he owns a liquor license and cabaret license on C Street but
does not feel that would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

22




Motion: Imove to approve First reading for On-Sale Liquor & Cabaret License for Virginia City
Brewery & Taphouse at 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440 and add Frederic Cline to the existing
business license, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman
McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading for On-sale liquor license Firehouse Grill &
Saloon. 171 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

Sheriff Antinoro: Rich Connell is re-establishing his liquor license for the Firehouse Grill & Saloon.
No problems are anticipated.

Public Comment:

None

Commissioner Gilman disclosed that he owns a liquor license on C Street but does not feel that
would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Chairman McBride also disclosed that he owns a liquor license on C Street but does not feel that
would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Motion: I move to approve the first reading for On-sale liquor license Firehouse Grill & Saloon. 171
S C St., Virginia City, NV, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

28. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is
Stephanie Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV
89440.

Sheriff Antinoro: The owner of the Silver Dollar Saloon recently passed away while in the process of
adding Stephanie Collins to the on-sale liquor license. Nothing in the background would preclude
Ms. Collins from getting this license. Approval of the license is recommended.

Public Comment:
None

Commissioner Gilman disclosed that he owns a liquor license on C Street but does not feel that
would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Chairman McBride also disclosed that he owns a liquor license on C Street but does not feel that
would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Motion: I move to approve Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License. Applicant is Stephanie
Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

29. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
23




30. DISCUSSION POSSIBLE/ACTION: Second reading, General Business License. Applicant is
Stephanie Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV
89440.

Sheriff Antinoro said there is no reason not to grant this General Business License.

Commissioner Gilman disclosed that he has a General Business License on C Street but does not feel
that would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Chairman McBride also disclosed that he has a General Business License on C Street but does not feel
that would preclude him from discussion and vote on this matter.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Imove to approve Second reading, General Business License. Applicant is Stephanie
Collins, business owner of Silver Dollar Saloon located at 15 N C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

32. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business Licenses Second Readings:

A. DESERT BOILERS AND CONTROLS, INC - Contractor / 303 W. Saint Louis Ave ~ Las Vegas,
NV

B. OUTBOUND TECHNOLOGIES INC - General / 30026 Research Dr ~ New Hudson, MI

C. GEORGE & SONS, INC - Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV

D. GREGORY R. ANDERSON, DBA: MOBILE NOTARY SVC’S - General / 785 Joel Way ~ Fallon,
NV

E. CMC TIRE INC - General / 95 Washington St ~ Spokane, WA

F. GREGORY R. CHAPEL, DBA: ONSTREET CONCESSIONS - General / 385 Freeport~ Sparks, NV
G. GILLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1226 Wigwam Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV

H. LEE’S JANITORIAL SERVICES, INC - General / 561 Keystone~ Reno, NV

I. TOP DOG CARPRT CLEANING - Home business / 210 S. O St ~ Virginia City, NV

On behalf of Community Development, Mr. Whitten requested that all items A through I be
| approved.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Imove to approve items A. throughl, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=2)

33. PUBLIC COMMENT:
Sam Toll: Storey County is the one of the 17 counties that does not permit Public Comment at the
beginning of the meeting, restricting it to the end of the meeting. It is in the best interest of the

24




community to put those people first. Regarding zoning issues, per request a list of red-tagged
properties was provided by Community Development who is going to run a couple of people off
their property because they do not live in an approved structure without housing plans. Mr. Toll
suggests that zoning issues be enforced evenly to everyone in the community.

Chair McBride: Public Comment is given at the end of each item. The public can speak on any action
item, not just at the end of the meeting.

Mr. Whitten: During the break, Mr. Whitten asked Mr. Toll if his comments questioning the
zoning/ transient lodging tax pertained to because it was in TRI Center or in general. Mr. Toll
verified he understands that it is not in TRI Center. Mr. Whitten wants the record to reflect that it is
not in TRI Center.

34. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 2:30 P.M.

35. CLOSED SESSION

I. Call to order closed session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with
county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Employees Association/ AFSCME 4041 Comstock Chapter. Discussion will be limited to Appendix A
of the 2016-2019 collective bargaining agreement pertaining to wages for building inspectors and fire
prevention officers, and other properly related article(s) of the agreement. This meeting will
commence immediately following the regular meeting of the board.

I1. Call to order closed session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with
county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County Sheriff's
Office Employees' Association/ NAPSO. Discussion will be limited to amending Appendix B of the
2017-2020 collective bargaining agreement pertaining to wages for certain employees promoted to
Sergeant in 2016 and Deputies fired in 2011 and other properly related matters of the agreement.
This meeting will commence immediately following the regular meeting of the county commission.

Respectfully submitted,

Vanessa Stephens Cletk-Treasurer

25




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 04/17/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regularagenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including 020
Computer Workstation; 021 Outside Software-Sharing; 022 PC Care and Computer Equipment; 023 Misuse of [T
Resources; 024 Privacy of County IT Resources; 025 Excessive Use of [T Resources; 026 Disposal of IT
Equipment; 027 Reporting, Suspensions, and Investigations; 028 Removal and Restriction of Access to Network;
and associated request forms; and creating Policies 029 IT Service Request and 030 Network Use and Security.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey County
Administrative Policies and Procedures, | [commissioner] motion to approve the amendments to Storey County
Administrative Policies 020 Computer Workstation; 021 Outside Software-Sharing; 022 PC Care and Computer
Equipment; 023 Misuse of IT Resources; 024 Privacy of County IT Resources; 025 Excessive Use of IT
Resources; 026 Disposal of IT Equipment; 027 Reporting, Suspensions, and Investigations; 028 Removal and
Restriction of Access to Network; and associated request forms; and creating Policies 029 1T Service Request and
030 Network Use and Security.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to establish
authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis. The Policies and
Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five years and
otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
: Department Head Department Name: Human Resources & Information Technology

[Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [l Continued Agenda Item No. 5 I

Page 1 of |



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 020

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: __04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW

SUBJECT: COMPUTER WORKSTATION POLICY - Use of IT Resources

I. PURPOSE: To estabhsh and outhne procedures and pohcres regarding Personal
Computers.

Computers network systems ar ogies offer powerful tools for creating,
other activities. Taxpayers and

II.

, and other county -sanction:
) ‘others thelr county acco

Storey County technology resources may not be used in a manner ¢ that violates the law,
for pnvate commerclal actwltles for personal private gain, or for political campaigning
‘ ith the county's tax-exempt status. Staffis

‘ hnology for union purposes unless
3 . within

Employees must not
specifically negetiated-a ;
a collective bargaining agreement or otherwzse allowed by NRS 288

Incidental personal use is an accepted and appropriate benefit of being associated with
Storey County's rich technology environment. Appropriate incidental personal use of
technology resources does not result in any measurable cost to the county, and benefits
the county by allowing personnel to avoid needless inconvenience. Incidental personal
use must adhere to all applicable county policies, ordinances and specific departmental
policy. Under no circumstances may incidental personal use involve violations of the law,

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 4



1L

interfere with the fulfillment of an employee's county responsibilities, or adversely
impact or conflict with activities supporting the mission of the county.

Incidental use includes thingstike occasionally checking yeurg personal email account,
doing—yeur personal on-line banking, and other personal activities that does not impact
your work flow or place burdens on County resources. Yeu-are This policy herby advises
advised-that county computer workstations should not be considered secure, from the
standpoint that yeur personal information may be stored and accessed at a later time on
the computer workstation or IT network system.

PROCEDURE:

This policy applies to all personal computers used 1n the conduct of Storey County
business. ~ :

A.  SECURITY: -
1. Rem ss to Storey County computer:

Such security could include the
, Modems

ovide for some security

o, malntalnmg ata
ess, and prov1d1ng

using Sto ey County equ1pment will be for business purposes only The access to
bulletin boards, websites, or peer-to-peer networks for the purpose of playing
games or downloading software is prohibited. -

C. DATA BASE BACKUP:

Provisions will be made by—each—Elected—OfficialorDepartment—Head the
department head to perform data base backup on a regular basis. The standard of
performance will be based on their respective requirements. Additionally,
departmental provisions will be made for the physical security of backup media.
The IT Department will assist in setting up the initial procedures, but someone
from each department should be designated for oversight on the backup process.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 4



D. COPYING SOFTWARE/PROGRAMS:

1. The copying of any software, which is not properly licensed to Storey County
onto a Storey County machine, is prohibited. Additionally, the installation of
games, shareware or public domain software on a Storey County machine is
prohibited. Free plug-in-software, or software used to view media files like
QuickTime, Windows Media Player, Google Earth, Adobe Acrobat Reader,
and search engines are acceptable unless specifically listed as prohibited or a
security hazard by the IT Department.

2. The copying of any Storey County purchased (licensed) software onto a non-

Storey County personal computer wlthout prlor Information-Systems wrilfen

nt must examine the data or
y.Vfirus or malware into the

’ and_ approved by the

d on the Personal
lity of the Elected
e and forward the

ter System Inventory Check List. It is the resp
e Department-Heac department head to

‘Department

F. RESPONSIBILITIES:

p i he d Qartment head will be
respon51ble for the planmng and cost justlﬁcatlon regarding the acquisition of
personal computers and software for use by their personnel. These needs will

be submitted to the Information—Technology [T Director for review and

approval.

2. Elected—Officials—and—Department—Heads The department head will be

responsible for the management and utilization of assigned personal
computers, including both internal and external peripheral equipment. The
“fixed assets” records will be maintained for the county through the IT
Department.

3. Elected—Officials—and Department—Heads The department head will be

responsible for the use and protection of Storey County confidential data.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 4



4. Elected—Officials—and—Department—Heads The department head will be

responsible for the care and use of end user computing items under their
control including hardware, software, data communications and databases.

G. DISCIPLINE: Any department head or employee violating this policy is subject
to appropriate disciplinary action.

IV. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 4 of 4



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 021

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: 04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: ___PAW

SUBJECT: OUTSIDE SOFTWARE/SHAREWARE ON COUNTY PERSONAL
COMPUTERS

L PURPOSE/POLICY" Tﬁo - outhne "‘;procedures and :‘;;pohcles regardlng outside

II.

zed to be installed on an individ
C w1th Elected Ofﬁmal Departme

3 From Whom
4. How Acquired,

5. Dollar Amount if applicable.

This log sheuld must then be forwarded to the IT Director to update the Master
Inventory log.

D. All new programs are subject to be “screened” on an IT stand-alone PC by an IT
Department employee to detect any security flaws, virus threats, or possible
software incompatibilities before deployment into a production environment.

E. Personal or downloaded software from the internet is PROHIBITED on Storey
County computers unless specific authorization has been approved from both the

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page I of 2



Elected Official or Department Head and the Director of Information Technology.
This includes media player software such as iTunes, screensaver programs, font
additions or anything that is not preinstalled on your PC.

III. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 2



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 022

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-1-09
REVISED: 041718
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: ___PAW

SUBJECT: PC CARE AND OTHER COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

I PURPOSE/POLICY::'; To inforth and remind all employees of the proper care regarding
PCs and other Computer equipment.

II. PROCEDURE:

equlpment Static guard

a_computer o
the computer. If an

A Sta‘uc elec cause serious damage to <

; : and its assoczated
_g_zgpme en, kevboard speakers etc bu including laser printer)
may be co-loc ed on the same surge. protector_or universal power supply (e.g.,
“power_strip”). Non computer_items mcludlng calculators, pencil sharpeners,
and_desktop lamps -may- also. be co- located on _the same surge protector or
universal power supplv High energy items such_as_space heaters, coffee pots,
laser printers, microwaves, refrigerators, large display televisions, etc. MUST
NOT be co-located wzth the com_puter on_the_same surge protector or universal

power supply.

Co-locating computers and_high energy items into the same surge protector or
universal power supply may result in SERIOUS DAMAGE, costly repairs, loss of
data, and safety hazards. The employee must contact the IT department if it is
unclear if an item may or may not be co-located in this manner.

C. Protect Your Computer: It-is—neeessary—to Keep clear the vents to youre the
computer, PG Monitor, CPU, or AS400 Monitor for cooling purposes.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 2



III.

Plants

;epl-aeemeat—w&ll—be—t—he—fes&l-t No plant may be placed upon a computer oF upon a
shelf cabinet, or table which is_above a computer. Other items which are
prohibited from being placed as such _include coffee pots, drinks of any kind,
water sofiener equipment, fish bowls, and_any other item_involving water or
liguid.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This pohcy will be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Systems Dlrector.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 2



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 023

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: __0417/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __PAW

SUBJECT: MISUSE AND ABUSE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES

II.

II1.

PURPOSE/POLICY' Itis ‘1rnportantk to have pohcles and procedures that encourage the

and all kotyher, written
commissioners staff. T

ontent media is

related to county
the

E. Copying, d1str1but1ng, or removal of software or information from Storey County
computers is STRICTLY prohlblted unless spemﬁc and documented authorlzatlon is

:Feehnolog-y provzded by the supervzszon deparfment head and IT Dzreclor The regular
creation and deletion of working documents, emails, or other non-critical business data is
not applicable.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 1



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 024

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 12-15-09
REVISED: 04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW

SUBJECT: PRIVACY OF STOREY COUNTY IT RESOURCES

L PURPOSE/POLICY: Storey County understands the diversity of values in a
government institution and so it is respectful of freedom of expression. The county does
not condone censorship, nor does it endorse the systematic inspection of electronic files

or monitoring of network activi d1v1dua1 activities. However, there are

legitimate reasons for pers er to access computer files or
computers or netwo; grlty, securlty, or effectrve

communications,

tored computer mformatron vorce and data ¢ mmuni
son to whom the

ay not be accessed by someone other than

computer ‘ac

organizations;

 Dataand other ﬁ
devices.

e Data and other ﬁles 1nclud1ng ro]
computers ass1gned toa specrﬂc 1nd1v1dual for thelr use in support of job functions; and

e Telecommunications (Vorce or data) ‘traffic from, to or between any devices described
above. : fh ,

A technician or administrator may access or permit access to the resources described above, if he
or she;

1. Has been directed by the IFDirector,DepartmentHead—Elected-Offieial-or-County
Managerte department head or the IT Director to provide access; or

2. Has written (verifiable email or paper) permission from the individual to whom the
account or device or communication has been assigned or attributed; or

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 3



3. In an emergency situation, has a reasonable belief that a process active in the account or
on the device is causing or will cause significant system or network degradation, or could
cause loss/damage to system or other users' data; or

4. Receives authorization from the Sterey County Manager and/or Sterey—Ceunty IT
Department, for situations where there is reasonable belief that the individual or a user to
whom the account or device is assigned or owned has perpetrated or is involved in illegal
activities using the accounts or device in question; or

5. Receives authorization from the Sterey County Manager and/or Sterey—eeunty IT
Department, for situations where there is reasonable belief that the individual to whom
the account or device is assigned or owned has perpetrated or is involved in violations of
county policy using the accounts or device in question; or

6. Receives a request from the Eleeted-Official-or Department Head to access the account of
staff who is deceased, terminated, or is otherwise incapacitated or unavailable, for the
purposes of retrieving material ¢ (o th tion of the department; or

7. ager ,:and/of Storey—county 1T
in investigat ) al. misconduct;
8. r and subsequent direction ‘ reygpun‘tyﬁ legal counsel,
9. ty legal
In the ¢ gation for
alleged ts of an
individual's e-m Ce , ; raffic may be copied
and stored to pre L 4 ormation, fo v of that material.
Subsequent relea: stored: materials must, be’ in ac C above-specified

criteria.

Except when inapp:
individual ptior to acce
attributed to them. Wh
to notify the involved in

System-generated, content-neutral information ("metadata").may be used for the purposes of
monitoring system and storage utilization, problem -troubleshooting, security administration,
technology abuse or misuse incident investigation, and in support of formal audits. This
information includes opera ystem logs (i.e., record of actions or events related to the
operation of the system or devic use 1c ords (i.e., what usernames were used to connect
to Storey County systems, from where, and when) dial-up logs (i.e., who connected to Storey
County modems, from where, and when), network activity logs (i.e., what connections were
attempted or completed to Storey County systems, from where, and when), email logs (i.e., who
sent email to or from Storey County email systems, and when), and auditing logs (i.e., records of
what actions were taken on Storey County systems, against what resources or applications, and
when). The IT Department will be responsible for collecting and maintaining this data, and will
forward it to the appropriate agencies if requested.

Any intrusive or restrictive actions taken by the county related to information technologies will

be in accordance with guidelines and procedures set forth in other applicable county policies,
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 3



codes, or laws. County policies include (but are not limited to) the administrative procedures and
policies, and technology appropriate use policies. Laws include, but are not limited to, the Health
Information Portability and Protection Act (HIPPA) (patient medical information), Electronic
Communication Privacy Act, the No Electronic Theft Act, and the Digital Millennium Copyright
Act. Individual Departments may have additional policies which may be more restrictive.

III. PROCEDURE REFERENCE: Where possible and feasible, technicians receiving
requests for access to computer accounts, files, or network traffic by persons other than the
account holder will consult with the Sterey County Manager and/or Sterey—Ceunty IT
Department prior to granting the access. The Sterey County Manager and/or Sterey-Ceunty IT
Department will ensure that that the provisions of this policy have been followed. Where prior
consultation is not possible, the Sterey County Manager and/or Sfeefe-)uéeaafy IT Department or
their designated representative will be 1nforrned as soon as possible after the access is granted. It
is important to note that Storey Co ~ mply with laws such as HIPAA and
NCJIS. Some systems such as’ iminal background checks before
ANY access is granted: ~

Court orders and other ~ irecti rded to law enforcement
agencies will be del ‘‘‘‘‘ uments be served on
individual system : ‘

Storey Countyw eg
then pass the req
Manager and

IV. RESP
by the Inform

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 025

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: 04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __PAW

SUBJECT: EXCESSIVE USE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES

II.

PURPOSE/POLICY: Excessive use of information technology resources by a particular
user, or for a particular activity, reduces the amount of resource available to satisfy the
needs of other users. Excessive use may degrade or jeopardize system functionality, and
can result in significant costs iy, It is important to allocate information
technology resources in su ses that directly serve the county
mission, avoids or elim es the most effective overall

at p
rvice degradation,

ially when it impedes
stem availability or
e Storey County
rk with users and
cessive use of
ss will work in
ission, avoids or
all use of county

Excessive us
the mission-

information technology resources,
vities -of other users, or adversely. affe
cease or be reduced to an appropriate 1

t _head and. ) ho n
Manager. superviser- These services ¢ amounts of bandwidth and make the
use of the network less efficient for all users, Legitimate uses for training, conference
calls, or vendor demonstrations are allowed without supervisor approval. Personal music
CDs and stored files may be played on county computers without approval by _the IT
Director. Streaming radio stations are prohibited. Regular radio use through a AM/FM

receiver is acceptable.

ume large a

B. Uploading or downloading files from peer-to-peer networks, or for personal use is
prohibited at all times. This includes software like iZunes, bit torrents, Napster, or
Azureus.

C. Storing large amounts of personal files or software on county computers is prohibited.
Large amounts of files or software like personal pictures, MP3 files, or program installers
that yeu—persenally—own_are personally owned and may consume resources on the
computer workstation that is needed for normal operation. Exceeding 500 MB of space
for personal use would be considered excessive.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 2



III. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 2



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 026

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: _04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __PAW

SUBJECT: DISPOSAL OF IT EQUIPMENT

IL.

HI.

PURPOSE/POLICY: In order to safeguard" private or sensitive information from
becoming public, all computer equipment including. but not limited to, desktop and
notebook comguters tablets and smart phones, office copy machines, server equipment,
r ored data and information, that has
ounty b szness"must be sanitized
mﬁ ; 'home use. All county

,byff;fthe : ;Iﬁformation

Wedon an annual basis
by the Informatior

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 1
Policy # 026



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 027

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: __04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: ___ PAW

SUBJECT: IT REPORTING, SUSPENSIONS, AND INVESTIGATIONS

II.

PURPOSE/POLICY: This pohcy contains the standards and definitions for reporting
abuse, it outlines suspension of computer access, and it describes in what manner and for
what reasons 1nvest1gat1ons of. alleged misc ynduct may be required-conducted.

APPLICA ‘LITY e
i i rey County staff, inclu

loyee supervisors, elected
, administrators and comput ici

Reportmg

Suspension or termmatton of access Y .- S epartment-He :
department _head and_the system admlmstrators and securlty/network engineers may
temporarily suspend or block access to an account when it appears necessary to do so in
order to protect the integrity, security, and functionality of county or other computing
resources, or to protect the county from liability.

Access to county technology resources may be removed immediately given a request from
the appropriate county authorities, the-supervisor—Elected—Offieiak; the department head,
County Manager, and/or IT Director er-Department-Head-of an employee, or the sponsor of
the account. Reasons for removal may include, but are not limited to, the following: the
individual is terminated for cause and there is concern for safety of systems or data; or there

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 4



is reasonable belief that the individual to whom the account is assigned has perpetrated or is
involved in illegal activities or activities that violate county policy.

The technician responsible for a particular service may disable access unilaterally if
processes in an assigned account are causing or reasonably appear likely to cause damage to
systems or data, breach data security, or may cause serious service degradation for other
users. Except when prohlblted by law, inappropriate, or impractical, the technician will notify
the involved individual prior to disabling the computer account whenever possible. Where
prior notification is not permitted, appropriate, or practical, the technician will make all
efforts to notify the involved individual afterward in a timely manner. Unless other policies
are invoked, access will be restored as soon as p0551ble after the removal of the threat In all
cases the De -He peRt—an i3

department _head, the Admzmstranve Off icer and/or Personnel Dlrector and the Coun ﬂ
Manager shall be notified prlor ~ ‘nless it 1s ‘violating a law or causing
immediate damage oan ty

he Sterey County Manager and/o
vestigation and computer forens
on technology resources. The
artment ‘will conduct the necessary investi
omply w1th apphcable 1aw as well as coun

IT Department
complaints of misuse or
unty Manager and/or
.and data gathering.
es and procedures.

county 1nformat10n technology resour

Determination of maden; jl personal use: " The senior management of each county
department or other administrative: office is authorized to define and publish the acceptable
level and nature of incidental personal use by members of the department and/or office. An
employee's supervisor may require the employee to cease or limit any incidental personal use
that hampers job performance or violates county policy. County technology service providers
will always place a higher priority on support of county-related activities over any form of
incidental personal use.

Consultation: Storey County Commissioners Office and Storey County IT Department are
will be available to provide consultation or advice related to technology use or misuse to any
county office, department, or individual. persennel: In the absence of specific department or

office policy there shall be no personal use. If there are specific department exceptions they
Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 4




must be clearly written, receive-commission—staffapproval , be approved by the County

Manager and the Administrative Officer and./or Personnel Director, and be clearly posted.

Identtﬁnng excessive use: The IT Director is responsible, along with the management of the
unit owning the resource or service, for establishing metrics for gauging excessive use.

Controls to limit excessive use may include, but are not limited to, established per-user limits
for the service that allow for shared use of limited resources; limitations on the types of
processes that can be run on a service or resource; or identification of certain uses as
adversely affecting the activities of others or adversely affecting system availability or
performance. In instances where availability of a resource is constrained and where resource
augmentation is not feasible orpossible, service managers in consultation with the owner of
the resource may place: limits or rer ‘eve resources to ‘protect and allow for shared use of the
information technology infrastructure.

Notification of excessive us,
department head of the 3 w1ll notlfy the user that he
or she is consuming an ]
information from w
Dlrector or an em

sage patterns The IT
€ USe, andk will work

Emergency actions: Any-departmen t-heq cted-Official-County-Ma: 3
The_department head, County Ma _ngger Admzmstratzve Oﬂ“ Scer and/or Personnel Dzrector
or the IT Director may temporarily suspend or block access to an information technology
resource, or stop active processes in an account, when it appears necessary to protect the
integrity, security, or functionality of the resource, or to protect other computing resources,
or to protect the county from potential liability.

Repeated notifications: Users who are repeatedly notlﬁed of excesswe use may be subject to
sanctions. The superviser,—Departmen d ed—O Or—6 esponstb
department-member department head or supervzsor w111 be requested to take actlon against
the employee; that may include potential disciplinary measures.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 4



III. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 4 of 4



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 028

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  12-15-09
REVISED: 04/17/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW

SUBJECT: REMOVAL OR RESTRICTION OF ACCESS TO COUNTY NETWORK

RESOURCES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE

IL

II1.

PURPOSE/POLICY;S ThlS‘ pohcy contalns the standards vand deﬁmtlons for removal or

iohcles”vlt places the entire
cess of sensitive

or ¢ oiinty Manager

Policies, and
to county network
~ other computer

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW ThlS pollcy wﬂl be reviewed on an annual basis
by the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page | of 1



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 029

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 04/17/18
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: REQUESTING IT SERVICES AND SUPPORT

11

111,

PURPOSE/POLICY:

This policy contains the procedures for contacting the IT Department for general

SUpPPOFL, project support, or emergency support. The methods outlined here have been

developed after many years of providing County IT support and follow a Helpdesk style

queuing system. The IT Director or County Manager will assign priority as required.

APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Storey County staff. including employee supervisors.

Department Heads, Elected Officials, Administrators or any outside vendors that will

interact in any way with the County Core Network Infrastructure.

PROCEDURES:

General Support Requests — Requesting parties must email it@storeycounty.org
or call 775-847-1152 and leave a message if no one is available to answer.
Oftentimes staffis on another call or out in the field. Messages will be checked
regularly by IT department staff._Calling staff directly or stopping staff during
the course of their scheduled tasks will result in a delay of service. This bypasses
the queue and requires additional time and resources to schedule support

requests.

Project Support Requests — Requesting parties must email
ideane@storeycounty.org or call 775-847-1152 with the specific project details.

Projects often require significant time and resources and need 1o be planned out
well in advance if deadlines, budgets or a critical need exists.

Emergency Support Requests — Use any and all contact methods outlined on the
Emergency Contact Procedure Form that can be obtained from the IT
Department. Emergency support requests deal with life safety issues or Declared
Emergency situations and will always have the highest priority for service.
Emergency support requests can_be initiated 24/7/363.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page ] of 2
Policy# 029



v,

111

EXAMPLES:

General Support Requests — Email setup or password changes, printing and scanning
setup, software updates, PC upgrades and replacement, minor hardware purchases,
backup strategies, network access and most requests that require less than 4 hours to

complete.

Project Support Requests — Large projects that require more than 4 hours to complete,
projects that have a significant impact on networking services, projects that change,
modify or replace existing established processes or projects that have a budget amount
over $1500.

Emergency Support Request — Requests that directly involve life safety or significant
asset risk. a Declared Emergency by the State or the County and situations that have the
potential to escalate into life safety issues or threaten substantial IT infrastructure as
determined by the IT Director or County Manager.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis by
the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 2
Policy# 029



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 030

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 04/17/18
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: NETWORK USE AND SECURITY

II.

111

PURPOSE/POLICY:

This policy contains the procedures for defining the requirements needed to deploy or
replace hardware and/or software using new or existing county network IT resources.
This policy will help maintain consistency, security, reliability, communication and
appropriate allocation of limited IT staff and resources. Involving the IT department
through all stages of the project and following established best practices and accepted
industry standards are required for successful project implementations. The IT
department provides network services and connectivity support but it is the responsibility
of the requesting department head 1o manage or designate staff to manage the overall
project and associated vendors. Vendors or departments that cannot meet a minimum
standard of security and accepted industry standards may be required to take corrective
action before IT support can assist with new or existing projects. Failure to meet
required security or accepted industry standards may result in termination of network
access to protect the existing countywide network infrastructure.

APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Storey County staff. including employee supervisors,
department heads. elected officials, administrators or any outside vendors that will
interact in any way with the County Core Network Infrastructure.

PROCEDURES:

e Definition — Define project goals, objectives, project scope, risks, issues, budget,
timelines and approach methodology.

o Initiation — Declare business case or justification, all stakeholders finalize and
agree upon project scope, define expectations for all stakeholders, define key
personnel and define their responsibilities.

o Planning — Define all stages of the project, establish realistic timelines for each
stage, define milestones or project metrics to define and measure successes.

e Execution — Order all hardware, software and related project components.

Install. configure and deploy project solution. Update timelines and communicate
any issues or delays to all stakeholders.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 2
Policy# 029



.

e Monitoring & Control — Once a successful project has been implemented, the
parties defined in the project scope and/or Initiation phase will monitor and
control the system. This includes providing for issue reporting and resolution,
managing upgrades, process changes and ongoing technical support costs or

requirements.
o Closure — Document successful completion of project with all stakeholders.

EXAMPLES:

Creating a new business process that interacts with the county network in any way.
Replacing an existing business process with new hardware and/or sofiware. Upgrading
a server, or workstation/server environment. Adding or removing internet service.
Adding or removing microwave links. Office furniture reconfiguration. Cameras, security
or data archiving or security data. New building wiring or changing of existing building
wiring. Phones system installation, upgrade or wiring.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis by
the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 2
Policy# 029



4/10/2018 Square - Invoice - 22755

Alpine Lock

& Thank you, invoice paid

We have emailed a copy of your receipt to Clerk@StoreyCounty.org.

Code cut keys for Wendy
Invoice #22755

April 10, 2018

Customer
Storey County Clerk
Clerk@StoreyCounty.org

PLEASE REMIT TO: 3267 RESEARCH WAY STE 211
CARSON CITY NV 89706

Code Cut Key x 4 ($10.00 ea.) $40.00
Note: 137R; 391T; 408T; 303T
Single Sided Key Cut x 4 ($2.50 ea.) $10.00
Single sided key cut (SC1, KW1, M1, Etc.)
Special
Subtotal $50.00
Total Due $50.00
VISA 7226 April 10, 2018
Alpine Lock
3267 Research Way

211, Carson City, NV 89706 United States
alpinelocksmithing@gmail.com
+1(775) 885-0719

https://squareup.com/pay-invoice/ChQxNzI4NTgyNzgyNDQ10TY 1NzM4MBCAgJWyBavaAg==/thank-you

17



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent Regular U] Public Hearing Required [J
1. Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Approve
3. Prepared By: E.F.Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962
4, Staff Summary:
5. Supporting Materials: EOP Listings for January, February, March 1018
6. Fiscal Impact: None
Funds Available: n/a Fund: UJ Comptroller O
7. Legal Review Required: District Attorney U
8. Reviewed By:
[J Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office
&County Manager L&—w\;/ [d Other Agency Review
9. Board Action:

[J Approve O Approved with Modifications

(J Denied (1 Continued

Agenda Item No. S




Virginia Township Justice Court ~ Storey Cou

775-847-0962 ¢ Facsimile: 775-847-0915
www.storeycoun rg
J01APR -2 PH U 08
STOREY COUNTY CLERR

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

April 2, 2018

QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to NRS 4.100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for January, February, and
March, 2018.

|, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a full, true and correct statement of

" Il o

E.F. Herringto‘r;
Justice of the Peace

Subscribed and sworn before me
this Z-day of A"’D 2
/ /(/( S

Justice Court Clérk

TAMARA A. MIGAN
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
B APPT. No, 98-4873-16
MY APPT. EXPIRES JUNE 20, 2018




00°0SE S df :5994 98ellIe N SINOH-I1BYY
00'9L£°9C S [:7v101 a3synasid
00001 ) i9]|043u0D 1.IS AN DOA 234 8ulji4 puog 801S€-000-0LT
00°'S S 12inseal] Ajuno) Asiols 994 SNsSua) T10ZYE-000-0LT
- ) Jainseau | Auno) Asi1015 994 swiep) [jews ¥0¢t€-000-100
00001 ) 43j|043u0) 3181S AN 994 uno) Ayepads INa 90C¥£-000-0LT
0S'TV0'T S 13]|0.1U0) 81815 AN {INWN) 994 1noD Ayjerdads LTZ¥€-000-0LT
00'18¢€ S Jaunseaut Auno) AsJ031s L2Jeas spJoday ¥0Z¥€-000-100
0s'18 S 10D 221SN[ dIYSUMOL BIUIBIIA SIIAIDS |eUIRId 60.6C-000-£81
00T S Jainsealty Aluno) Asuols Aluno) 01 spuswAedianQ 60TSE-000-100
000V ) Jainseal] 21e1S AN 294 afeuleiN Z1¢v€-000-0LT
00'0SS°T ) UN0) 321sN[ diysumoL ejuidiia 984 Ajljdes 1nod TT1SE-000-£8T
6ETET'ET S Jainseau] Ajuno) Asu0i1s Auno) - auy4 60TSE-000-100
J3)|0J3u0) 9181S AN $934 92UI|0IA Jl3sswog 80Z¥€-000-0LT
00 $ Jaanseal)] Ajuno) Aa101s s994 Ado) ¥0Z¥E-000-100
- S J1aunseal] Ayuno) Asiois Suijlel payiiad $0Ty€-000-100
00°09 S Jainseasj Ayuno) Asuois 924 sisAjeuy |eaiwayd 101SE-000-T00
00°LSC ) 1N0) 2213SNf dIYSUMOL BIUIBIIA 1N0D 921ISNf - 33 |IAID ¥0TS€-000-£L81
S2°96¢ S 1aJnsealt Auno) Aalols S99 |IAD ¥0Z¥€-000-100
00°'S. S Jainsealj Ayunod Asuols 924 uissanoud puog $0Z¥€-000-100
S/°8T S 1ainseai] Aluno) Aauols 994 |eaddy
6°66 S Jainsealy Aluno) Aausois 994 Juswasinquidy Asulony StZyE€-000-100
00°eey S Jainseal] Ajuno) A0l SIsAjeuy J3)JeN 2119UBD) 394 YV TOTSE-000-08T
00°09. S 19}[043u0) 9181S AN (lesauaD) 31€1S - 934 VWV ¥T15€-000-0L1T
00°01E S Jaunsealy Auno) As101S dIUBAN( - 394 YV €015€-000-T00
00060°T S 1N0o) 2211sNf diYsumo eluisnA 1Nn0D 21ISN[ - 934 vV $0TSE-000-481
L9'TVS9 S 19]|0J3U0) 31el1S AN {DOV) 31e15 - 934 vV 90C¢¥€-000-0LT

LNNOWY a3syngsia

33Avd

8T0Z AYVNNVT - d03 1L¥NO0D I21LSNI dIHSNMOL VINIDYHIA

1NNOJJV




00°0L S dr :$994 a3ellIBA SINOH-IBYY
05°€88'1¢ $ |1V.LOL a3S¥Nasia
00°0S S 19{|053u0) 31el1S AN DOA 934 8uli4 puog 80TS€-000-0L1
00¢C S Jaanseas] Ajuno) Asuols 994 snsua) T0ZYE-000-0LT
SL'€9 ) Jaunseal) Ayuno) As101S 994 swie) jjews Y0Z¥E-000-100
00091 S 13]1013u0) 3181S AN 994 uno) Ajjeads ina 90CZ¥€-000-0LT
06'8%L S J39j|013u0) 31e1S AN (WA @24 1no) Ajerads LTZ¥E-000-0LT
STISTT S Jaunseal] Ajuno) Asi03s Y24eas SpJoday ¥0Z¥£-000-100
00°1€E S 1noD 201snr diysumoy eIuisIIA SSIAIBS |_1IRId 6046Z-000-L8T
00’1 S J21nsealy Ayuno) Asuols Ajuno) 03 syuswAedianQ 60TSE-000-100
00°5¢ S Jainseal] a1eis AN 934 adenseN Z1Cye-000-0LT
00°590°T S 1n0) 321sn( diysumoy eIuIBIIA 294 Ayjioeq Uno) T1TSE-000-L81
00°0€Z'TT S J1aJnseal) Ayuno) A2103S Auno) - aui4 601S€-000-100
- S J8}|043u0) 31e1S AN S334 2JUS|OIA Jl3sswog 80¢ve-000-0LT
00¢t S Jaunseas] Ajuno) Asu01S $994 Ado) Y0Z¥€-000-100
- S Jainseas) Ayuno) Ass0is SuljleN payia)d 0Zv€-000-100
- S Jaanseau] Ajuno) As.01S 994 sisAjeuy |ea1WBYD TOTSE-000-100
00've ) 1noJ 2o1sn(r diysumoy et 1N0D 321SN[ - $334 |IAID Y0TSE-000-£81
05°L0E S Jaanseall Ajuno) A401S S994 |IAD Y0Zv£-000-100
0S°LE S Jaunseal)] Aluno) Asu01S 994 8uIssad0.1d puog Y0ZYE-000-T00
- S Ja1nseal) Ajuno) Al1o1s 934 jeaddy
- S Jainseall Ajuno) Asiols 994 JuUswasinguiay Asuiony SHZrE-000-T00
00°vce S Jaunsealf Ajuno) As101S sishjeuy Jaj4BIN 2132US9 93] YV T015€-000-081
00°SSS ) 191]043u0) 31e3S AN (1e42ua0) 31LIS - 994 VV Y1T1S€-000-0LT
00°¥2C S JaunseasL Ajuno) Aai01S QIUBAN( - 394 YV €0TSE-000-100
00'8LL S 1N0D 921sn( diysumoL eluIsiIA HN0D A1dNsN( - 994 vV ¥015€-000-L8T
00'v8S'vy S J43]j013u0) 31eIS AN (OOV) 21815 - 994 WV 90¢t€-000-0L1

INNOWY a@3syngsia

33AVd

8T0Z AYYNYE3d - ONLLSIT dO3 L¥NOI II1LSNTI dIHSNMOL VINIDYHIA

INNOJJV




- S df 15934 adell e SINOH-IdYY
S¥'90€'€T S |:v101 a3synasia
00001 S Ja{|oJ3u0) 81eiS AN JOA 334 8ulji4 puog 80TSE-000-0L1
0011 S Jainseal) Aluno) AL.01S 994 snsua) 10ZYE-000-041
SL'€9 S Jainseas) Ayuno) Aa.03s 994 swie]) [jlews 0Z¥€-000-100
00'56 S Jajjosiuo) a1e1s AN 924 1no) Ajje1dads Ina 90Zt€-000-0LT
00°€06 S J3]j041u0D 9181S AN (ININ) 34 1noD Ajjeidads LTZ¥E-000-0LT
STBIL S Jainseal ] Ayuno) Asi0ls Yo1eas spi0day 0 €-000-100
St'29C S 1NoD 22sN[ diysumoy eluiIA S9IIAISS |eU1dId 60£62-000-£8T
00’V S 13inseau] Ajuno) As.01S Ayuno) 01 sjuswAedisnQ 601SE-000-100
- S Jainseal [ 31e1s AN 994 a3elleN ZTZYE-000-0L1
005927 S 1noJ ansnf diysumo elutlin 294 Ayjoey unod TT1S€E-000-£8T
00°00LTT S Jainseal} Ajuno) Aa1ols Ajuno) - aut4 60TSE-000-T00
- S 19]|041U07) 93e1S AN $994 IU|OIA d13sawoqg 80Z¥€-000-0L1
- S 13inseal] Ayuno) A0S saa4 Ado) y0Zy€-000-T00
- S Jaunseas| Ayuno) Asi0ls Buljien payie) 0T €-000-100
00°02T S Jainseau) Auno) As101S 934 sisAjeuy |edtwayd TOTSE-000-T00
STLIY S 1N0D 321snf diysumoy eluidiIA 1N0Y 3213SN{ - S99 |IAD ¥0T1S€-000-L8T
SL'€6E S saanseal) Ajuno) Aaiols $394 |IAD 02 €-000-100
00°GL S Jaunseauj Ajuno) Asio1s 994 Buissadoud puog Y0¥ E€-000-100
- S 13Jnsealy Ajuno) As.01S 294 jeaddy
00°0GE S 12inseaat Ajuno) Aa401S 294 Juswasinquiay Asuiony StZyE-000-100
0020V S Jainseast Aluno) A2101S sisA|euy JayJeA 2112UB5 334 VYV TOTSE-000-081
00'529 S J3||043u0) 31e1S AN (jesouaD) 21€3S - 984 WV ¥TTSE-000-0LT
00'ZS¢ S Jainseau) Ayuno) A0S 3IUBANS - 99 VY €01S€-000-100
00288 S 1IN0 20nsNf dIYsuMo L BIUIBIIA 1IN0 I2ISN[ - 994 YV ¥01S€-000-L8T
00'T99'V S 19](043U0) 31eIS AN (DOv) 21815 - 994 YV 90Zt€-000-04L1
LNNOIV a3sydngasia 33Avd 1NNOJDV

8T0Z HOYVW - ONILSIT dO3 18NO0D 3D1LSNT dIHSNMOL VINISYHIA




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 17,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

2.

P &C’%nty Manager Other Agency Review:

9.

Title: For possible action, approval of Treasurer's Report for March 2018.
Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.
Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Reports are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Lepal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

y
H



LT6ZEIT0T $ 9T'VBL'6 $

6V'9T0'T § ZY'ZSE'6Z $ 28LT0°L $ 6YT6S'BOE

LLTEST § 6TLSK'8$ SGEEIS S SOV6Z'96 § 69VIT'BL § GUELLEB § OLTVE'TEP § E9VPO'09L § Z6°20T'vvT $

v vn

$

$
$

- $

$
$

wr

- $

T1'9€7'68Y

$

9T'v8L'6

$

- $ TWISEB6T $ 638

$

12°£28°0L

Z1°58S

$

€S°0S6'T $ ©ZTO0E'T § CEBOT'ZZ § SO'TOS'9 § 6L°LIS'ST $ BE6ES'LE

$ PI6IV'80T $ PETZOTT $

TT'9€2'68Y

$

W U N D

RV VR Y R e g

91'v8L'6

$

TrTSEBT $ 68'8T

$

12°£28°0L

r's8s

$

SS'0S6'T $ YTOOE'T $ ZEBOL'ZTZ $ SO'TOS'9 § 6L°LI8BT $ 8E6ES'LE

$

v96TY'80T $ vETTOTIT S

Y101 QNVYD

1510 Dd
ASIA Xd
1S10 XN
1510 Jd’Xd
ASIN

J3SNN WVLI0L
JuawAedand

8102/L10T

YOI¥d V101
£102/910T
leloiqgns
910z/5102
S10Z/¥10T
¥10Z/€10T
€102/7102
10Z/110T
1102/0102
010¢/600
6002/8002
8002/.00C
YOSS3SSV

90°€60'£L2S'T

6V 910'T $

€0'866'9

82°S9LLET

S9°LY6'T

VL9059 $ TLEEEV $ ELSBIVL $ VIELLTZ S

05°SSr'v9 §

ZEEOV'VEE

$

66'729'TS9 $

85°180°72T

$

SIV10L L4043y

00°10S
90'685'925'T
€€°669'02S'T
£5°€61
9£°505°025'T
YT ELS'Y
19°2LET

€9°005°T
66987

vioL

$

r NN

wr

R R T AR T AR Y R AR T AR Y R % " 2

%¢ 8/v
S9T

v

6v°9T0'T $

LNJYAO

%9 d/fv

wr

90S9€-T00  POTPE-TOO

€°866'9
91°59€’9
91'S9€’9
LTEE9
[45333
(49133
ST'862
ot

reot

L1561

v N

S3ILIVNId

T00

TE6L
L6°589°¢ET

SS'6T0°LE2
9v'ot
60°686'9€T
999
9561
95'61¢E
98'9vE
0€'6T

og'62

95°L1E

YIWI/INS
0sz

99°0
66'9¥6'T
LETVE'T
S0
Ive’t
9's
€Lt
€LC
68°2
L0

L7°0

9T

H1NOA
100

VNN N

N

-1 4

$

Lt

$

9L e $

8T'L

$

9S'v0S'9 $ STREEY § L6°09T'VL § 9E€'99L'TZT $

198399 § 9S0ZEV $ VETSE'EL $ 66VOLTZ $

¥8'0

$

950

$

156 S

0817

$

€8/8Y'9 $ 000IEY $ E€BTYE'EL S 6TTOLTT $

68'ST
3]
ve9
556
180

80

vL'g

30V ani
S8t

$
$

69°'TT
€€'S
€ES
2 )
€S0

€S0

€8S

a3 ani
ato

$
$

VN

€980 $
LE00T S

LEOOT  $
9280T $
€T'6 $

€16 $

£1°66 $

Lvis
(1744

8T0Z YIew

L£°T9
967
(444
581t
69'C

69°C

9T°6¢

NOV dv2
090

$
$

KN N

L0°'TT

$

EUVEY'YI ¢

82'35C'Y9 $

608

$

6T°0SC'Y9 $

ST'9LT
66'€8
66'¢€8
9T'z6
8L'L

8LL

8E'v8

9aQ HOS
Q9T

$
$

€2°60T

60°'V6T'vEE

8T'SLE'EEE

S6'1Y

ETEEEEEE

16816
68'Ivy

[3:2444
w09y
TL8E

TL'8E

TELEY

dO H)S
0sT

$

L7 L RV R e A Ll

v

$

66°423'1S9
66'029'TS9 $

66'029'TS9 $
- $

aid 1snani
00S-T00

S0°852

£5'€T8'1TT

vZ'8v9'61T
1166
ET°6Y5'6TT
62°SLT'T
9L°9%0'T
9£°9%0'T
€S°8ZT'T
9€'56

9€'56

LUEEO'T

IVYIN3D
100

$
$

$
$
$
$
$

N

$

payddy 10N pausodag
TVAQV papuatuy

Q3UNI3ISWiIcL

81/LT V10L
$S3S5Y je1dads
8107/L10T
HOIYd V10L
110Z/9107 je101
ssassy (edads
£102/910T
|ejoigng
910Z/S10Z 18301
ssassy |epads
9102/5107
STO0Z/p107 [e10L
$5assY |e1ads
s10z/v102
y10Z/€102
£102/710C
710Z/1102
1102/0T0C
0102/6002
6007/800C
8007/L£00T
£00Z/9002

YNNSVYIHL



ZS° LS 81/91/¢
00°0%T 81/91/¢
00°GSS 81/91/¢
00 9% 81/9T/¢
¥8°¥%1 8T/9T/¢€
0L 2§ 81/91/¢
00°0T€ 81/91/¢
00° 02 81/91/¢
S0 0LL 8T1/9T/¢
09°€LE'Z 8T/91/¢
00°0CT 8T1/91/¢
00°G¢€ 8T1/9T/¢
00°002 81/20/¢
TL°Z%T'T 8T/20/¢€
SETEP 81/20/¢
G€° 25T 81/20/¢
00°000‘S 81/91/2
0S°6S 81/91/2
£8°56¢€ 8T/61T/1
80°L8 81/61/1
00°00T L1/22/21
00°52 L1/22/21
0Z°T16'C LT/60/11
00°261 LT/€T/0T
LE 16 LT/€T/0T
€€°22 LT/T0/6
06°0€ L1/8T/8
€2°9T1 LT/%0/8
S¥°9 LT1/02/L
¥8 €Y LT/0Z/L
80 28’1 LT/€0/¢€
00°Sc 91/60/21
69 %29 91/60/C1
LY 8%E’‘C 91/%T/0T
00 9% 91/91/6
00" %1 91/91/6
00" v¥E‘C 91/20/6
£V 8 91/20/6
00" 9% 91/20/6
29°6C 91/61/8
€6°61 9T1/22/L
6T°GT 91/80/L
00°00T 9T/80/L
AR T4 91/0T/9
00°T08 91/81/¢€
80" ¥1 S1/8T/6
00°SL S1/%0/6
00" 8L S1/%vZ/L
8T° 06 S1/92/9
S0°98 ST/21/9
00°06 ST/21/9
SL 6€E ST/LT/%
16971 ST/LT/%
00°09 ST/LT/%
Jjunowuy 23ed 3}oauyp
81/T€/€ - 00/00/0

666666 Ubnoiyl I

ON
T abeg

s)oayD burtpueising
TINNODDOY SwdHINSYHUL

INIWdINOA JOI™IANS

ONI DOSSY ® JUVYNVYLS
XY¥VH ‘JIAIOIHDS

a OTASONY ‘INI¥LAd

ONI 10d3d #DIA40
YHINVWYS ‘1LOD

Y049

YOoddHY ¥ AANYY ‘ONIQTAIA
ONI LSHEHD ALINNWWOD
A¥IS DNIJAIVILIS TTIMLIYHD
YOID

AFN 40 DOSSY S.J0OSSHSSY
109 ALID VYINIDIIA

0D SNI JIVDOHIIVIAHAALINN
AVWYIL ‘NYDIW

ONI 0DS1IV

NOSYL ‘TAAVHENVA

QLT INJIWJOTAAHA SAV

D17 ¥IMOL TVHOID

NIAFLS ‘AYMOTIH

MAVd A¥DA

YoodgHd ‘NVa@dor

D IANAYM ‘MDIMAAVH
SA0GMOD HANOLSHEWOL HHIL
YIDI¥NIVA ® 1INvVd 'sdavd
q¥Y0d DNIZYVYD VAYAHAN
dIYS 3 SSYID ‘MDO0T M R D
I¥d ‘NALLIHM

JAJINNHFL ‘SL1Od

NOJVHS ‘adyyN¥ddd

dd0D HNINONYL IALITIIANID
OTT IDILON ISHAL
HSJYIGWINW HTYSHTOHM 0DISOD
¥SIT ® LLODS ‘NOSIAVR
SNOISSTIANI HAILYAONNI
NVIA ‘HIOWAVH
SHSIYdIELNA MVAd NAS
dLSETID ® NNATO ‘NOLHDIHT
SNOISSHYdWI HAIILYAONNI
oL dA1494d0d ‘1sIindg

NOSVL ‘SNIMMVH

qIvod ONIZVID VAVAIN
YANOL ‘MOTIVH

HAIYAHAL ‘HONAT

ONI DIDOTHIOD

NOOVIY HIUVW NNY ‘AVIINKW
VYHLIGVYL ‘NOSHdOH

ONI 999 HHIJHIL

HONH ‘LVY0D4AddAr

A¥¥Yd ® VYANIT ‘¥AdId
NHOL ‘ANSHIANA

NHOL ‘AVHS

avHD ‘SNVAH

HYY0ddAd ‘JHAANIL

sweN 9slorTdug/IOopusA
Wwoxg

#¥0o9yD woxg

0S:EE:€ET

ALNNOD AFJOLS

OTTSOV
LBYVOP
9€CS0v
S68€07
Z8LTOT
0€ZS07
818201
TEZS0?
S§S5900T
SECTSOV
049001
T90¢€01
6TZS0¥
9L0S0%
629¢0V
SET00T
50050V
S82001
L9EEDT
y02s0%
€81S07
88TS0V
T61V0V
T06€0V
LSTSOV
952101
S€00T

9%6101
LTTISOV
8TIS0V
759001
8T8V0V
LvCe0l
€99v0V
0¥ee0T
LL8OOT
Z68€E0V
£S6V0V
ovee0T
9¢€6V%0V
806%0V
9SCT0T
968707
€L8V0V
LL9EQY
L69%0V
9€ELYOV
8€6E0V
9L9V0V
0L9V0V
c8ee0¥
61T9%0%
T29%07
656¢€0¥

00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 6671
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661

# uosisgd bag ueg

T oswrl uny

8T/1T1/%0
Z29LTad

£95T6 D
19616 D
8¥ST6 D
£€ST6 D
SZST6 D
z6¥1i6e D
887v16 MO
L8FTI6 MO
YLYI6 D
0LYTI6 D
899716 D
8G¥16 D
YP¥T16 2D
0v¥TI6 D
10%16 D
6¥€16 D
6EET6 D
L2216 AD
8€0I6 D
0€E0T6 D
18806 D
LT806 D
£9%06 D
€806 D
¥0Z06 D
£5868 D
96968 D
6€968 D
65¥68 D
08€68 D
61188 D
YESLE D
6€¥L8 D
L9698 D
€VL98 D
8€L98 D
9L998 D
$2998 D
11998 D
6¥¥98 D
G6T98 D
£L098 D
12098 D
19468 XD
66678 D
06€E€8 D
0SZE8 D
L1628 D
16528 D
SL¥Z8 D
¥0¥28 D
€L6T8 D
LE6T8 MO
zze18 MAD

# >oayd di

: 93eg uny

:ON 3xoday



LL" 95 81/0€/€
€V 9LT'T 81/0¢€/¢€
N LO T#E'0T 8T1/0€/¢€
05°28 81/0¢€/€
YSOVZY VT 81/0€/€
€2°86¢C 81/0€/¢€
05" 6% 81/0€/¢€
1Z2°9T¢ 8T1/0€/€
PP SY0‘Y 8T/0¢€/¢€
0Z°116°'2 81/0€/¢€
00°000'TT 81/0€/¢€
00°08T 81/0€/¢€
18°2S8°T 8T1/0€/€
SL°T60°€E 81/0¢€/¢€
Y€ 659°T 81/0¢€/€
T6 €T 81/0¢€/¢€
00 S¥¢€ 81/0¢€/¢€
19°662 8T/0€/¢
00°9LZ 8T/0€/€
€6 6¥¥ 8T1/0¢€/€
00°00S°2 81/0€/¢€
€0° L6 81/0€/¢
09°¢¥he 81/0€/¢€
82°0CT'¥ 81/0€/¢€
00°08 81/0¢€/¢€
00°00S 8T/0€/€
¥0°L¥9 81/0¢€/¢
¥9°6L9°€ 81/0¢/¢
86 €1T 81/0¢€/¢€
zZ1' vl 81/0¢€/¢
¥€°296°C 81/0¢€/¢
¥6° LT 81/0¢€/¢€
ZE'STIT 81/0¢€/¢
LE 6LT 81/0¢€/€
00°G€T 81/0¢€/¢
1A% 8T/0€/¢€
00°0%6°L 8T/0€/¢
00°09 8T1/0€/¢€
00 "¥SE’'TT 81/0¢€/¢
8Z°60T 81/0¢€/¢€
00°0LS 81/0¢€/¢
86 VLY 81/0¢€/¢€
LT 9ST 81/0¢€/¢
9Z°598'8¢€ 81/0¢€/¢
L9 €S 81/0¢€/¢€
0S°0T 81/0€/¢€
00°69T 81/0€/€
00°2L1'2 8T/0€/¢€
00°02 81/91/¢€
00 ¥Z¢€ 8T1/91/¢
00°96 81/91/¢
00° 002 81/91/¢
S¥ €LY 81/91/¢
€9°TTO0‘T 81/91/¢
JUNOWY 33ed JooyuD
81/T€/€ - 00/00/0

666666 Ubnoayl T

DN
4 abeg

s3oayD BuTpuerlSINO
TINNODOV SwdITINSVIHL

ALNNOD AHIOLS

D71 gdr

DT HDENOS ILI

DONI ANVAWOD ITIVS MONH

ONI aNvdavodd IOdS J1OH
HLIYEH NMOLIWOH

HDIA¥ES IIdA¥D 104d3d FWOH
NIFHDOS XINIH

ai1 INIVW TTIDVd4 XA71ddnS aH
ar1 ‘JvH

D HANAVYM “MDIMAAVH

IATOS SSANISNEG AN JALYIID
WOL ‘AYAGSNYID

YIONIVID

WNFTOYLAd 1ES/ILYD NIATOD
dT SYOTIAIYHA

ONI SASIVJYALNT NOSNOIHA
OTT ‘SNOILYDINAWWOD D24
ANVANWOD TUYNILSYA

NIJ IVIDYHWWOD MNVIHAT
ONI X1ddNS OLAY ILIOITTH

T AANYD ‘N¥ONNA
NOILWYIOdd0D sdd HSIA

ONI SMEAOTO TYDIQHW HSVYA
ONI ’‘ANOIDIIANOD

(DA) FTIDINOYHD MDOLSWOD
IYANNOd A¥ILIAWID MDOLSWOD
TOS INWONW WNDOd AILATIWOD
ONI HJIL DWD

ATddNS AVVIINVS TYILNID
dIHSYANIYYd ODTIdED
dTIHSYANIIYA ODTIdD
SANIONE TIVWS NOSIAVYD

0D NOIIYLIINYS TYIIdVYD
TTYNOISSHAONd ¥ SSANISNG
SIMAT LIODS ‘TII3dANE
NYWEINg

ONI ‘DI¥IDITII S9OI¥d

d TIEsSsSNd ‘NOANVJdd

#S ONILTINSNOD N¥0d HTILLVE
OTT II ALITIFOW L3IV

AIN J0 DOSSY S.dOSSASSY
ONI ONIHSITANd YIAYDIV
SSANTTIIM ANY HITIVHEH DIV
NOILOAYLSNOD SHWY

ONI 0DSTIY

ONI MDOT ANIJTIY

d HAIALAd ‘NMOId

AN ANVAWOD X FISITIVD ¥
I901L ‘NILLIHM

YAVAIN ‘AINNOD HOHSYM

ONI SdN0L ALID VINIDIIA
(DA) HEDIAJOLSOA Sn
O9YDIHD JO ALISIIAINA
YINJOAITYD AI 0D AFHOLVHI

sweN s2AoTduy/I0puUsp
woxd

#309yD woig

0G:¢ge:¢eT

LTEEO0T
veEBEOY
Z6TV0V
€9LE0V
99¢v0¥
688001
0v0E0V
£86C0T1
8LLYVOY
16Tv0V
LTZSOV
80S¥0V
668101
968V0V
SL6EOY
S8V10T
LSLYOV
60SVOV
vS0S0¥
LYSYOV
0TZS0%
S06C0V
¥89¥0%
9TZS0¥
26966

066€0V
898¥%0%
YETSOV
SE9¢0V
89Z¢€0V
89C¢€0¥
§5S00T
90Cy0¥
£9%00T
TLOEOY
88%00T
10250V
vE9VO0V
€0TSO¥
£9966

T90€0T
0CP¥0v
169€0%
SE6V0V
SETO0T
S6LEOY
6LTSOV
S6EV0V
T9LV0V
0STEOV
€68€0Y
S¥8T0T
cCSyov
S8TSOV

# uosasg

: swWTL uny

00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
bas jqueg
8T/TT/%0
Z29L1a9d

¥E9T6 D
€€9T6 D
ZE9T6 D
1€9T6 D
0£916 D
6Z9T6 D
82916 D
LZ9T6 D
9Z9T6 D
SZ9T6 D
$Z9T6 D
€29T6 D
2zZ91t6 D
12916 YD
02916 D
619T6 D
8T9T6 D
LT9T6 D
9T19T6 D
SI9T6 D
PI9T6 D
€I9T6 D
TI9T6 D
TI9T6 D
0TI9T6 D
609T6 D
809T6 D
L09T6 D
909T6 D
S09T6 D
$09T6 D
€0916 D
Z0916 D
109T6 D
00916 MO
66GT6 D
86516 D
L6ST6 D
96416 D
S6516 D
$6ST6 D
€6GT6 D
26GT6 D
16GT6 D
065T6 D
68ST6 D
88GT6 D
L8ST6 D
$8516 D
6LS516 D
9LST6 D
PLST6 D
€LST6 D
G95T6 D

# yoeyd di
¢ @3eg uny

:ON 3xoday



zZo-zot‘sce :Tej0q 2dAL
¥0°9¢T 81/0€/¢
00°06T 81/0¢€/¢
Z28°0SZ 81/0¢€/¢
00°062°T 81/0€/¢€
00822 8T/0€/€
00°0¢€2 8T/0¢€/¢
8¢€°T6C 81/0€/€
TL ZPT'T 81/0¢€/€
SZ T0%’E 81/0¢€/¢€
82 bS6°1 8T/0€/¢€
00°00T 81/0€/€
06°b6¥ 81/0¢€/€
00°G662'1T 81/0¢/€
00" 8¢€ 8T1/0€/€
00°008°9 81/0¢€/€
$0° €02 81/0¢€/¢€
08°089'T 81/0€/¢€
67 6¢€ 81/0¢€/¢€
00° 9L 81/0¢€/¢€
00°GS 8T1/0€/€
80 8ET'CT 81/0¢€/¢
96° %62 81/0¢€/¢
00°08T 81/0¢€/¢€
00°9 81/0¢€/¢€
00°%22 81/0¢€/€
00°021T'€ 81/0¢8/¢€
00°00T 81/0€/€
80°9¥Z 81/0¢€/¢€
PYL8T 81/0¢€/¢€
00°000°T 81/0¢€/¢
00°9¢ 81/0¢/¢€
00°0S 8t1/0¢€/¢
00°02€’'T 81/0€/€
00°006 81/0¢€/€
00°S6T 81/0¢€/¢€
00°0¢ 81/0¢€/¢€
00" v¥ 81/0¢€/€
00°01S 81/0¢€/¢€
8E€ 6EL 81/0€/¢€
0s°2Z62 8T/0¢€/¢€
00°L9€E'C 81/0¢€/€
T€E°6T 81/0¢g/€
¥Z°€25°¢€ 81/0¢€/¢€
L0569 81/0€/€
00°GL 81/0€/¢€
00°%92 81/0¢/€
ST 6%%'% 81/0€/¢€
0o°ssz’‘z 81/0¢/¢€
€€°81 81/0¢€/¢€
Z6°S0€E 81/0¢/€
00°9TT 81/0€/¢€
00" LSL 81/0¢€/¢€
Junowuy a33ed Io=UD
81/Te/€ - 00/00/0
666666 ybnoayy t #OoUD

DN
€ abed

syoayD burpueisino
ILNOODOVY SwJdTINSYIAL
AINNOD AHIOLS

0D A1ddANS VYAYAAN NJYdISHM
Y1 TYINIWNOJAIANT NIHLSHM
DONI ‘NYId HDIA¥AS NOISTA
qdA SANVTIHOIH VINIDIIA
ONI S¥NOL ALID YINIDJIIA
DIDA

ONI IOW SIDIAYIS HSYD ¥sn
0D SNI HIVOHIIVHHAALINO
ONI ‘SHIDOTONHOAL ¥HATAL
D17 WNATOYLId SYWOHL
dWALYWAHIHL

ANVAWOD dHHDIVHL

dJdod MY'T JNOYH NOLINS
SEHSIYJUAING MVdd NAS

DT ‘SHIVIDOSSY ¥ ATAILS
‘SNOILVOINNKWNWOD AVILSTAVYIS
S ® ENIM SJYIAZVIO NIFTHLOOS
YJHINZD 50dd ® 004 SHLIWS
vda D77 SHINISNANI MDITS
ONI TO¥INOD 1SdAd VddAIS
0D ¥AMOd DIJAIDVd WHJHAIS
ATIM SSENISNG AN NIHHLAON
SWHLSAS TOUILNOD VIIHIS
NATIV NYId¥d ‘dYOHS

DONI SYOINIIdLSTA MAYWIHHS
dT1 ‘SIIYH ¥ dAMOd

TIYS ¥ HWVHYYED ‘SS0Y
ADNVINGWY NIVINQOW AMDON
NVdD I9909 ‘S1¥dd0d

DNI SMOHSAVOY

ONI ALAIVIDHAJS HOHYI ONFd
AHN A0 D0SSVY SdIqioDad
(YD) ONI 0D NVDIOW AVY
DONI ‘0LsdENd

DONI SHMOY AINLIdA

ANVAJIL ‘ILLIIAIL

d OTIDNV ‘ININLAJ

ANVAWOD X SETIMONM AETddd
ANYAWOD ¥OLVAITHA SILO

ONI IHODISNIRALJO

OTT HNILIASNOD NOILJYON
NOILVXYL I1ddd AdN
SANNOYD ® 9T NIWAY AIN
NI SNOILNTOS HDIJA0 OQULINW
I¥AG0d ‘ AFNNIMDW

NOISNYKW AWVMDVW

DONI SHIYOLVHOIYI YW

DT SINIAT dN1d AIndIT
HJAI7T TYNOILYN NTIODNIT
MHHD ¥V aNdET

SNOS ® SILdND N 1

W 3705 d0 ¥¥0d T HLIANNIN

sweN Sa4o1dwg/IOpuUusA

woxg
woIg

0G9:€€- €T

0C6T0T
LETEOT
TEYPOTY
€TLEOY
£68E0V
€86€07
298%¥0¥
940507V
ZITS0V
SY8%0%
98L10T
S8ISOY
YPCS0¥
Z68E€0V
€CCTSOV
TL8%0F
S61TV0V
¥8EE0Y
08%€0¥
CESTOT
0€9T071
£69€07V
199201
L8TIVOV
T8050%
ZCZSoy
0vCS0ov
SESTOT
S60S50%
1Z9€0V
Yv6€07
L0OEEOT
LEGZOY
£vZS0Y
VEVIOL
ERZ41024
568€07V
TLEEOY
9VLYOV
81IVOV
€91v07V
SEETO0T
8CZTO0T
880¥07
ZvZS0¥%
LLOSOY
€9Ev0V
ZO0T%0OV%
LT9%0V
SOTPO%
O%0T0T
vZZS0V

00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 6671
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661

# uosiog bag jueg

: oswrl uny

8T/TT/%0

98916 D
G89T6 D
$89T6 D
€8916 MD
Z89T6 D
189T6 XD
08916 D
6L9T6 D
8L9T6 D
LL9T6 D
9L9T16 D
SL9T6 D
PL9T6 D
€L9T6 D
ZL9T6 D
TL9T6 D
0L9T6 D
699T6 D
899T6 MO
L9916 D
99916 D
59916 D
$9916 D
€99T6 M
Z99T16 MD
T99T6 D
09916 D
65916 D
86916 XD
LS9T16 D
96916 D
SG9T6 D
$59T6 D
€G9T6 D
ZG9T6 D
15916 D
059T6 D
6%¥9T6 D
8¥9T6 D
L¥9T6 D
9%916 D
S¥9T6 D
¥%916 D
€¥9T6 MO
Z¥916 D
I¥9T6 D
0%916 MO
6€9T6 AD
8€916 MO
LE9T6 D
9€9T6 D
S€916 D

# 3osyp di
: 89jeg unyg

Z9.13g :ON 3xodey



6T °%06°L9L’S :Te30L

6T °¥06°L9L'S :Te3j0g jued

YT ETL'S :Te3or odAL

21216 8T/€2/¢€ L YD ‘SSHH

00°0TI%‘T 8T/€c/¢ LZZ%# D0SSY ¥IIHDIA FIIJ

05°6€S 81/€2/¢ SHENA NOINN/FWDSIY

Z1°216 8T/60/€ L oA¥D ‘SSHH

09°L 81/¢€2/cT (NIODNIT) ADNYANSNI HAIT

€6°9¢€L 9T/80/% HONYINSNI dJIT

€5°€PT'T ST/60/01 dnANd HAXOTAWH/TYOIAINW

€L°0S S1/%1/8 GZT °"SNI H4IT IVINOTIOD

TL°0T ¥1/ST/8 Y¥O/NOILDATIOD IFA AJTUTHS

€6 °8LO'TES’S :Te3jol °dAL

£€6°8L0°TES’S 81/10/¢ YISHAL

00°000‘9 :Te3ol =2dAg

00°000°9 8T/91/¢ D17 dnodd JILIOd
junowy 23ed o3ayud sweN S3koTdwd/I0pusp

8T/1€/€ - 00/00/0 woxa
666666 Ubnoayy 1 #309UD woxg

s)oayD butpueilsino

ONILNANODOVY S.ddINSVHIL 0S5 ¢€g:¢eT

¥ abeg

XLNNOD XHYOLS

[N

T0S006
Z0%¥006
1t

911006
£1T006
LOTO06
102006
ST9006

ZSLY0Y

L9970V

00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661

# uosaagd beg sueg

T 2wty uny

81/T1/%0
Z29L1Tad

LST9E ¥d
96T9¢ d¥d
GST9¢ d¥d
8¢T9¢ dd
5609¢ Ydd
£€T0SE dd
YLLYE ¥d
SoLvE dd
TecvE ¥4
8TT L4
(44 od
# >osud di
: 23eQ uny
:oN 3x0day



00"
00°

-00°000°000°T

-9%° 0%b ‘68L

-€8°0¥%TLOZ

-16°8€T'99T b

-56°925°%
T8°86Z°LPT

-1 12V €6

-L8°L8L'¥TL

-£0°8TE

-10°286 ‘10T

~PE 00T L96’T

-LS 6YE'6ZT
00°

-69°¥0T %%

~¥1°825'9¢2

-8L €TT'TS

-GL"668°PLI’T

-06°L0S ‘66

-SL T6L TOT

-0Z°9EL TES

-00°0L

-85 TLI€90°€

-¥L2Z6Z°LYE
00"

-00°099

-00°000°000°T

-LLT6LB YTE'T

-9 STT'I80°2

-5Z°0L0°Z16

-88°€SZ ‘109
00°STZ €%

-LZ"9L8 %8
00"

00"
¥S°6¥9°66

STTTTI0T

-$9°5LZ2'8L9
00"

-L%° 000 T6%
6% TEZ‘89E'T
007002
0070002
00°001°T
0E"6€EY
0L ¥68°8LT'S
05°20Z°6ST L
86°L86°L8T’S
00"

00"
0L €TV'S
9€°LYE'8
00"

-92 ' PL9'6TO'T -£0°6S%'C¥6°L

FONV'IVE ONICGNI 1IN0 SYFISNVAL NI SHFIISNVAL

T abeg

SYTHONOA NINOL STIOYAYL

LAFHS ONIDNV'IVH XATHLNOW
HNIINNODOV S« dTINSYALL
ATANSYIALL ALNNOD AFTAOLS

00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00"

00" 00" -00°000'000°T
L0 ZVEE -2 $85°1S2 -TELBT THS
00" 00" -€8°0¥T'L0Z
LT 98T L8 -98°0L9 LSV -08°9T£’'880'%
6L°T9E"L -00°02L'L -66°805'6
69°T¥Z ¥¥ -86°L6E 66 L6 E¥8ELT
98°8L5 912 -00°000°0TE 00"

00" 00" -LB87LBL'¥TL
00" 00" -€0°8TE
S0°S09°T 00" -90°L8S€0T
00" 00" -PET 00T 'LI6 T
00" -00°00S -L5°698°821
00" 00" 00"

L8 LST -0L 8%8'C -98 €TV 1¥
00" -6Z°LSV'8 -S8°040'8T
00°¥Z€ -00°S¥L -8L°Z6L°TS
SLUTTY L -€5°8€£Z 09T -L6°280'225'T
S8 YEY’T -91°295/01 -65°08S'06

0L €S8 ‘8L -62°€LT €8 -9T°ZLE L6
LO"E€0 60V -0L 2E6'ZEY -L5°9€8°L0S
00°0L -00° 0% -00°00T
¥6°6£9'G90°T -00°9€EL'¥¥0’'T -BS 06€'S06°€
Y1806 1T -€5°TT0'2E -L9°Z8T1'9€E
00" 00" 00"

00" 00" -00°099

00" 00" -00°000'000°T
96°66Z ‘LT -Z8°96€'SY -LZ 90%'STE’T
00" -81°868 €T -8Z°LTT'LSO’2
9z LZS'TL 00" -5%°2Z8Z €91
00" -69°¥LZ'8T -61°6L6°2LS
00" 00" 00°STZT €%
00" 00" -L7°948'%8
00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00"

00" 00" ¥S 6¥9°66
00" -00°0ST -T1°198
08°9L6'LY -S¥ 0EL'TL -08°196TLY
00" 00" 00"

€9°8€€'€E -S6°E€€9'S -ST°S0L 88V
€V°LS6'G98°S -9T°%IE2ZS‘T -9€ TEE'€0E’¥
00" 00" 00°002

00" 00" 00°000°2

00" 00" 00°00T‘T

00" 00" 0E" 6%

00" 00" 0L ¥68°8LT'8
00" 00" 05°202°6ST L

TS LT6'665°S PSS 6TT'TEE'TT

00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00"

00" 00°002 oL €£z2's

00" 00" 9€°LY¥6 '8

00" 00" 00"
SINZWISINESIA SIATdoad agumaod - 'TveE

ONIQTOH S3XYL 4aANDIS
ONIOTOH SIXVL AIINDISNO
FYIA LOILONUd TYLIAYD
aIv TYNLOW

ADNIOYIWA FYIJ
IDI¥ISIA FHIZ

ISNOH Y¥Ad0 SdAdId
NOISSIWWOD WSIJNOL DA
NOISSIWWOD I%A

IDEro¥d TIVd DA

aNnd Sa1d TINC S, dJI¥EHS
SINVED TV¥Iaad
MOVEAY IUL

aNna MAYd

1IN IdL

aNNd LAINOD 3DILsSNEC
INIAIDOV INIHIANT
LIN0D LOIVLSIA

FIVLS

aNng ADOTONHDAL

LE8a TOOHDS

TTOOHDS

JAN0D SMIa

0D¥Yd STTAM ANOE ¥asn
¥EAMES FATIAIG YINIDUIA
ALID VINIONIA 40 NMOL
TIIH @109 40 NMOL
NOILVZITIGVLS

WHLSAS JALUM

aNnd FENLONALSYEANT
SLDELO¥d TYLIAYD
NOILISINDOVY ILNIWJINDI
ADIAYES

aIv TYNLOW

IDI¥LSIA FNIA
ZONEONINE FIId

FATA

NOIINLIISIY

savod

XY1- EINYLSISSY INEOIGNI
TYDIQEW INIDIANT
TYIANTD

YOSSHASSY HSYD ALLAL
JATHEHS HSYD ALLAd
HSYD ALLEd

SNIOD a10

INNODDY dI®T HIVLS
LYYW AANOW ODIVd STTIM
INOODOVY DD O9¥Vd STTEM
SATYS ALYI40¥d ¥ 40 €
SAQAYDD NNVd SSINISNG
JMNVE NI HSYD

ONIQTOH IdNOD IDTHULSIA
HSYD ¥AsSnN ODW¢A STIEM

NOILEI¥Osda

€2:%E:€T 8T/TT/%0

006
oos
082
oL
09¢
0sT
1€2
0€T
TZ¢C
2144
0Tz
902
00T
06T
68T
LBT
S8T
08T
0LT
S91T
091
0ST
0yl
SET
0€T
0ozt
011
00T
060
080
0LO
090
0Ss0
5%0
0%0
SE0
0€0
¥20
0zo
STO
0TO
T00
S06
v06
€06
T06
961
16T
66T
86T
L6T
S6T
v61
€61

LO¥

uny

00TZYL :ON 3x0day



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting ate: April 17,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $700,133.54 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $212,735.43.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4, Staff Summary: Attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

@i}partment Head Department Name: Treasurer
( ,g’v" County Manager Other Agency Review: G ad

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

DI



AUVYNIWITIN™G

4

abeg

YTANSTIUL

HATTOULAWOD

YANOISSIWWOD YINOISSINWOD NYWIIVHD

1 SI9UOTSSTWWO) JO paeog Ajuno) Asixols ayl Aq pasoxddy

¥8°256°S9 :§30aYD I030NpPad TeIOoL
00" 1§44 A0J IdISUBRII IS Te3I0L
Junouy eaded # pea # aa

/# dwd  /309yd

8T/€0/%0 :93jed odUd go3onpag :odAlL T10xAed
I938Tb9y Yooud S0:%0°9T 8T/€0/%0 :uny
WALSAS TTIO¥AVd ALNNOD AZIOLS v0T150dd :3dsy



TYNISA
z abeq

YINOISSIWWOD

WHINSYILL

YITTOLLANOD

YIANOISSINWOD

NYWJIVHD

SI9UOTSSTWWO) JO pirog Ajuno) Asi03is a8yl Aq paaoaddy

0V 969°C%1

00"

Jjunowuy

81/€0/%0 :93ed X0aYd

I93stbay oeoyd
WILSAS TTO¥AVd ALNNOD AFYOLS

$E)08YD x030MpPagd [RIOL

tSdLAd I07 I9FBUBRI] IIS[] TBI0OL

994ded # pdaa # aa
/% dwg  /yo9ud

1o03onpag :adAr T10xAed

85:T0°9T 8T/€0/%0 :uny
¥otTS0¥d :adey



VIUNSVIEL

JJTTOTLANOD
FANOISSTIWWOD YINOISSIWWOD NVWAIVYHD
:SI2UOTSSTWWO) 3JOo paeod Ajuno) Aaxols oyl Aq pasoxddy
0€ " ¥8Y'T6¥ tpasanNgsIaQ
09°'91S'6E 110300pag 03 IdIsueI] I9SN
L1°89€°9T ta114 dog a1 uo pas3ix speg okordwm
88°8G8'¥%LZ :31sodag 309a1q eskotrdug
8L°02C'T rs)009y) sakotdug
9T €€2 211 :8)0aYD I03DNpag
1L°982'LY 84148 I07 Id¥FsueI] I3Sf)
Junowy ovhked # pea
/# dug
6 8 L 9 S ¥ € g 1 :sdnoxd [1oIAeg
81/T0/%0 :93ed PUd-POTIa] 81/90/%0 :93ed o3yd eTnbay :odAl 110xkeg
A¥YNINWITIIG I33s1b9y ¥oayD

S

ebed

WALSAS TIO¥AVd ALINNCO

Te3olL

TeloLn
Te3oL
TeljoL
Te3joLn
TeljoLn

Te30L

# aa
/3P9ud

9T:ZE¥T 8T/¥0/%0 :uny
AJ¥0LS ¥0150¥d :3day



T

TYLOL
agvo

abeqg

€E€°CTIT
v6°9¢
22 9SS
69°0S
88°6LT
00°60¢2
96" 6S€E
€671
22" v86
LL"8T6
0€E"€2S
00°82T1
00°0ST
v vee
00° SV
92° 9L
IL°8
6S°6L
00°002
00°L2T
¥S°2S
00°S6
00°8T¥
LETEY
8% ¥S
T9°0T

LNNOWVY

82ST
8281
8291
8291
€9€T
(42
Y9ET
SSET
SSET
SSET
8281
YSET
SSET
SS¢ET
89¢T
8SET
8SET
8SET
LSET
ZSET
29¢€T
29¢T
¢9¢eT
Z9€T
€£9€T
C9ET
YSET
8SET
YSET
PSET
YSET
YSET
SSET
19€T
82ZST
82ST
C9€ET
29¢€T
£SET
€SET
82ST
Z9¢€T
Z9¢€T
v9te1l
SSET
SSET
SSET
GSET
8ZST
6S€ET
SSET
8¢ST
82ST
82ST
8SET

H#SNYAL

81/0€/¢
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0E/E
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0E/€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€E/€
8T/0E/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/€
8T/0E/€
8T/0€E/€E
8T/0€E/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€E/€
8T/0€E/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢
81/0€/€
8T/0€/€
g8t/0€/¢
8T/0€/€

aLva

dAAOVE A¥ILLIVE
dNAOVE A¥dLLVE
SdNAOVE X¥ILLVE

LINOW + dNMOVd AdILLYE

X0d Od s¥ddId
X0d dDI4J40 I1S0d O1dA
HONNT ONILEIW dd¥ IiA

SNVAL €9Vi)/ILLIdEId
ONINIVIL S¥d

LT HONVSINN

TINA ‘GIYD -YOLOW MOTd
A¥3LILYd ALN ZL 1S
YOLADNNOD TLT-¥

WI £Odd ¥aMAS PL ad Md

Md ANNJITA
JSUNGWIHE OL Md
401440 §

DIDOT HAOD WOHA

N7 d0o¥H INIANLS V¥ID44A
NT dNo¥H INIANLS ¥ID4d

SONILIIW HONNT LNIDOA

WOOY THLOH ONIddIVLNVA

SYHAdId ¥0d SANOHA
NDISJIANI ¥ dOHSOLOHAd
JAYHSAWVT -HO

AdV  FDIJ40 dWHL MAITO

YIATT AVLNI -DD0A
S4IT4dNs D39

SONY -AZAWOD
SYIAATOHAWY'T -HO
YOLOWILIY TOOL SL LIS

8T/LTAd MLAS O¥d HEOAY

I dSNI 9014 Y04 LSHL
SASAQ ADIAJ0 NId T1INd
0dAdIA SLIVUIAS

¥ INIAT % O3dAIA A¥J RO

YIAYA TIVL -SYVHES
AONIYIAINOD ALIAVS
1SHL/SSYTD TaDXI

ONIYHANOD *DES WSIANOL

HONANT d¥D ONIddIJLNVIN
NOILdI¥OSHNS WOD ' X0d
DONIDAOT ONINIVIL

NOIVLAOdSNVIL ONINIVIL

ASVIID

ATIGHSANIM
avdW " ¥ /30048 HAOD S10Z
INOHd HALITTILYS
NOILYONAH

X3 SNId ©d1d ISAL

Id FHL ¥04 ATdNS ALAVS

ADNUL MYOM ¥O4 TIANA

YNE LNALS ‘NY¥Td ¥ISW HL

NOILJIY¥DSEA

YALSIDAY VD HFSYHOUNd

ALNAOOD AHAOLS

60LEOD
60LEOO

60LEOOD

60LEOO

sdsn air

sdsn al

NOIHSYd dT0 SaF¥ al
12/€0 ILIFYIId "L
0Z/£0 ILIIYAI4 "L
61/€0 ILLINAIL "L
SEANYY.LS

NZ TIVWS AN -YILIEAS
0Z/€0 SNINAY "¥
60/€0 SNINAY 'd
ASNOH ONILSYOA Md
IT9d S NYWMEN Md
OD¥N Md

ADVYWYYHA STHYA Md
¥ATD Ol AIVd-IAVISINW
SM00€ LIIMSITIVHSUVH
dSNOH ONILSYOY aX
NOIHSVd Q70 Sady ax
FOVIVd ai

TIIH a109 ax
NOZVWY aX

HE0aV a3

D0d dWY'T a-Mr
gO¥dsIING 40

€1/€ QH-H44EL

€1/€ AQH -HJ4JAL

aH -H4Jdre

1DdTE NOQ¥0D -HIJIAL
§Z/€0 2Z17ddS °r
962Z09¥88# ANI
avaw/a13rd

aTard

plololzicol £

A00gIIVA

0SDS - ANOL ‘NHSOd
0SDS - ANOL ‘NISOA
NOTTIA

ALI¥NDAS WSI¥YNOL dd
ASAOH ¥AAID dd
WOD " X0d aa

0Z/€0 ¥IVIOLS "d
61/€0 ¥WIVIOLS ‘A
Z2Z/€0 ¥EAANS "Q
60/€0 ¥IAANS A
SILIND

LS0davoyd -NIAIN'D
§1/€0 HSITIIL "D
ATEAVIE
AVAN/OAAAIZY
0aaAIZY

FSNOH ONILSYOd OY

INFWAVd J¥VY0 TVIDYEWWOD ENO STTEM

# IDIOANI 1ddd-aNnd

JOANIA

81/62/€0

Ls08¥Ssdd

2ET

TGN

od
ajeq uny
oN 3xoday

.



90°968°€T 90°S68 ‘€T 00" 00" 00" 00" IYLOL

65°6L 6S°6L 00" 00" 00- 00° aI¥ TYNLON 0LZ
89°S0S'T 89°S0S'T 00" 00" 00" 00° LY LOIMLSIA A¥Id 0S¢C
8€°281 8€° 28T 00° 00" 00" 00 dSNOH v¥dd0 S¥ddId 1¢ec
T0°v9L’€ T0"P9L°€E 00° 00" 00" 00° NOISSIWWOD WSI¥NOL DA 0€Z
00" €L 00" €L 00° 00" 00- 00 NOISSIWWOD LA 1Z¢
92681 927681 00" 00° 00" 00" sSavod 020
PT°TI0T°8 $T°101°8 00" 00" 00° 00° TYYaNdd TO0O0
TYLOL SAQYYO FSVHOUNd SMO DINOYLDHTH SHASNVAL LO3TI SADFHO SADEHD TIJAL NOILAI¥DSdId dNN4

1M0dHd AAVWKWAS aNNA
9€:¥0:0T : SWIL uny ONILINNODOV 1EHANE DITANd 81/6Z/€0 : ®3ed UNA
T  9bea ALNNOD ATUOLS 00£v8d FoN 3Iodey

»



90°568'€1T

90°568° €1

L6°06
26°58
78 TO0T
89°98
SL 08E'Z
9¢'9s¢
§9°0S¢
86°61T
S6°6ET
66°SY
%6 LSS

IYIOL LNNOWY
@AVD

z abedq

aLva

HIANOISSIWWOD

NOILVZI¥YOHLNV ANV MIIATY 40 LNIWIODAITMONADY

81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€E/€
81/0€/¢
8T/0€/€
8T1/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€E/€
8T/0€E/€
81/0¢€/¢€

JLva

15 0SoA

18d ¥LiIS

150 AEANOD

18 DO0DA

dE4Id ISNOHLINOD
dIndd SHIHAVID ¥d
SYALNIYd AHAWOD
ALYOIATLYEAD 1ISS
IO NOS¥VD LINAN HOVAIOLS
dMOVHE AYILLVE
SANADVE AUALIVYE

NOILdI¥DSHA

JALSIDAY qUVYO dSVYHOIN

AINNOD AHIOLS

UM90C0A6MANLESS
ddD0C0A6MANLESS
QLARE0A6MANLLSS
LLdSZOVEMARLESS
Z0v091%2¥%2
96¥9Z7%81
0SLST?P8T
8%02162C8CT
geTveLo

9T¥LOO

91%L00

# FIDIOANI

+Te30] pIeds

Ldadq-aNng

HOANIA

81/6Z/€0
1508%54d

YTEWON
od

a3eqg uny

ON uuomm#

.

.

>
~



T

v0'LY9

v9°6L9E

86 ETT
[ANR At

vE-e9s‘e

¥6° LT
2e'STIT
LE'6LT

00°SET

142044
00°0%6°L
00°09
00" ¥SE'TT
8Z°60T
00°0LS
86" VLY
LT 98T
9z°598°8¢

L9° €S

0S°0T
00°691
00°zZL1’‘2
TY.LOL
MDEHD

abed

2s eyt
¢S E0¢E

08°666
26659
00°220°'1
26°L66
86 ETT
[N A
16°ve
y1-sLe’‘e
T16°vE
8E"LTT
¥6° LT
CE'STT
LE'6LT

0s-ze
0S° 21T

(AR 44
00°0%6°L
00°09

00" %SE'TT
8Z°60T
00°0LS
86° VLY

LT 98T
9z°598 ‘8¢
¢5°01
85702
LL' g
08°€T
0S°0T
00°69T

oo-zLi‘e

LNOOWY

v66t8
v66€8

668¢8
668€8
668ES
668¢E8
£E6ES
866€8
9v6E8
9v6€8
9v6¢€8
9v6¢€8
868t8
LZ6E8
Teecg

£96€8
£56€E8

T66¢t8
s00v8
cL6ES
896¢t8
986€8
826¢€8
Svees
vL6EB
156¢€8
oLete8
0L6ES
oLéees
oLees
L68ES
968€8

S16€8

H#SNVIL

81/0¢€/¢€
8T/0¢€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
8T/0E/€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0¢€/¢€
8T/0€E/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€

81/0¢€/¢
8t/0¢/¢t

8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢
81/0€/¢
8T/0€/€
8T/0E/E
8T/0€/¢
8T/0€/€
8T/0E/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€E/¢
8T/0€/¢
81/0€/¢
8T/0€/€

81/0¢g/¢

dLVa

81/0€/€

ZYE€-1L9692T AN/ATY WIA-DWI
LLT-L969ZT ¥N/ATE WII-DWI

SHYIL -MOTd¥ZZB8YMd
SHIIL CvLEIMA

SHYIL €12290S

SHYIL €0LmMA

4l TIvC

YITTOHULIWOD

OV ONINNY'Id LZEZSEEDB6
HdId 90vEEEE0B6

O ONINNVId LLETEELEOB6
W JITIHHS Z0L68T£086
dWnd TaNd Zi-4

SYAdId® EOIAYIS HSVUL
qasINdgsIad LNANHSINYYO

81/zz/€ - 81/8/¢
81/Zz/€ - 81/8/¢

Sd€1N€g -dOLSLSTY

WOOYd YIAYIAS OL JAMO4
NOILVALSINIWQOVY J3ITENd
LHDISHIAO dOTIAHA WWOO
SHUNIT #X SSHTIAIM
VYHINVWYS ¥ I90L

SY008 ¥IND LISIA
IYOISAHd XDINANY
ONIAVd

A¥ONOVT ¥L 1S

AYONOVT SL 1S

KYANOVT 2L 1S

RYANAVT TL LIS
SAEA-D00A

JOVNINA AFAWOD

SHANHOOYHE SSINITAVATIA

NOILdTH¥DS3d EDIOANI

YIALSIDIE ADIHD
ALNNOD AHIOLS

LVANNOd A¥dLANID ADOLSWOD

TOS LNWONW WND0d JLATIWOD

ONI HFdIL OWO
ATddNS AYVYIINVS TVRALNID

dIHSYEANLIVd ODTTHED

dIHSYEANLYVd ODTTHED
SENIDNA TIV¥WS NOSAVO
00 NOILVLINVS TYLIAYD

TYNOISSHI0Ud ® SSEANISNH

SIMIT LIODS ‘T1adINg
NYRd1Ng

ONI ‘DIY¥IDATE S9OOIHd

d TIISSAY¥ ‘NOONVAH

g8 ONILTINSNOD N3Od ITLIVE
0711 IT ALITIEOW L®LVY

AN 40 D0SSV §.d0SSESSY
ONI ONIHSITENd YIAVDIY
SSENTTAM ANV HLIIVAH DY

NOILDOYLSNOD SEWY

ONI 0DSTY

ONI D071 ANIGTVY

d AT¥IIJ 'NMOYL

AN ANVAWOD ¥ JTSITIVO ¥
JOANIA

8T/62/€0
S1eTEd

60916

809716

L09T6
90916

S09T6

¥09T6
€0916
20916

T09Te

00816
66516
86516
L6STE
96516
S6S16
v6ST16
£€65T6
Z6ST6

16516

06ST6
68ST6
88ST6
LB8ST6
HIEWON
JDHHD

: 93eqg uny
:oN 3xoday



4

€Z°862

05°6%

TZ°91¢

Py S%0°

0z 116"

007000

00°08T

18°2S8°

SL 160"

PE 659’

T6 €TV

00°S¥E

19°66C

00°9L2

£6°6%Y

00°00S”’

£0° L6

09°'eve

8z 02T’

00°08
00" 00S

IV.LOL
MDFHD

abeg

8s LLE’'T

0€E"61C
€6°8L

66°08
-6¥°T¢€

12°91¢

14 PYLSE’T
00°889°¢2

[4 0z '116‘C

1t 00°00S°T
00°00S°6
00°08T

1 88 1tEC
SZ°8Y%1
89°ZLY'T

€ 22°2L0’T
€S°6T0°2

T 60°98¢
987066
0v-Z8e
16" €TV
00°sv¢E
19°66C
00°9LZ
95°19¢
9€°C1
€v'0¢
86°§9S

4 00°00S’2
€07 L6
09°€%Z

14 88°802°T
ov'Tle’z

00°08
00°00S

LNOOWY

696¢8

£96¢8
Z00v8

9L6ES
aLees

0T6€ER

vo6€s
v06€E8

L66€E8

886€8
888¢€8

666€8
£06€£8
£06¢€8
£06€8

co6¢€8
Z96¢€8

Sgees
T96€8
8L6ES
106¢€8
o66€8
006€8
SL6ES
zoeceg
206¢8
Z06€s8
Z06€8
£68€8
£16€8
vee6ees

£00%8
€00%8

S68¢€8
S86€8

#SNVEL

81/0¢€/¢

B1/0€/¢€
81/0E/€

8T/0€E/€
81/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢€

81/0¢€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢€

81/0€/€

81/0¢/€
81/0¢€/¢€

81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€

8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€

81/0¢€/¢€
81/0¢/¢€
81/0¢€/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢
8T/0¢€/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢
8t1/0¢g/¢
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢
8T/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢
81/0€/¢

JLva

€G000-T¥0600°9T

SUIV4IY J00d -HD
SOIaVd NV J¥IM aNNO¥D

SdIT4dNS WY
SHITddNS gWNV

SHSSYID ALIAVYS ¥ IDUITS

81/€ savod
¥/€ savod

JYOLOFAIA TVOIdEW

SHOIAYAS ONILOOV
SHOIA¥AS DNILOOVY

81r/z/€ - 81/T/T

WESOTD F00d-HD

LIN ¥ALAW dWY'ID-dOHS
VATIOH Y04 FOLOW-SIIIId

9%T 1Sq / SZE€ DIA-M1
ZSE 11Sa / €vS DAA -IHL

ANVd0odd TIVL

ANVYd0dd HO

INVdOdd SHYUIA ZL-1S

SaIT DNOO

AYEW"Y ¥0d LOANNOD HFNOHJ
SAAOTID ‘' LHAADVL

YAI4OD 61699Z0Z ¥UINOD
LAVYAVY ¥LTIA TIO TTE9SOS
SaAVYIE S8SS9ATAD

SYALTIA Z¥ELIMA

d411Id -¥3AV0T

SHDIAYES LOVILNOD
HONVIIYAd 008 TOOMMDOT AL
SHAQTD TIVC

SHNOHd 0ODSID
SENOHd ODSID

PYHD ADOLSWQOD NI av ¥IQ XH
IDEL0¥d A¥ALAWID ddH

NOILAI¥YDSEd dDIOANI

81/0€/€ WHISIHA® ADEHD

ALNNOD ATIOLS

HILTVEH NMOLIWOH
JOIA¥AS LIQH¥D LOdAA FWOH

NIHHOS XANFH

QLT INIVW TIDVA ATddNS dH

ar1 ‘IVH

D ANAVM ‘ADIMAUVH

LNT0S SSANISNE AN JALVIAD

WOL ' A¥IASNVID

HIDNIVID

WAATOULAd 13S/HLVD NAATOD

dT1 SYDTIE¥YYdd

ONI SHSI¥YAYIILNI NOSNOAAA
077 ‘SNOILVIINNWWOD DDA
ANYANOD TUYNILSVA

NId TYIDYIWWOD ANVAAIAT

ONI X1dd0NS OLNY LIOITIA
T AANVYD ’NYONNA
NOILY3Od¥0d S€d HSIA

ONI SMIAQTD TVYOIQIW HSVYA

ONI ‘INOEDYIANOD

(OA) FTOINOYHD ADOLSWOD

YOANIA

81/62/€0
S1eETEd

0€9T6

62976

82916

L2916

929716

SZ9T6

vZ91s

€2916

22916

12916

02916
61916
81316
L1916

91976

ST916
¥1916
€1916

21916

11916

01916

JITENOAN
ADIHD

ajeq uny

oN 3zodoy



€

057262

00°L9t’'Z

TE"61
vz ees‘e

L0°559

00°SL
00" %92

ST'6%%'¥%

00°s8z’z
€E'8T
26°S0¢
00911
00°LSL

LL' 9%

€EV°9LT'T

LO'TPE‘OT
0s°28
1218242 A1

TYLOL
MOEHD

abedg

05°¢6C

00°LS
00°01€°2
1e°6T
Y2 €ZS'E
00°9T
01" 12
L9'el

6€°6¢
€€°0TT

00°%92

AR A2 0
68 ¥6

00°S8Z°C
€E€°8T
26°S0¢€
00° 91T
00°LSL

85° €S
61°€

0zZ-9ze
8T°9L9
[AAR-1474
1§°SST
9L 62

9L 6C

SE'LBE
0Z-9z¢

LO"TYE’OT
0s°¢s8
96°9%1°C1

LNNOWY

996¢€8

966¢€8
966¢€8

BY6EB
906¢€8

szecs
SZ6E8
9€6€8
9tecs
L96¢€8
L96¢8
L96¢€8
[4:13%]

886¢€8
vs6€8
v00¥8
voovs
v00¥8
v00v8
v00¥8
ove6es
I86¢8
oge6cs
TL6E8
068¢8

S06€8
S06€8

L0o0Ov8
L00¥8
Loov8
L00%8
L00%8
L00%8
L00?8
Loovs

9T6¢E8
s00v8
696¢8

#SNYAL

81/0€/¢

81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢€

8T/0¢€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢
81/0¢€/¢
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€

8T1/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€E/€
81/0€/¢
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/¢
8T/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢
81/0€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢
81/0€/¢
81/0¢€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T1/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0¢€/¢€

81/0€/¢€
81/0¢t/¢
8T/0€/¢€

diva

81/0€/¢€

HOWA SL°€ 099G€L LSND

SISIA ALIAVS
SYOHDONVY ‘SIS0d NOHIS

WSIT¥NOL ALID YINIDHIA
ASYHOUNd ¥ILYM €34

FANTIAAVHS TIONEA
¥HAZ INVOVHO/MIdVd
MHQAOADIVE - STIAV'T

IId FAIM -SLI 1S0d
SYAQTO ‘¥IIVd
qTIV

SYAATAIA EV.L

ad ASNADIT V04 dANNJFd
81/2Z/€ - 81/8/¢
AD0LS 11

SISSYHD

AD0LS II

SISSYHO

FILNdROD AHTWOD
YANIVLEY HOUYW

SAVOod d4IT FIYILAY
qasdNdsIa INIWHSINYYD
YIAdLNO¥d YIAHLVAT w9

SHOIAYAS ONIYAANIONA

YONIATAQD €2Z8¥Md
TIO %ZZ8YMd

YINOL TL IS

I¥dL TIVL D0 SYOSNAS dWAL
LINLAVNS dALOOA
HAYMAAVH JIWNTIUIATIS
LANLIVWNS SANOHd dI
LANLIVHNS SENOHd

01440 OQUOIW AVAW AZTHSY
YANOL TL LS

AOVIddd 1I¥S dV¥Od L1OAN
LANYIINI CL IS
€5000-T%06009T

NOIL4I¥DSEd 3DIOANI

YIALSIODAY ADIHO
ALNNOD AJYOLS

ANVAWOD dOLVAITI SILO

ONI LHDISNIWNIJO

OTT OSNILTIASNOD NOLYON
NOILVXVI 1d3d AIN

SANNOYD 2 DCTE NIWAY AIN

NI SNOILNTOS ADIAA0 OAULAW
1dFF08 ‘' AENNINOW

NOISNVIW AVMOVNW

ONI SHI¥YOLVIOEVT WW
OT1 SINIAZ ENTd dINDIT
Z4TT TYNOILVN NTOONI'T
AdHO ¥ ANAT

SNOS * SII¥ND N 1

W FTOS ¥YL ¥Y0A T HIANNIM

0T d4r

07T d2¥N0S T1II
ONI ANVAWOD LTV¥S MONH

ONI aNvEdvodd L0O4dS LOH

dOAN3A

81/62/¢€0
STETEd

8¥91é

L%916

9%916

S¥916

v¥916

£¥916

Zv9Te

1v916

0¥916

6£9T6

8E9T6

LEITE

9€916

S€9T6

vE916

€€9T6

ZE916

1£9T6

YIHNON
JDHHD

ajeqg uny
tON 3xoday



96°v6¢
00°08T
00°9

00-vze

0o0'ozt‘e
00°00T

80°9%2

¥v°LBT
00°000°T
00°9¢
00° 0§

00°02Ze’1

007006

00°S6T

00°0€

00" v¥

00°0TS
8E°6€EL

IYLOL
MDEHD

12 abedq

00°2TT
007211

00°021°€
00°00T

¥0°€2T
v0°€2T

¥¥ L8
00°000°T
00°9¢
00°0S

007099
007099

007006

00°06
00°SoOT

00°0¢
oo2t
oo ze
00°0T
00°01S
BE'6EL

LNOWY

LO6ES
L06¢E8
LO6ES
L06¢E8
Lo6¢e8
Loscg
Lo6€s8
L06¢e8
Lo6¢es8
Lo6¢€8
L06€8
L06¢€8
Lo6¢e8
ze8¢€s8
T68¢8
S96¢€8
LS6€E8

£v6E8
£v6€8

688¢8
926¢€8

806¢€8
LL6ER

626€8
Zvees
vees
S66¢€8

T00%8
100%8

656€8

vvees
LEGES

v86¢€8
956¢€8
956€8
9G66¢€8
vi6€8
LB6ES

#SNIL

81/0€/¢€
8T/0€E/€
81/0¢€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
81T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€
8T/0€E/€
81/0¢€/¢€
8T/0E/€
81/0¢/¢
81/0€E/€

81/0€/¢
81/0¢/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€

81/0€£/¢€
81/0¢€/¢€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€

81/0€/€

81/0¢€/¢€
81/0€/¢€

81/0€/€
81/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
81/0¢/¢

qILVd

81/0€/€

# 0/d

0s 1s D § Ss02

0s 158 D § €02

¥d 1s O § 10¢

Z/T dOHS a¥ T1I0L 00T
DaTd ¥ TIOL 01T

2aT1d d¥ 7TI0L O€T
dOLSLSHd LS O N 18¢€
LINON 1S O N S%T

SHY J¥ IHOI¥YMIYVD TTI9C
¥ LS AVM NOANVD TEV
JSHAWNd LIHOIYMIAYD 0192
LHDIT 1S SYINOISSIWWOD DS
SLHDIT LS ALID VINIDVIA
YIMO0d 1O4AA FLYOLSVH
YIdVASMAN NI av dId Xd
SANSSI YALNAWOD ¥YAVOS
81/2Z/¢ - 81/8/¢

ATIN HLVANT
ATIN FLVYWNI

SHDIAYIS T¥DIAT
aNNd3Y¥ LISOId dIILVM

dTANVH TL-¥
dI¥D X¥W ¥ IHOINA

qasdNdsSIa LNAWHSINIYD
8102 SHHEIA LIFYLS ODNIY4AS
SaQI¥O LS04

AN NSSVY D3¥ S3NA NYWAVHD

YIIJOD M/€ WINHLNI
HOLVASIAQ ¥IIJOD M/€

ay¥y Nv¥Id LISIA JOHVL/ONIA

TYINIY ENIHOVKW dDVLSOd
dSVYAT ANIHOVIW HDVLSOd

TIAVIL /ONINAV WIFN
81/22/¢ - 81/8/¢
81/2Z/¢ - 81/8/¢
81/2z/€ - 81/8/¢€

SUOLINOW IVWZVH SUOSNIS
S¥HAId ® JOIVAATH

NOILJI¥DSEA HDIOANI

YALSIDIA ADIHD
ALNNOD XFAOLS

00 AAMOd DIAIDVd YHIIIS
ATIM SSENISNE AN NATHLION
SWHLSAS TOYLNOD VHNIIS

NETIV NVI¥E ‘JYOHS

ONI SIOLNEIVLSIA AYVWIIHS
dT1 ‘SATVH 3 IMOY

WVIVS 3 FWVYHVHED ‘SSOd

HONVTINEWY NIVLINNOW X3D0¥
NVILQ I€90€ ‘SL¥Id0d

ONI SMOHSQVOY

ONI ALTIYIDEdS HOHVLI ONIY

AIN 40 DOSSY S3IIAI0OHA

(¥D) ONI 0D NUDAOW AWY

DNI ‘OLSEND

ONI S3EMO€ AENLIA

ANVASIL ‘ILLEIIIL

a OTIONY ‘INIVLIA4

ANVAWOD ® SHTMONM AdTAAd

JOaNIA

81/62/€0
s1ETEd

99916
S9916
¥9916

€9916

29916
19916

09916

65316
85916
LS9T6
95916

S5916

¥S916

£S9T6

2s916

1S916

058916

6¥916

TFGNON

ADIHO
: 93eQg uny
:oN 3x0day



S

00°00T
06 ¥6%
00°S6Z°11

00°8BEE

00°008°9
¥0°€0¢
08°0S9°T
67 6€
00°9L
00°SS

80°8ET'ET

TYLIOL
ADHEHD

abedg

00°00T
06° %67
00°S62°11

00°'%62
00°6
00°St

00°008°9
v0° €02
08°069°T
67 6¢
00°9¢L
00°SS

Z%°012
Sy LIS
9S°T0T
8T €CT
ZL 06¢E
60°9¥%T
LT €€
ceze
serLze
ceEPvLE
6% 19

89 TSE’T
80 €E€T
0%" 121
v6° 60T
88 1L
€T°0L0"T
€€°€0€°2
88°2V%
S8°9L

LZ 90¢
26°2¢

zeze
£2 €€
2y €t
1Z°9¢
€8°16T
96°T€S
LS 0T
L9°8L8

LNNOWY

5S56€8
606€8
ti6E8

8s6¢€8
8s6¢€8
8S6€8

¥68¢8
12°13%2]
Lv6ES
zs6¢e8
096¢€8
676¢€8

LO6€E8
L06¢t8
LO6€ES
LO6ES
L06¢E8
L06¢€8
L06¢€8
Loecsg
L06€E8
L06E8
LO6ES
L06ES
L06€ES8
L06€ES8
L06¢8
L06¢€8
L06¢E8
L06ES
L06ES
L06¢€8
L06€E8
L06¢€8
L06ES
L06E8
L06€E8
LO6ES
L06€E8
L06¢€8
L06€E8
L06¢E8
L06¢€8
Lo6¢E8
LO6ES

#SNRAL

81/0€/€
81/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T1/0¢€/€

8T/0€/€
81/0¢€/¢€
81/0€/€
8T/0€E/€
8T/0¢/¢€
81/0€/€

8T/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/€
8T/0€/€
81/0¢€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
8T1/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€E
8T1/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0€/€
8T/0€/€
8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0€/€
81/0€/€
8T/0E/€
81/0€/€

FLVd

8T/0€E/€

# 0/4

TIVYLSNI ¥dAdd TIVL
LTHEN DI
¥STd - NIWAVY ¥doOs

gt/ze/e - 81/8/¢€
81/zz/€ - 81/8/¢
81/zz/€ - 81/8/¢

LIANY ¥OJ TVH ONINIVWIY
8T/%0- 8T1/€0 €/ ZI” OS
YIND IISIA ¥04 NID W3O
TYOIQIN ALVWNI

avdn v

TOYINOD LSHd dHD

FSHAYII LHOIUMIEYD 0192
(NIVINNOJ)ddd ad TI0L 00T
SLHOIT ¥LS HO 40 NMOL

¥ 40 € /1S NOINQ 09T
(V4340 S¥IdId) € N ZT
FOVILLOD (€ S 0T) 1S NOINN
M¥Yd Q¥ HONWY I¥dd 000T
MYV HOA Q¥ HYIJWH T¥TZ
¥ LINN AM NOANVYD 0Z¥

g LINN AYM NOANVD 0Z%

IS O N §8T

¥a N¥EJ SOLT

¥ HONYY I¥Hd 008

SIHDIT IS O § TE€S
SIHDIT 1§ D S Z¥E
SIHOIT 1S O N 9LT
ASNOHLINOD IS € § 9T
NOANVD ETIN XIS 0222
10d3A HD LINA LS NIVW
(ONINIVYL) IS O N 1%1T
SHA¥IA IS D N

MAV4TIVE 1S NOSUYO

OA ILINQ IS D S

IHOIT T¥d/¥00dLNO 1S D S
LS D 2ZLE/DA LIND IS D S
AOVEYD LS € § ¥01

1S NOLINS

MAYd DA 1§ E N S0C

wAw Q¥ ANIAVA TYINVAS 006§
OWISYD IS D § 1¢

INTd dIM 1S HLOOS MOOT
MAVd SNIWA'ID WYS 06%
TIVL T¥€ AMH SN T16

NOILAI¥DSdd HDIOANI

YALSIOIY ADHEHD
ALNNOD AHYOLS

D71 WNHTOYLId SVWOHL
AWALYWIEHL
ANVAWOD ¥IHOLVHL

dy¥0D MYT dNDVYH NOLLAS

SHSTUdYALNE AVAd NNS
JT1 ‘SALVIDOSSY 2 HTAALS
'SNOIILVOINAWWOD JAVISTAV.LS
S 3 INIM SYAZVID NATHLNOS
YFINID DN¥A ® d00d SHLIKWS
¥aa DT SHEIVLSNANI ADITIS

ONI TOMLNOD LSd3d VHIHIS

YOANEA

8T/62/€0
s1etdad

LLSTE
9L916
SLI9T6

¥L9T6

€L916
ZLITE
1L916
0L9T6E
69916
89916

L9916

ATIWAN
MDEHD

ajeq umny

OoN 3xoday



9

LE OV886T

v0°9¢€T

00°061
28° 0S¢
00°0S2’'1

00822

00°0¢€c

8€°T6C
TL2%T’T
sz tov'e

8Z2°¥56°1T

IYLOL

ADIHD

abed

IV.LOL S3OHHO

veE'EET
oL ¢z

00°06T
z8° 0S¢
00°0S2°T

00°9¢
00°261

00° 0%
00°0ST
00°0¢2
00°0¢
8E€°T62
TLZYPT'T

oo oLg’z
SZ'1€S

ST'STL
€T 6€2'T

LNONOWY

LT6ES
LT6E8

216t8
086¢8
£86€8

056¢€8
0Se6€8

6£6E8
686€8
8€6¢€8
8E6€ES
[4X-3%:]
6L6€E8

000%8
000v8

1T6€8
1T6€8

#SNVAL

8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢
8T/0€/¢€

81/0€/¢
81/0€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
81/0¢€/¢
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢
8T/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢

81/0€/¢€
81/0€/¢€

8T/0€/¢€
8T/0€/¢€

Jiva

8T/0€/¢€

# o/d

HONZEYM dIT XOHd dALIW
dvd ¥ETIOH d3AHY -SYAJId

ONILSIL ANITIYILYM
Savo¥y 1000 Lv08%0 0OF
LIOddNS FATA AFALNNTOA

81-22-€-8T1-8-t dNO¥YD WV
81-22-€-8T1-8-€¥N0L d¥D

S¥3dId ¥04 DIdNaX

aNNd HSVD ALLIdA S¥IJI4
8T-%T-€ DIW IIY
8I-%T-€ DIW LLd
aISUNESIA INIWHSINIVD

81/¥% SAVOY TVINIA FIIILIA

0SZ 18a / 0L DIF HOA
98 1Sa / SIv D3Y¥ Md

NOILAI¥DSHA FADIOANI

JYALSIOIE ADHHO
ALNNOD AFYOLS

0D A71d4dNS VYAVAIN NYFALSIM
H9Y1 TYINIWNOAIANT NAALSHAM
ONI ‘NVTId EDIANIS NOISIA

QdA SANVTHOIH YINIDAIA

ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDIIA

OLOA
ONI LOW S3ADIA¥ES HSVD V¥sN

0D SNI JYVOHLIVIHAALINNO

ONI ‘SHIDOTONHOAL YHTAL

VOANIA

81/62/€0
STETHd

98976
SB916
78916

€£8916

28916

18916
08916

6LI9T6

8LIT6

HAENNN
ADEHD
¢ 9@3eQg uny
tOoN 3xoday.



81/0¢€/¢€

YINOISSIWNOD

HLYJ MOHHD LE 0P8 86T IYLOL SADFHO

NOILVZIYOHLAY ANV MIIAFY 40 INEWIADAITMONMOV

-



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4-17-18 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title; Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary; First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attomey
Department Name;:
P
; QOther agencyreview:
9. Board action:
(] Approved (] Approved with Modifications
(] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. SV



Storey County @nnIptunitp Development
Business |

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 ¢ (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 *mfield@storeycounty.org

D Licensing

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office April 3,2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Meclissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the April 17, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

WESTERN OILFIELD SUPPLY CO - Contractor / 3404 State Rd ~ Bakersfield, CA
RAM ENTERPRISES, INC - General / 1225 West Main St ~ Elko, NV
NORTHERN NEVADA ENTERPRISES - Contractor / 4865 Joule St ~ Reno, NV
T.F.ROOF SERVICE INC - Contractor / 1250 Ridgeway ~ Reno, NV
BLACKTOP PAVING — General / 4917 West Lake Blvd ~ Homewood, CA
HIKARI CO., LTD - General / 418-4 Minaminoda ~ Ehime, JP

CORESTATES, INC — General / 3039 Premicre ~ Duluth, GA

SOUTHERN DESIGN SERVICES INC — General / 155 Tradd St ~ Spartanburg, SC
JASON CHARLETON — General / 2190 Olympic Cr ~ Reno, NV

LEADEC BV & CO. KG - General / 11 Meitnerstrasse ~ Stuttgart, DE

TEC EQUIPMENT, INC — General / 1955 E. Greg St ~ Sparks, NV

. TDA ENTERPRISES, INC - Contractor / 20355 Birdsong Ln ~ Bend, OR

M Y SAFETY SOLUTIONS LLC — General / 446 E. Pasture Canyon Dr ~ San Tan Valley, AZ

FRASCEQOERTOER

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff's Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action: consideration and possible approval of inter local agreement with
The Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway for the provision of
financial, auditing and administrative services.

2. Recommended motion; Approval of the inter local agreement with The Nevada Commission
for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway for the provision of financial, auditing and
administrative services.

3. Prepared by: Deny Dotson Department: VCTC
Telephone: 775-847-7500

4. Staff summary: By this Agreement the parties desire to establish a process for handling the
finances and budgets of the V&T Railway Commission through the use of the services of
the Storey County Treasurer with assistance from the Storey County Comptroller and with
the use of personnel from the VCTC to provide administrative services.

Note: The V&T Railway Commission approved this inter local agreement at their March
29'™ 2018 meeting.

5. Supporting materials: attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: V&T (Separate County Fund) Comptroller

7. Legal review required: YES
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X_ Deparprient Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

< % W County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued




NEVADA COMMISSION FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE V&T RAILWAY
INERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of the date of the last signature affixed hereto and is by
and between the County of Storey, (County) a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, the
Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC) and the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction
of the V & T Railway (Commission), a body corporate and politic of the State of Nevada.

BACKGROUND

The Commission was created by an Act passed in the 1993 Nevada Legislative Session.
See Chapter 566, 1993 Stats. of Nev. pg. 2326. Initially the commission was known as the
Tricounty Railway Commission and consisted of members from Carson City, Storey County and
Lyon County. In the Legislative Session of 2001, the Commission was given its present name
and expanded to include members from Douglas County and Washoe County. See Chapter 42,
2001 Stats. of Nev. pg. 400. In the Legislative session of 2017, the makeup of the Commission
was again amended to reduce the number of commissioners and its jurisdiction was reduced to
Carson City and Storey County. See Chapter 62, 2017 Stats. of Nev. pg. 239. The purpose of
reducing the size of the Commission was to increase the effectiveness of the Commission, reduce
the costs of the Commission and to limit the representatives on the Commission to those with a
substantial interest in the successful operation of the historic V & T Railroad.

The Commission has the authority to enter into an agreement with the Treasurer of Storey
County to create a fund for the Commission and to pay all claims against the fund that are
properly approved by the Commission. 1993 Stats of Nev., chapter 566 , section 8(2). It also has
the authority to take such actions necessary to accomplish the purposes of the act creating the
Commission. Further, pursuant to NRS Chapter 277.180 any one or more public agencies may
contract with any one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service,
activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized
by law to perform. By this Agreement the parties desire to establish a process for handling the
finances and budgets of the Commission through the use of the services of the Storey County
Treasurer with assistance from the Storey County Comptroller and with the use of personnel
from the VCTC to provide administrative services. Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

1. Budget Preparation. Each year, the Storey County Comptroller shall prepare tentative
and final budgets in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Finance Act
(NRS 354.470 — 354.626, inclusive) on behalf of the Commission, subject to the approval
of the Commission.

2. Budget Augmentation. The Storey County Comptroller shall also prepare any
documentation necessary for budget augmentations which are approved by the
Commission.

1|Page



3. Comptroller Processing of Bills. Bills to pay the expenses of the Commission will be
first submitted to the Commission. If the bills are approved for payment, they must be
delivered to the Storey County Comptroller for processing and for the issuance of
vouchers. Vouchers prepared by the Comptroller shall be delivered to the Storey County
Treasurer for payment.

4. Creation of Fund. The Commission shall approve by resolution, the creation of a
special revenue fund to be known as the V & T Railway Fund. It is agreed that this fund
shall be under the control of the Storey County Comptroller.

5. Location of Account. The account containing the V & T Railway Fund shall be
maintained at the Wells Fargo Bank. All balances in other accounts maintained by or on
behalf of the Commission shall be consolidated into the V & T Railway Fund account.

6. Deposits into the V & T Railway Fund. There shall be deposited into the V& T
Railway Fund the revenues from the operation of the Railway, funds appropriated by
either Carson City or Storey County for the benefit of the operations of the Railway,
funds generated through the sale of license plates pursuant to NRS 482.37945, grants
received, donations received and any remaining balance in the Nevada Commission for
the Restoration of the V & T Railway Fund under the control of Carson City.

7. Use of Revenues from License Plate Sales. To the extent that funds are received from
the sales of license plates pursuant to NRS 482.37945, they must only be used for the
reconstruction, maintenance, improvement and promotion of the Virginia & Truckee
Railroad. Commission will advise the Department of Motor Vehicles that revenues from
the sale of license plates should now be directed to the Storey County Treasurer for
deposit in the Fund authorized by 1993 Stats. of Nev. chapter 42 section 8(2).

8. Reimbursement of Storey County. Approved vouchers for the payment of Commission
expenses will be forwarded to the Storey County Comptroller who will audit and
authorize payment of approved vouchers from Storey County funds by the Storey
County Treasurer. County will be reimbursed for its expenditures from the V & T
Railway Fund. The Storey County Treasurer and Comptroller will have signing authority
over the V & T Railway Fund and need not await the approval of the reimbursement for
the payment of vouchers authorizing the payment of bills which have been approved by
the Commission.

9. Records. Storey County will maintain complete accounting records for the Commission,
which records will be public records available for inspection by the Commission, Carson
City, the independent auditor and the public. Commission will endeavor to obtain all
existing accounting records and turn them over to the Storey County Comptroller.

10. Reports. The Storey County Comptroller will prepare timely monthly, quarterly and
annual accounting reports and perform or prepare analyses and special reports as
requested by the Commission.

11. Accounting. In addition to the other duties provided above, the Storey County
Comptroller and Treasurer shall reconcile the account containing the V & T Railway

2|Page



Fund, balance the check book for the fund against the bank statements produced and
provide for the proper account classifications for voucher payments.

12. Administrative Services Provided by VCTC. Personnel of the VCTC will provide
administrative services on behalf of the VCTC. These services include preparation of
agendas and agenda packages, posting of agendas, creating and retaining the minutes of
the meetings of the Commission, and be the depository for the records of the
Commission.

13. Payment for Services of County. County is entitled to have the costs incurred in
handling the financial and budgeting matters for Commission paid to County. These
costs include a portion of the salaries, wages and benefit costs incurred by County in
providing the services. County will submit invoices for the cost of the services provided
to Commission for approval. Commission shall promptly review each invoice on a
monthly basis, and process each invoice as the Commission processes other monthly
invoices. "

14. Payment for Services of VCTC. VCTC is entitled to have the costs incurred by the
VCTC in handling administrative matters for the Commission, reimbursed to the VCTC.
These costs include a portion of the salaries, wages and benefits costs incurred by the
VCTC in providing the services. The VCTC will submit invoices for the cost of the
services provided to the Commission for approval. Commission shall promptly review
each invoice on a monthly basis, and process each invoice as the Commission processes
other monthly invoices. The County Treasurer upon payment of a voucher issued to
reimburse the VCTC for its costs shall transfer the sum approved to the County general
fund for allocation to the VCTC.

15. Status of Interlocal Contract with Carson City. The Commission and Carson City
entered into an Interlocal Contract on the 31% day of August, 2005, by which the Carson
City Finance Department would provide financial services on behalf of the Commission.
That Agreement is superseded by this Agreement as Storey County will now be
providing the financial and budgeting services.

16. Storey County Quarter Cent Sales Tax . Storey County voters approved a ballot
measure in 2010 (ST-1) extending the 1/4 of 1 cent sales tax upon retailers in Storey
County for a period of 30 years. In 2010 the Commission and Storey County agreed that
if the Storey County voters approved the ballot measure, that the Commission would
refund to Storey County on a monthly basis sales taxes as are collected by the
Commission under any renewed or extended sales tax ordinance for the entire length of
time that such additional 1/4 of 1 percent sales tax is approved by the Storey County
electorate. That obligation continues. Storey County will annually attribute $125,000.00
from the proceeds of the tax in the V & T Railway Fund for the operation and
maintenance of the railroad within Storey County. These funds are subject to being
utilized by the Commission in preparing its annual budget. In any year in which proceeds
from ticket sales and the annual amount provided above are insufficient to cover the costs

3|Page



of the train operation and track maintenance of the railroad, or, in an emergency situation,
the V & T Commission may request that additional tax revenues be allocated to cover
those expenses.

17. The Agreement between Storey County and the Commission dated May 20, 2010 is
superseded by this Agreement.

18. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason or even for no
reason at all upon giving 60 days notice to the other party of the termination. Notice shall
be in writing and mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested to:

Storey County Manager
P. O.Box 176
Virginia City, NV. 89440

Nevada Commission for the Restoration of the V & T Railway
Post Office Box 1711
Carson City, NV 89702-1711

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Storey County Treasurer will turn over control
of the account containing the V & T Railway Fund to the Commission. The Storey
County Comptroller will turn over all financial and budgeting records to the Commission.

19. Limitation of Liability. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS
Chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be
subject to punitive damages. Actual damages for any breach by a party shall never
exceed the amount of funds which have been identified for payment under the Agreement
for each month.

20. Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto
shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada.

21. Severability. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be unenforceable
by a court of law or equity, this Agreement shall be construed as if such provision did not
exist and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other
provision or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

22. Status of Parties. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to
the extent set forth in this Agreement. Each party is and shall be a public agency separate
and distinct from the other party and shall have the right to supervise, manage, operate,
control and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership
or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent , or
except as provided herein, otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with
respect to the indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the other agency or any other
party.

23. Assignment/Delegation. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights,
obligations or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other

party.

4|Page



24. Waiver of Breach. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular
breach of the Agreement or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not
operate as a waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

25. No Interpretation Against Drafter. Each party recognizes that this Agreement is a
legally binding contract and acknowledges that such party has had the opportunity to
consult with legal counsel of choice. In any construction of the terms of this Agreement,
the same shall not be construed against either party on the basis of that party being the
drafter of such terms.

26. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Agreement if it
is prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of
public transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires,
explosions, or acts of God, including without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party
asserting such an excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement after the intervening cause ceases.

27. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of
the parties and is intended to be the complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made
in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by
the terms of this Agreement, no modification or amendment to this Agreement shall be
binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties
hereto.

28. Third-Party Beneficiaries. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, nothing in
this Agreement shall be construed to create any third party beneficiaries.

29. Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each party and
delivered to the other party, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same
counterpart. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-named parties have set their hands and executed this
Agreement on the date(s) set forth below.

(Dates and Signatures appear on next page.)

Dated this day of , 2018.
Board of County Commissioners of Storey County

By:

Marshal McBride, Chairman
Attest:

5|Page



Vanessa Stephens Storey County Clerk
Dated this day of , 2018

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Dated this day of , 2018.

Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway

e
- ) -
By 1= )Jz S——

Deny Dotson, Chairman

Attest:

rd -
// P \/\;’ | /L /\ -~ /
Commission Secrétary

AN

(Signatures of VCTC on next page)

6|Page



Dated this (VQ day of 4}2 r [ ,2018

Virginia City Tourism Commission

o iy 262

R‘Jn Gallagher, Chairman / ~——

Attest:

WD ulbrio

Commission Secretary

7|Page



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion & possible approval of interlocal agreement with Lyon County & Mineral
county Sheriff’s office for emergency response services.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the agreement with Lyon County & Mineral
County for emergency response services.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst. %\

Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Discussion & possible approval of interlocal agreement with Lyon County &
Mineral county Sheriff’s office for emergency response services.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Z?,\nd: v Comptroller
7. Legal review required: / District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~X__ Department Head

/—%\XL/CO/Imty Manager Other agency review:

~ L

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P
e

Agenda Item No. q



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
TO PROVIDE REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY MUTUAL AID
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF LYON, THE COUNTY OF MINERAL AND THE

COUNTY OF STOREY
Agreement made this day of , 2018 by and amongst the
undersigned parties, as follows:
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Lyon County (LYON) is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and
therefore a public agency within the meaning of NRS 277.100, and accordingly is authorized by
the State of Nevada through the Interlocal Cooperation Act, NRS 277.080, ef seq., to enter into
this Agreement with the PARTIES; and

WHEREAS, LYON also has a vital interest in and the responsibility for the planning and
protection of the public health, wellness, safety, economic and social welfare and resource
management needs and interests of its residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, Mineral County (MINERAL) is a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada and therefore a public agency within the meaning of NRS 277.100, and accordingly is
authorized by the State of Nevada through the Interlocal Cooperation Act, NRS 277.080, ef seq.,
to enter into this Agreement with the PARTIES; and

WHEREAS, MINERAL also has a vital interest in and the responsibility for the
planning and protection of the public health, wellness, safety, economic and social welfare and
resource management needs and interests of its residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, Storey County (STOREY) is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada
and therefore a public agency within the meaning of NRS 277.100, and accordingly is authorized
by the State of Nevada through the Interlocal Cooperation Act, NRS 277.080, et seq., to enter
into this Agreement with the PARTIES; and

WHEREAS, STOREY also has a vital interest in and the responsibility for the planning
and protection of the public health, wellness, safety, economic and social welfare and resource
management needs and interests of its residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the Parties (LYON, MINERAL and STOREY) desire to enter into this

Agreement to establish how they will cooperate in connection with providing mutual aid,
including backup law enforcement services in the event of need, as defined herein, through the

Page 1 of 10



assistance of the Lyon County Sheriff’s Office (LCSO), the Mineral County Sheriff’s Office
(MCSO), and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office (SCSO); and

WHEREAS, the PARTIES desire to provide mutual aid to one another through law

enforcement services and are willing to furnish such services upon the terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and

performance contained herein, the PARTIES hereto agree as follows:

1.

Term of Agreement. The term of this agreement shall be from the date of execution by all
parties, and shall continue for four years thereafter unless terminated with the giving of
notice as required below. Services to be provided. Upon request of any public agency which
is a party to this agreement, the agency of whom the request is made, may provide law
enforcement services. The request must be made by an authorized party of either jurisdiction,
holding the rank of sergeant or higher. The request will be honored by the responding agency
unless providing those services will deplete or diminish the levels of law enforcement
services required in that jurisdiction or will endanger the residents of that jurisdiction. A
party’s response to any request for mutual aid under his agreement is completely voluntary,
and there is no obligation to respond to any request.

a. Regional Emergency Response Team.

i. The LCSO, MCSO, and SCSO agree to the formation of a regional emergency
response team, to be known as the “Unit.” The mission of the regional Unit is
to provide a professionally trained tactical Unit capable of effectively dealing
with a variety of emergency and non-emergency situations that are beyond the
normal capabilities of patrol, investigations, narcotics, or its detention
personnel.

ii. The LCSO agrees to assign fourteen (14) members to the Unit. Personnel
Protective Equipment (PPE) acquisition for Lyon County deputies will be the
responsibility of the LCSO.

iii. The MCSO agrees to assign two (2) deputies to the Unit. MCSO will

designate a Team Leader to their deputies as designed by their agency. PPE
for Mineral County deputies will be the responsibility of the MCSO.

Page 2 of 10



iv.

vi.

Vil.

viii.

iX.

x1.

Xii.

The SCSO agrees to assign three (3) deputies to the Unit. SCSO will designate
a Team Leader to their deputies as designed by their agency. PPE for Storey
County deputies will be the responsibility of the SCSO.

Increases to the Unit by any agency may occur upon agreement by
participating agencies. Selection and dismissal of personnel to/from the Unit
will be in accordance with the respective agency’s policies and procedures.
Each agency reserves the right to make Unit personnel changes at any time,
including the number of personnel assigned.

The Unit Commander will be designated by the LCSO. The Commander will
have responsibility for overall supervision, training, and assignments during
activation of the Unit. He/she shall assume responsibility for the conduct of
the Unit and shall be in charge of the scene until the incident has been
rendered safe and the scene is released to local authorities.

PARTIES will come to a mutual agreement on the annual training schedule
and will make all reasonable attempts to ensure that all assigned Unit
members are scheduled to attend and participate in regular Unit training.
Nothing in this Agreement creates any obligation on any Party to conduct
additional training.

Any member of the Unit working outside of the actual operations of the Unit
is deemed to be working under the policy and direction of his/her respective
agency.

After the Unit has responded and secured an incident, the agency with
jurisdiction will be responsible for processing the crime scene. The Unit will
assist when requested to the extent possible.

To the extent possible, all Unit activity will be a joint activity, with no agency
acting independently of the other agency.

Operational problems encountered will be mutually addressed and resolved by
the participants from each agency. Ideally, it is agreed that resolution of
operational problems will be at the lowest level possible. Any problem not
resolved at this level will be referred to the heads of the respective agencies.

The LCSO agrees to supply all team equipment, except PPE in support of the
Unit. No equipment shall be exchanged between agencies without the express

Page 3 of 10



permission of the elected sheriff or command staff of the involved agencies.
Equipment will be stored in accordance with each agency’s policies and
procedures. It is understood that from time to time, equipment may need to be
stored temporarily at other locations until such time that it can be moved to a
regularly assigned location.

xiii. Release of information to the media will be made by the agency that has
jurisdiction where the event occurred in accordance with the releasing
agency’s established media release policy. No unilateral press releases will be
made by any participant without the prior approval by the other participants.
No information pertaining to the Unit itself will be released to the media
without the mutual approval of all participants.

xiv. The Unit will be evaluated on an annual basis by the supervisors from each
agency who may make recommendations for improving the performance of
the Unit.

2. Costs of Services. Excluding the below agreements, neither party is required to compensate
the other party for mutual aid services rendered under this Agreement. Outside of Unit
activation, each party agrees to use their own resources and equipment, and shall be
responsible for their own costs or repairs associated with any mutual aid requested response.
PARTIES expect to expend $25,000 or less to carry out this Agreement.

a. Each agency may, in its sole discretion, terminate the response for mutual aid in the
event that the agency determines, in its sole discretion, the costs will create a financial
hardship or budget impact for the responding agency. PARTIES may agree
separately on reimbursement if mutual aid is required for an extended period of time
or the responding party should be compensated based upon the resources provided for
a particular incident.

b. PARTIES agree to repair or replace damaged Unit team equipment used to mitigate
any incident, as requested for use in that jurisdiction. Each party agrees to replace
specialized munitions used to mitigate any incident, as requested for use in that
jurisdiction

3. Agent of Requesting Agency. Outside of a Unit activation, any personnel involved in
responding to a request for assistance in the other jurisdiction shall be considered as an agent
of the party requesting aid. The responding personnel shall report to the requesting agency
and will, for purposes of this contract, report to the command staff or duly authorized agent
of the requesting agency. For the purposes of this contract, responding personnel shall be

Page 4 of 10



entitled to exercise all necessary powers as that of the requesting agency’s personnel (NRS
277.110(1)).

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the employer of the officer,
employee or agent (and the employer’s supervisory law enforcement officials) shall have
ultimate authority over its officers, employees and agents, including the authority to order
such person back to its jurisdiction.

This Agreement authorizes the highest ranking law enforcement official on duty or on-
scene with jurisdiction over the lands where the incident is occurring to be in charge of
the incident, including the direction of all personnel and equipment provided by the
responding party within scope of agency policy, custom or law.

4. Law Enforcement Agency Responsibilities. All officers providing services under this
Agreement shall be certified by the Nevada Commission on Peace Officers’ Standards &
Training (P.O.S.T.) at the Category I level as defined in NRS 289.460, and shall be current in
all P.O.S.T. requirements.

The LCSO, MCSO, and SCSO may, at any time, request verification from each other that
their officers are P.O.S.T. certified. They also warrant that their officers will be P.O.S.T.
certified, when assigned to provide assistance as called for herein. Should an issue arise
about certifications or training of a specific officer due to an incident that results in the
threat of litigation or litigation by a stranger to this Agreement, the PARTIES will
cooperate with each other to provide the requisite training records and certifications about
the officer(s) involved in furtherance of the defense of such claims.

As soon as practicable after a law enforcement activity occurs under this Agreement, the
PARTIES shall exchange available officer reports relating to such activity. Nothing in
this Agreement waives, limits, or removes confidentiality requirements required or
authorized by applicable law.

Any complaint alleging misconduct by personnel performing law enforcement activities
pursuant to this Agreement will be investigated by the party who employs such
personnel.

5. Worker’s Compensation Insurance. Each law enforcement agency shall be deemed, for
the limited purpose of the exclusive remedy set forth in NRS 616A.020, to employ
jointly or severally a person who:

(1) Is an employee of either law enforcement agency; and

Page 5 of 10



(2) Sustains an injury by accident or motor vehicle crash while participating
in the matter for which assistance was requested.
.Each party to this agreement is responsible for providing worker’s compensation coverage
for its own employees for accidents or injuries arising out of the performance of their duties
pursuant to this agreement. Each party may, at any time, request proof of workers
compensation coverage, which proof of coverage shall be promptly provided to the other

party.

Liability Insurance. By signing this contract, PARTIES represent that they carry liability
insurance in an amount mutually acceptable to the parties but not less than $5,000,000 to
cover any claims made against assisting personnel. Each party may, at any time, request
proof of such liability or workers compensation coverage, which proof of insurance or
coverage shall be promptly provided to the other party.

Indemnification. The County requesting assistance shall assume the defense of, fully
indemnify and hold harmless, the Responding Counties, their officers and employees, from
all claims, loss, damage, injury, and liability of every kind, nature, and description, directly
or indirectly arising from Responding Counties’ work during a specified Period of
Assistance. The scope of the County requesting assistance duty to indemnify includes, but is
not limited to, suits arising from, or related to, negligent or wrongful use of equipment or
supplies on loan to the requesting County, or faulty workmanship or other negligent acts,
errors, or omissions by the requesting County or the Responding Counties’ personnel.

In the event of a liability, claim, demand, action, or proceeding of whatever kind or nature
arising out of a request for assistance, the Counties who receive and provide assistance shall
indemnify and hold harmless any County whose involvement in the transaction or occurrence
that is the subject of such claim, action, demand, or other proceeding is limited to execution
of this Agreement.

Use of Force or Officer-Involved Traffic Accidents. If an on-duty officer from one
jurisdiction is involved in a use of force incident or traffic accident in the other jurisdiction,
the following procedures shall apply.

a. The agency of the involved officer shall provide a minimum of one supervisor or
investigator to work with the investigating agency.

b. The agency of the involved officer may interact and assist with the investigating
agency, but will not attempt to influence the course or outcome of the investigation.

c. Nothing under the terms of this contract will prohibit the jurisdiction in which the

incident occurred from requesting assistance from other agencies, including agencies
associated with the State of Nevada or federal government.

Page 6 of 10



10. Termination of Contract. This contract may be terminated by any PARTY prior to the date
set forth in paragraph one, without cause, by giving 30 days written notice to the other party.

11. Entire Contract — Partial Invalidity. This contract constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties and may not be changed except by an instrument in writing signed by LYON,
MINERAL, and STOREY. In the event any provision shall be determined to be invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the
other or remaining provisions.

12. Construction of Contract. This contract shall be construed and interpreted according to the
laws of the jurisdiction in which the act or omission occurred. The contract will be
reasonably construed to effectuate the intent of both parties. As all parties have been
represented by counsel, no presumptions shall arise from the identity of the drafter.

13. Notice. Any notices required under the terms of this contract shall be made by either U.S.
Mail or by hand delivery to the following:

Chairman Chairman
Lyon County Board of Commissioners Mineral Board of Commissioners
27 South Main Street 105 South A Street
Yerington, NV 89447 P.O. Box 1450
Hawthorne, NV 89415
Chairman

Storey Board of Commissioners
26 B Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

With copy to:
Al McNeil Randy Adams
Lyon County Sheriff Mineral County Sheriff
911 Harvey Way 105 South A Street
Yerington, NV 89447 Hawthormne, NV 89415
Gerald Antinoro
Storey County Sheriff
P.O. Box 498

Virginia City, NV 89440

Page 7 of 10



On Behalf of Lyon County:

Dated this day of

, 2018

By:

Chairman, Lyon County Board of County Commissioners

By:

Sheriff, Lyon County

ATTEST:

Lyon County Clerk

Approved as to Form:

District Attorney

Page 8 of 10



On Behalf of Mineral County:

Dated this day of

, 2018

By:

Chairman, Mineral County Board of County Commissioners

By:

Sheriff, Mineral County

ATTEST:

Mineral County Clerk

Approved as to Form:

District Attorney

Page 9 of 10



On Behalf of Storey County:

Dated this day of

, 2018

By:

Chairman, Storey County Board of County Commissioners

By:

Sheriff, Storey County

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk

Approved as to Form:

District Attorney

Page 10 of 10



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 17, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action: Approval of Contract to Replace Roofing at Station 71 convened as
Fire Protection District.

2. Recommended motion I, (Commissioner), move to approve the proposed contract to replace
the roof on Fire Station 71 at 145 North C Street as provided by Perez Roofing.

3. Prepared by: Mike Northan
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Roof replacement is required on Station 71 at 145 North C Street. (See
attached report). Apparent low bidder is Perez Roofing. (See attached contract).

5. Supporting materials: Bids and Inspection Report

6. Fiscal impact: $21,994

Funds Available: yes Fund: % Comptroller
7. Legal review required: n/a
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
____ Department Head Department Name: Commissioners
mvﬁounty Manager Other agency review:

—
9. Board action:

[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

ot beed.

Agenda Item No |



ESTIMATE 28182

PEREZ ROOFING Office: (775)358-7283
315 J Street Fax: (775)448-6879
Sparks, NV 89431 NV.LIC. # 0072421
(Herein referred to as “Contractor”)
AND
Name: Storey County Attn: Michael Email: mnorthan@storeycounty.org Res. Telephone: (775) 335-6991
Northan
Address: 145 N. C Street. Fire Department Tear Off / Install New Bus. Telephone: (775)
TPO
City: Virginia City State: NV : Zip Code: 89440

(Herein referred to as “Owner”)
I/We, the Owner(s) of the premises described herein, authorize Contractor to furnish to Owner all labor and materials necessary to
improve the premises located at the address: Same

According to the following specifications only:

> OBTAIN NECESSARY PERMITS AND/OR ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW APPROVALS AS REQUIRED.

>TEAR OFF ALL LAYERS AND HAUL DEBRIS AT ALL.

> REMOYVE SIDING ON PARAPET WALLS.

> INSTALL 1/2” DENS DECK (OR EQUAL) GYPSUM BOARD AT ALL.

> INSTALLMECHANICALLY ATTACHED THERMOPLASTIC POLYOLEFIN VERSICO (TPO) SINGLE-PLY ROOFING MEMBRANE 60 MIL AS
PER SPECIFICATION AT ALL.

> INSTALL VERSICO ROOF SYSTEM MATERIAL DRIP EDGE COPING METAL AND TERMINATION METAL AS NECESSARY.

> INSTALL VERSICO ROOF SYSTEM 8” PASSIVE VENTS.

> INSTALL SIDING BACK INTO PLACE.

> INSTALL PROPER WALK PADS ON ROOF AS NECESSARY.

> CLEAN JOB SITE OF ALL DEBRIS CAUSED BY ROOF CONSTRUCTION.

> Perez Roofing proudly provides a complete 2-year workmanship guarantee on all work.

> Rotted or damaged roof decking will be replaced as required by building department specification at $45 per 4x8 sheet of material used.

NOTE: Price DOES NOT include any insulation, structural changes required by local building officials,

Deviations from drawings provided for estimating, removal or installation of solar panels, or any modifications to the scope of the work described here.

Total Sale Price for these Specifications: $ 21.994.00
Deposit: $ 13,196.00
Due at Commencement of Work: $

Progress Payment: $

Balance at Final Completion: $ 8,798.00

The parties hereto agree to these TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. Subject to unforeseen circumstances or delays by Owner the Contractor will commence work within 60 days of the date of this agreement.

2. Contractor is not responsible for damage or delay due to strike, fire, accident, or any other cause beyond its control.

3. This contract DOES NOT include repairs or modifications to building other than those specified above.

4. At the completion of the work specified above, any material delivered but not used by the Contractor shall remain its sole property.

5.Deposit is required for all projects. (New construction, re-roofs, overlays and or repairs for commercial and or residential properties) BEFORE commencement of
work.

6. A delinquency charge of 1.5% per month may be added to any unpaid portion of the balance due that remains unpaid 30 days after completion of the work, and
each month thereafter until paid in full,

7. In any suit or other action to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to collect payment or charge due arising there from, Owner agrees to pay a reasonable sum as
attorney’s fees together with any costs or disbursements in connection with such action or suit or trial.

8. Any alteration or deviation from the specifications above involving extra cost of materials or labor will be undertaken only upon written change orders and will
become an extra charge in addition to the above stated Sale Price.

9. Contractor has the right to sub-contract any or all of the work specified above.

10. If the Owner breaches this agreement before Contractor has commenced any portion of the work specified, Owner agrees to pay contractor as liquidated damages
twenty percent (20%) of the above Sale Price.

11. This Agreement shall become binding upon acceptance by Contractor either in writing or by commencing the work specified above and upon such acceptance the
written Agreement shall constitute the entire contract between the parties and shall be binding upon both parties and no other covenants, agreements, promises, written
or oral shall be deemed to form part of this Agreement.

12. The Owner agrees to allow Contractor’s workmen and/or representative’s access to said property to complete this agreement.

13. SIGNATURE IS REQUIRED BY CONTRACTOR, HOME OWNER & SUBCONTRACTOR BEFORE ANY WORK IS DONE TO THE PROPERTY.

(New construction, re-roofs, overlays and or repairs for commercial and or residential properties)

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties signed their names this day of ,2018.
Contractor: Owner:
Owner:

Thank you.




ESTIMATE 28182

Thank you.



Thank you.



Tuesday, March 6, 2018 10:06 AM

The Garland Company, Inc.

Roof Asset Management Program

Virginia Engine Company #1 Roof Inspection

Prepared By
Tim Samaniego

Prepared for
Mike Northan




Table of Contents

Virginia Engine Company #17 Facility SURNMATY. . . . . 3
Virginia Engine Company #1/ Low Siope Mod Bit/ Construction Details. ... ... ..... ... .. 4
Virginia Engine Company #1/ Low Siope Mod Bit / Roof SectionPhoto. .......................... 5
Virginia Engine Company #1 / Low Slope Mod Bit/ Roof SectionDrawing. ....................... ]
Virginia Engine Company #1/ Low Siope Mod Bit / Inspection: Aug 21, 2097 ... ....... ... .. ... 7
Virginia Engine Company #1/ Low Sfope Mod Bit / Solution: Sep 5, 2017 ... .................... 14




Facility Summary

Qlient: Storay County
Facitity: Virginia Engine Company #1

Facility Data

 AGGress 1 145NorthCStreet
, e
 Typeof Facilty Municipal

‘: mm Mike Northan

Asset Information

Lowe Slope Mod Bit N/A 4,250 Ladder Needed

Factny Summary Page 3of 15




Construction Details

seiien TRGH

Client: Storey County
Facitity: Virginia Engine Compary #1
Roof Section: Low Slope Mod Bit

Information

Year installed NA _ Square Fostage 4250
smm 11612 : Eove Height 20 feet

Assembly
1 Deck Wood Mechanically attached - -

1 Base Shest: 1 ply base sheet Mechanically attached - -
1 Merbrane Mod Bit- 1 ply Hot asphalt - -
1 Surfacing Ahgminum paint Cold applied - -

Details

. Perimeter Detall Farapet wal, Drp Edge
 Flashing Material Mocified Membrane
 ParapetWel Wood

Inventory
Shyight 0
HVAC 0
Drain 1

ConsIrucuon Datais Page 4o 15




Inspection Report

seitd e |

Client: Storey County
Facility: Vieginia Engine Company #1 Report Date. 08/31/2017
Roof Section: Low Slope Mod Bit

Inspection Information
- loapaction Dase  06/31/2017
mpeiontypn Core rass
Deck Conditions  NA

Flashing Conditions

Miscellaneous Detalls
" Pages WA
. m‘ ks’ WA

; Rating Failed
. Condition Perimeter Flashing Detartoration: Most roof fallures start at perimeter and penetration
© 0 incations. Perimeter edge conditions that are poorly designed and improperty instalied fall
" due tothe expansion and contraction that is typical with bulidings. Perimeter wiall flashing’s
- can also be damaged due to nonmal seasonal bullding movernent and thermal shock,
o Additional damage can slso be seen from UV degradation as well At il of these
e deterioratad or falled points, moisture can gain direct access to the roof system insulation




mm

m Splitx and Cracking: Membrane splits and cracking are usually caused by bullding
movernent, ridges, and expansion and contraction. Such movement can be caused by lack
of attachment of one or mone of the component parts of the roof system, or where the
huliging itseif generates movernent. Weak or inflexible meambranes reach a point where
they cannot accommodate further movement, At this time the roof splits open or the
mesmbrane cracks. The apen spiit or cracks allows water to enter the roofing system,
[ samrating the insulation or deckdng. and causes leaks Intc the bullding. If allowed to persist,
= the area of damage will expand.

‘m, Fair
m Penatrations: Thers are 5 penatrations on this roof system, it appears the twowhirly birds
 wers installed or flashed after the initial roof was instatied, the other three penetration

: »Wmummammammmmmmmmm
- repaired and black mastic applied to these areas.

 hatng. Good

 Condition - Drainage: Water flows off the shed roof system into the gutter system with a siope of
2

mhor

‘ m The overall condition of this roof system is poor due to the perimeter flashing, repairs have
been made to this area, bt leaks are stil acourring. The membrane is also cracking and
ki various fasteners on the base sheet are *hacking out” and starting 0 penetrate thru the

Inspecrion: Aug T, 2017 Page 8 of 15
| R AR AR AR S e e



Phoeo 1

This is an overali view of the roof systemn on Virginia Engine Company #1. This roof
system consist of a wood deck, nalled base sheet, smooth cap sheet, with a siver
reflective coating.

Photo 2

The perimeter of the roof system has been repaired aftar the indtial installation of
the original system.

Photo 3

This is a view of the exdsting base flashing, parapet wall, and metal coping cap
system.

inspacon: Aug 31, 2017 Page 9or 15




Photo 4

The repalr made to the perimeter is NOT to NRCA (National Roofing Contractor
Association) standards. The membrane shoukd be fashed onto the parapet wall
with a termination bar and counter flashing or up and over the parapet wall.

fPhoto §

Another view of an incorrect perimeter repair made to the entire perimeter. Also,
there is no "cant” strip at the 90 degree transition, which is against all NRCA
standards il

Photn 6

This i a view of the eave of the roof system where the gutter is located, the ooating
is deteriorated and the membrane Is aged, dry, brittle and cracked.

Inspecion: Aug 31, 2017 Page 10 of 15




Inspectron: Aug 31, 2017

Photo 7
The smooth cap sheet is dry, brittle, and oracking.

Photn 8
Tha metal coping cap is missing at this location on the parapet wall.

Photo 9

The existing metal coping cap is not compliant to the current IBC, since 2015 any
re-roofing project with a metal coping cap system must meet ANSUSPRI ES-1 wind
up It testing. Also, all metal coping cap comer must have a welded seam.

Page 11 of 15




Inspecaon: Aug 31, 2017

Fhotn 10

The existing metal coping cap system Is fastened to the parapet wall with nall, this
is not code compliant as of 2015. Also, all fasteners must be install on the side of
the parapet wall, fasteners are not allowed to be instalied on the top of parapet
wall.

Photo 11

This is 3 view of 3 fastener on the base sheet that Is "backing out™ and starting to
tear thru the cap sheet memnbrane. Notice how dry, brittle, and cracking the
existing membrane has become

The core cut on the roaf shows the following: wood deck, nalled base sheet, smooth
cap sheet in Type llthot asphatt, and 3 siver reflective coating.

Paga 120115




Solution Options

vitew |RGH

Client: Storey County

Facility: Virginia Engine Company #1
Raoof Section: Low Slope Mod Bit

Replace Options

Selution Option: Replace . ctienvess 2018

Squave Festage: 4,250  Expectsd Ute [Vemes): 30
- Budgw -

REPLACE:

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. Tear off and properly dispose of existing roof system

2. Repair and replace any damage wood decking

3, Remove all plywoed installed on the parapet wall, install new NRCA approved wall substrate.
4, Install new roof system per NRCA and MFG specifications

5. Install a¥ newwall flashing per NRCA and MRG specifications

€. Install 2 new pipe and penetrations flashing's per NRCA and MFG specifications.

7. Install all new ANSUSPRI ES-1 approve metal coping cap system.

StressPly IV Minersl SBS roof system:

StressPly N membranes are modified with Styrene-Butadiene-Siyrene {SBS) rubber and incorporate a high strength
reinforced polyesterfiberglass sarim. StressPly i membranes combine the inhanent advantages and

proven performance of multi-ply protection with the strength, flexibility and elongation of elastomeric systens.
SBS rubber provices superior low-temperature fle:xdbiiity and long term weathering characteristics resulting ina
membrane that has superior performance in a wide range of environmental conditions. StressPly IV is ideal for
hospitals, schools, or roofs with limited access and staging areas.

Solution - This would be utilizing a local, established and respectad roofing contractor to perfarm all the necessary
actions to bring this roof to a water-tight statiss. Your Gariand Representative will write the entire scope of work,
specification and assist in providing mustiple bis ensuring the quotes ane consistant, competitve, and™apples o
apple*s. These bids will be presented to you and the winning contractor will work with your Garland Representative 1o
setup a schedule and start production. Once in process, your Garland Representative will carefully watch the
contractors on 3 dally (or at mininum of 3x per week) basis to ensure proper application of the material and in
accordance to specification. You will receive updates electronically regarding status of the roof. At the end of the
project, your Garland Representative will walk the roof with you and paint out all the areas and answer any questions
about the new roof. This will entail a iabor warranty from the contractor typically for 2 years and typically a 30 year
No Dollar Limit Warranty on the new roof system from Garland. Garland will get paid on the material soid to the
conkractor and you would pay the contractor directly. Your Garlfand Rapresentative does nat receive arty payment
from the contractor for labor, or supanvision of the job. You recetve that service at no charge fram Garland. The
Soiutton: Sep 5, 2017 Page 14 0f 15




estimatad numbers provided am for budgetary purpases anly. Once & solution and/or direction is selected,
the rvioct shag s &0 have your Gariand Reprasentative bring [n contracters to bid a set of developed
specifications, scope of work, and detalls tosnsure » quality compatitive process.

Solurion: Sep 5, 2017 Page 150l 15




PART 1

Mechanically-Fastened
TPO Spec

GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

The project consists of installing TPO Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System as outlined below:

Mechanically fasten '2” Densdeck over existing memebrane
Replace any dry rot wood on parapet wall
Remove existing metal coping cap system
Install TPO membrane per manufactures specification
Install membrane up and over parapet wall
Install new edge metal
Install new gutter and downspouts
Install new ANSI-SPRI approved metal coping cap system. Cut existing nailer to match
parapet wall width or install new wood nailer
Manufactures Rep to provide job site inspections a minimum of three days a week
. Manufactures Rep to provide inspection reports and photo documentation on-line to be
viewed by Owner.

Ll BN e ol A

— \O
o

1.02 EXTENT OF WORK

A.

Provide all labor, material, tools, equipment, and supervision necessary to complete the installation of the
Commercial Innovations/Garland .060” thick white reinforced TPO (Thermoplastic Polyolefin) membrane
Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System including flashings and insulation as specified herein and as indicated
on the drawings in accordance with the manufacturer's most current specifications and details.

The roofing contractor shall be fully knowledgeable of all requirements of the contract documents and shall
make themselves aware of all job site conditions that will affect their work.

The roofing contractor shall confirm all given information and advise the building owner, prior to bid, of any
conflicts that will affect their cost proposal.

Any contractor who intends to submit a bid using a roofing system other than the approved manufacturer must
submit for pre-qualification in writing fourteen (5) days prior to the bid date. Any contractor who fails to
submit all information as requested will be subject to rejection. Bids stating "as per plans and specs” will be
unacceptable.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

A.

Prior to starting work, the roofing contractor must submit the following:

1. Shop drawings showing layout, details of construction and identification of materials.
2. Sample of the manufacturer's Membrane System Warranty.
3. Submit a letter of certification from the manufacturer which certifies the roofing contractor is

authorized to install the manufacturer's roofing system.



1.04

1.05

1.06

B.

4. Certification from the membrane manufacturer indicating the fasteners are capable of providing a static
backout resistance of 10 inch pounds minimum is required.

5. Certification from the membrane manufacturer indicating the membrane thickness over the reinforcing
scrim (top ply membrane thickness) is nominal .015” (15 mil).

6. Certification of the manufacturer's warranty reserve.

Upon completion of the installed work, submit copies of the manufacturer's final inspection to the specifier prior
to the issuance of the manufacturer's warranty.

PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Deliver materials to the job site in the manufacturer's original, unopened containers or wrappings with the
manufacturer's name, brand name and installation instructions intact and legible. Deliver in sufficient quantity
to permit work to continue without interruption.

B. Comply with the manufacturer's written instructions for proper material storage.

1. Store TPO membrane in the original undisturbed plastic wrap in a cool, shaded area and cover with
light-colored, breathable, waterproof tarpautins. TPO membrane that has been exposed to the
elements for approximately 7 days must be prepared with Weathered Membrane Cleaner prior to hot
air welding.

2. Store curable materials (adhesives and sealants) between 60°F and 80°F in dry areas protected from
water and direct sunlight. If exposed to lower temperature, restore to 60°F minimum temperature
before using.

3. Store materials containing solvents in dry, well ventilated spaces with proper fire and safety
precautions. Keep lids on tight. Use before expiration of their shelf life.

C. Insulation must be on pallets, off the ground and tightly covered with waterproof materials.

D. Any materials which are found to be damaged shall be removed and replaced at the applicator's expense.

WORK SEQUENCE

A. Schedule and execute work to prevent leaks and excessive traffic on completed roof sections. Care should be
exercised to provide protection for the interior of the building and to ensure water does not flow beneath any
completed sections of the membrane system.

B. Do not disrupt activities in occupied spaces.

USE OF THE PREMISES

A. Before beginning work, the roofing contractor must secure approval from the building owner's representative for
the following:

1. Areas permitted for personnel parking.

2. Access to the site.

3. Areas permitted for storage of materials and debris.

4. Areas permitted for the location of cranes, hoists and chutes for loading and unloading materials to and
from the roof.

B. Interior stairs or elevators may not be used for removing debris or delivering materials, except as authorized by

the building superintendent.



1.07 EXISTING CONDITIONS

If discrepancies are discovered between the existing conditions and those noted on the drawings, immediately notify the
owner's representative by phone and solicit the manufacturer's approval prior to commencing with the work. Necessary
steps shall be taken to make the building watertight until the discrepancies are resolved.

1.08 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

A.

A pre construction meeting will be held at the job site 7 days prior to start of work.

1.09 TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

A.

Temporary Utilities:

1. Water, power for construction purposes and lighting are not available at the site and will not be made
available to the roofing contractor.

2. Provide all hoses, valves and connections for water from source designated by the owner when made
available.
3. When available, electrical power should be extended as required from the source. Provide all trailers,

connections and fused disconnects.
Temporary Sanitary Facilities

Sanitary facilities will not be available at the job site. The roofing contractor shall be responsible for the
provision and maintenance of portable toilets or their equal.

Building Site:
1. The roofing contractor shall use reasonable care and responsibility to protect the building and site
against damages. The contractor shall be responsible for the correction of any damage incurred as a

result of the performance of the contract.

2. The roofing contractor shall remove all debris from the job site in a timely and legally acceptable
manner so as to not detract from the aesthetics or the functions of the building.

Security:

Obey the owner's requirements for personnel identification, inspection and other security measures.

1.10 JOB SITE PROTECTION

A

The roofing contractor shall adequately protect building, paved areas, service drives, lawn, shrubs, trees, etc.
from damage while performing the required work. Provide canvas, boards and sheet metal (properly secured) as
necessary for protection and remove protection material at completion. The contractor shall repair or be
responsible for costs to repair all property damaged during the roofing application.

During the roofing contractor's performance of the work, the building owner will continue to occupy the existing
building. The contractor shall take precautions to prevent the spread of dust and debris, particularly where such
material may sift into the building. The roofing contractor shall provide labor and materials to construct,
maintain and remove necessary temporary enclosures to prevent dust or debris in the construction area(s) from
entering the remainder of the building.

Do not overload any portion of the building, either by use of or placement of equipment, storage of debris, or
storage of materials.

Protect against fire and flame spread. Maintain proper and adequate fire extinguishers.



1.11

1.12

1.13

E. Take precautions to prevent drains from clogging during the roofing application. Remove debris at the
completion of each day's work and clean drains, if required. At completion, test drains to ensure the system is
free running and drains are watertight. Remove strainers and plug drains in areas where work is in progress.
Install flags or other telltales on plugs. Remove plugs each night and screen drain.

F. Store moisture susceptible materials above ground and protect with waterproof coverings.

G. Remove all traces of piled bulk materials and return the job site to its original condition upon completion ofthe
work.

SAFETY

The roofing contractor shall be responsible for all means and methods as they relate to safety and shall comply with all
applicable local, state and federal requirements that are safety related. Safety shall be the responsibility of the roofing
contractor. All related personnel shall be instructed daily to be mindful of the full time requirement to maintain a safe
environment for the facility's occupants including staff, visitors, customers and the occurrence of the general public on or
near the site.

WORKMANSHIP

A.

Applicators installing new roof, flashing and related work shall be factory trained and approved by the
manufacturer they are representing.

B. All work shall be of highest quality and in strict accordance with the manufacturer's published specifications and
to the building owner's satisfaction.

C. There shall be a supervisor on the job site at all times while work is in progress.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The TPO membrane roofing system must achieve a UL Class A and/or FM 1-90 rating.

B. Unless otherwise noted in this specification, the roofing contractor must strictly comply with the manufacturer's
current specifications and details.

C. The roofing system must be installed by an applicator authorized and trained by the manufacturer in compliance
with shop drawings as approved by the manufacturer.

D. Provide adequate number of experienced workmen regularly engaged in this type of work who are skilled in the
application techniques of the materials specified. Provide at least one thoroughly trajned and experienced
superintendent on the job at all times roofing work is in progress.

E. There shall be no deviations made from this specification or the approved shop drawings without the prior
written approval of the specifier. Any deviation from the manufacturer's installation procedures must be
supported by a written certification on the manufacturer's letterhead and presented for the specifier's
consideration.

F. The Material Manufacturer shall perform inspections by a representative of the membrane manufacturer every
day of installation in order to determine whether or not corrective work will be required before the warranty
will be issued. All reports and photo documentation shall be put on-line for viewing by the Owner. Notify the
building owner seventy-two (72) hours prior to the manufacturer's final inspection.

G. Manufactures Rep shall provide yearly inspections for the length of the warranty. All reports shall be put on-line

for viewing by the Owner.



1.14

JOB CONDITIONS, CAUTIONS AND WARNINGS

A. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) must be on location at all times during the transportation, storage and
application of materials.

B. When positioning membrane sheets, exercise care to locate all field splices away from low spots and out of
drain sumps. All field splices should be shingled to prevent bucking of water.

C. When loading materials onto the roof, the Authorized Roofing Applicator must comply with the requirements
of the building owner to prevent overloading and possible disturbance to the building structure.

D. Proceed with roofing work only when weather conditions are in compliance with the manufacturer's
recommended limitations, and when conditions will permit the work to proceed in accordance with the
manufacturer's requirements and recommendations.

E. Proceed with work so new roofing materials are not subject to construction traffic. When necessary, new roof
sections shall be protected and inspected upon completion for possible damage.

F. Provide protection, such as 3/4 inch thick plywood, for all roof areas exposed to traffic during construction.
Plywood must be smooth and free of fasteners and splinters.

G. The surface on which the insulation or roofing membrane is to be applied shall be clean, smooth, dry, and free
of projections or contaminants that would prevent proper application of or be incompatible with the new
installation, such as fins, sharp edges, foreign materials, oil and grease.

H. New roofing shall be complete and weathertight at the end of the work day.

L. Contaminants such as grease, fats and oils shall not be allowed to come in direct contact with the roofing
membrane.

1.15 WARRANTY

A. Provide manufacturer's 15 year No Dollar Limit.

B. Pro-rated System Warranties shall not be accepted.

C. Evidence of the manufacturer's warranty reserve shall be included as part of the project submittals for the
specifier's approval.

PART 2 PRODUCTS
2.01 GENERAL

A. All components of the specified roofing system shall be products of single manufacture or accepted as
compatible by manufacturer.

B. All products ( fasteners, fastening plates and edgings) must be manufactured and supplied by the roofing
system manufacturer and covered by the warranty.

2.02 MEMBRANE

Furnish .060” thick white reinforced TPO (Thermoplastic Polyolefin) membrane as needed to complete the roofing
system. Membrane thickness over the reinforcing scrim (top-ply thickness) shall be nominal .015” thick (15 mil).



2.03

2.04

2.05

2.06

INSULATION/UNDERLAYMENT

A. Mechanically fastened to the substrate in accordance with the manufacturer's published specifications.
B. Install 1/2"DensDeck
ADHESIVES AND CLEANERS

All products shall be furnished by Membrane Manufactures and specifically formulated for the intended purpose.

A. Bonding Adhesive:

B. Edge Sealant:

C. Sealer:

D Pocket Sealant

E. Cleaner:

FASTENERS AND PLATES

To be used for mechanical attachment of insulation and to provide additional membrane securement

A.

Fasteners: A heavy duty #14 threaded fastener with a phillips head used for membrane securement into steel,
wood plank or minimum 15/32 inch thick plywood.

Membrane Fastening Plates: A nominal 2 3/8” diameter barbed metal plate used for membrane attachement
with tha appropriate fastener for membrane securement into steel or wood decks.

Insulation Fastening Plates: a nominal 3 inch diameter metal plate used for insulation attachment with the
appropriate Fastener. ’

METAL EDGING AND MEMBRANE TERMINATIONS

Securement Edge : a metal fascia system with a heavy duty .100” thick extruded aluminum anchor bar and
.040 inch thick aluminum or 24 gauge steel fascia. Metal fascia color shall be as designated by the Owner's
Representative.

Securement Edge : A metal anchor bar fascia system consisting of a formed quarter hard 0.050” aluminum
retainer bar, corrosion resistant fasteners and a 0.040” aluminum or 24 gauge steel snap-on fascia cover. Metal
fascia color shall be as designated by the Owner's Representative.

Securement Edge : A metal anchor bar fascia system consisting of a 20 gauge steel retainer bar, corrosion
resistant fasteners and an aluminum or 24 gauge steel snap-on fascia cover. Metal fascia color shall be as
designated by the Owner's Representative.

Securement Edge: a snap-on edge system consisting of a 26 gauge galvanized metal water dam and .050 inch
thick aluminum or 24 gauge galvanized steel fascia. Metal fascia color shall be as designated by the Owner's
Representative.

Securement Edge : a snap-on edge system consisting of a 24 gauge galvanized metal water dam and .040”,
.050" or .063” thick Kynar 500, clear and colored anodized finish or 24 gauge steel, Kynar 500 finish. Metal
fascia color shall be as designated by the Owner's Representative.



F. 1 Piece Gravel Stop: a 22 gauge, 12 foot long, pre-punched 90 degree angle cleat and 12 foot long fascia
section. Available in .040”, .050” or .063” thick Kynar 500, clear and colored anodized finish or 24 gauge
steel, Kynar 500 finish. Metal fascia color shall be as designated by the Owner's Representative.

G. Drip Edge: a metal fascia/edge system with a 22 or 24 gauge continuous anchor cleat and .032 inch thick
aluminum or 24 gauge steel fascia. Metal fascia color shall be as designated by the Owner's Representative.

H. Coated Metal: 4'x 10' coated metal sheeets made from 24 gauge galvanized steel with a minimum .035" thick
non-reinforced white TPO laminate. TPO membrane can be welded directly to the Coated Metal in accordance
with the manufacturer’s detail.

L. Securement Edge Coping: incorporates a 20 gauge anchor cleat with 4 pre-slotted holes, a concealed joint
cover and 10 foot continuous sections of coping cap; can accommodate minimum 5 inch wide parapet walls.
Metal coping cap color shall be as designated by the Owner's Representative.

J. Termination Bar: a 1 inch wide and .098 inch thick extruded aluminum bar pre-punched 6 inches on center;
incorporates a sealant ledge to support Lap Sealant and provide increased stability for membrane terminations.

2.07 OTHER MATERIALS

Must be appoved by Commercial Innovation/Garland Manufacture of membrane prior to installation
PART 3 EXECUTION
3.01 GENERAL

A. Comply with the manufacturer's published instructions for the installation of the membrane roofing system
including proper substrate preparation, jobsite considerations and weather restrictions.

B. Position sheets to accommodate contours of the roof deck and shingle splices to avoid bucking water.

3.02 INSULATION PLACEMENT AND ATTACHMENT

A. Install insulation or membrane underlayment over the substrate with boards butted tightly together with no joints
or gaps greater than 1/4 inch. Stagger joints both horizontally and vertically if multiple layers are provided.

B. Secure insulation to the substrate with the required fasteners and plates in accordance with manufacturers
specifications.

3.03 MEMBRANE PLACEMENT AND ATTACHMENT

A. Unroll and position membrane without stretching. Provide and secure both perimeter and field membrane
sheets in accordance with the manufacturer's most current specifications and details.

B. Secure the membrane with the required Fasteners and Plates spaced a maximum of 12 inches on center
depending or project conditions (centered over the pre-printed marks approximately 1-1/2 inches from the edge
of the membrane sheet).

C. Install adjoining membrane sheets in the same manner in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.

3.04 MEMBRANE SPLICING/HOT AIR WELDING PROCEDURES

A.

Hot air weld the TPO membrane using an Automatic Hot Air Welding Machine or Hot Air Hand Welder in
accordance with the manufacturer's specifications. At all splice intersections, roll the seam with a silicone roller

7



3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

prior to membrane seam cooling.

B. Probe all seams once the hot air welds have thoroughly cooled (approximately 30 minutes).
C. Repair all seam deficiencies the same day they are discovered.
D. Apply Cut Edge Sealant on all cut edges of reinforced membrane (where the scrim reinforcement is exposed)

after seam probing is complete.
FLASHING

A. Flashing of parapets, curbs, expansion joints and other parts of the roof must be performed using reinforced
membrane. Non-reinforced membrane can be used for flashing pipe penetrations, Sealant Pockets, scuppers, as
well as inside and outside corners when the use of pre-fabricated accessories is not feasible.

B. Follow manufacturer's typical flashing procedures for all wall, curb, and penetration flashing including metal
edging/coping and roof drain applications.

WALKWAYS

A. Install walkways at all traffic concentration points (such as roof hatches, access doors, rooftop ladders, etc.) and
all locations as identified on the specifier's drawing.

B. Hot air weld walkway pads to the membrane in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.
DAILY SEAL
A. On phased roofing, when the completion of flashings and terminations is not achieved by the end of the work

day, a daily seal must be performed to temporarily close the membrane to prevent water infiltration.

B. Complete an acceptable membrane seal in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements.
CLEAN UP
A. Perform daily clean-up to collect all wrappings, empty containers, paper, and other debris from the project site.

Upon completion, all debris must be disposed of in a legally acceptable manner.

B. Prior to the manufacturer's inspection for warranty, the applicator must perform a pre-inspection to review all
work and to verify all flashing has been completed as well as the application of all caulking.

END OF SPECIFICATION



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review of the 3rd Quarter 2018 Unaudited Budget to Actual Review

2. Recommended motion N/A

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Review of Departmental Budgets for the 3rd Quarter of 2018 Budget Year

5. Supporting materials: Second Quarter Budget Summary

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ___x_Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
__X__ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

Agenda Item No. | |



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 17,2018 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on Policy No. 008 Agenda requests for Board of County
Commissioners’ meetings.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Policy No. 008 Agenda requests for Board of County
Commissioners’ meetings

3. Prepared by: Prepared for Marshall McBride, Chair, by Robert Morris, outside counsel.

Department: County Commissioners Tel: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: On March 20, 2018 the Board considered several administrative policies that set
out county manager job duties and responsibilities. This Policy No. 008 was discussed and continued
by the Board with the request that the language be amended to reflect the commissioner’s ability to
put items directly on the agenda without restrictions. This amended Policy 008 has been changed to
clarify that commissioner’s agenda items do not require the county manager’s review. This policy
also includes the previous suggestions by the county manager and the clerk, and is now ready for
approval by the Board.

5. Supporting materials: Policy No. 008, one copy showing changes and a clean copy.
6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: No District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
w8 -County Manager Other agency review:
\ -
9. Board action:
[] Approved [ Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [ Continued

Agenda Item No. {22



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 008
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 10-6-2009

REVISED: 4-17-2018
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER

SUBJECT: Agenda requests for Board of County Commissioners’ meetings.

IL.

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding request for placement of items on the
Board of County Commissioners’ agenda.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The county manager is responsible for the agenda of the board meetings and the approval of
agenda items to be placed on the agenda.

B. Any member of the public, the board, or county staff may request an agenda item be placed
on the agenda. All requests for agenda items must be made in writing on approved agenda action
report forms and must be submitted to the clerk’s office for placement on the agenda. The
request must include all supporting documentation and must be submitted by noon on Monday
of the week preceding the board’s meeting. On receipt, the clerk will send the item to the
county manager. The county manager will review the item, except for commissioner agenda
items, and either approve the item for a subsequent meeting agenda or disapprove the item and
respond to the requester in writing with the reasons why it is being denied. An agenda item
requested by a commissioner does not require review to be placed on the agenda. If the county
manager, or his designee, is unavailable or there is a conflict, the chair of the board may approve
items for the agenda.

C. All agenda item requests by county staff must be approved by the employee’s immediate
supervisor or department head and the county manager.

D. All ordinances and resolutions must be reviewed, approved, and signed off on by the district
attorney’s office before placement on the agenda. Once the county manager approvesé the
ordinance or resolution for placement on the next meeting’s agenda, the clerk’s office will issue
a number. The person requesting a resolution must provide the clerk with a clean copy ready for
signature for the agenda packet. A resolution may be approved by the board after a public
hearing. The person requesting the ordinance must provide the clerk with a redline version for
the first reading showing changes by using red strikethrough for deleted text and underlined blue
italics for new text. If changes are made to the ordinance between the first and second reading a
redline version showing the changes must be submitted for the agenda packet for the public
hearing. The person is also responsible for providing a clean copy of the ordinance ready for
signature for the agenda packet before the public hearing. An ordinance may be approved by the
board after a first reading and public hearing (second reading) in conformance with NRS 244.

E. Items, including those involving personnel matters, may be subject to closed meeting
provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and the Open Meeting Law.

Draft 4-17-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 3



F. Matters raised during public comment that are not on the agenda may not be acted on by the
board until the matter is placed on subsequent agenda as an action item.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The county manager or his or her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Draft 4-17-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Staff Report

Meeting date: Time requested: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Administrative [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve ...
2. Recommended motion: I move to approve ...
3. Prepared by: (name)
Department: Tel:

4. Staff summary:

5. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund:
6. Supporting materials: (item and list of supporting materials)

7. Reviewed by:

_____ Department Head Department Name:
__ Comptroller

____ County Manager Other agency review:
_____District Attorney

8. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[] Approved
[] Continued

Denied

—

Agenda Item No

Draft 4-17-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 008
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 10-6-2009

REVISED: 4-17-2018
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER

SUBJECT: Agenda requests for Board of County Commissioners’ meetings.

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding request for placement of items on the
Board of County Commissioners’ agenda.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The county manager is responsible for the agenda of the board meetings and the approval of
agenda items to be placed on the agenda.

B. Any member of the public, the board, or county staff may request an agenda item be placed
on the agenda. All requests for agenda items must be made in writing on approved agenda
action report forms and must be submitted to the clerk’s office for placement on the agenda. The
request must include all supporting documentation and must be submitted by noon on Monday
of the week preceding the board’s meeting. On receipt, the clerk will send the item to the
county manager. The county manager will review the item, except for commissioner agenda
items, and either approve the item for a subsequent meeting agenda or disapprove the item and
respond to the requester in writing with the reasons why it is being denied. An agenda item
requested by a commissioner does not require review to be placed on the agenda. If the county
manager, or his designee, is unavailable or there is a conflict, the chair of the board may approve
items for the agenda.

- COA N ¥ahhFa = gand Q@
l <o

' Ahe c _the boa aRby-sta ay st-an-ag m. All agenda
item requests by county staff must be approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor or
department head and the county manager.

D. All ordinances and resolutions must be reviewed, approved, and signed off on by the district
attorney’s office before placement on the agenda. Once the county manager approvesé the
ordinance or resolution for placement on the next meeting’s agenda, the clerk’s office will issue
a number. The person requesting a resolution must provide the clerk with a clean copy ready for
signature for the agenda packet. A resolution may be approved by the board after a public
hearing. The person requesting the ordinance must provide the clerk with a redline version for
the first reading showing changes by using red strikethrough for deleted text and underlined blue
italics for new text. If changes are made to the ordinance between the first and second reading a
redline version showing the changes must be submitted for the agenda packet for the public
hearing. The person is also responsible for providing a clean copy of the ordinance ready for
signature for the agenda packet before the public hearing. An ordinance may be approved by the
board after a first reading and public hearing (second reading) in conformance with NRS 244.

E. Items, including those involving personnel matters, may be subject to closed meeting

Draft 4-17-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 3



provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and the Open Meeting Law.

F. Matters raised during public comment that are not on the agenda may not be acted on by the
board until the matter is placed on subsequent agenda as an action item.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The county manager or his or her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Draft 4-17-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Staff Report

Meeting date: Time requested: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Administrative [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve ...
2. Recommended motion: I move to approve ...
3. Prepared by: (name)
Department: Tel:

4. Staff summary:

5. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund:
6. Supporting materials: (item and list of supporting materials)

7. Reviewed by:

___ Department Head Department Name:
___ Comptroller

__ County Manager Other agency review:
___ District Attorney

8. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[1] Approved
[] Continued

Denied

fr— pr—

Agenda Item No

Draft 4-17-18 Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License & Cabaret License — Virginia City Brewery
& Taphouse — 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing
business license.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License &
Cabaret License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse — 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV
89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

,/

Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License & Cabaret License — Virginia City
Brewery & Taphouse — 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the
existing business license.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: ___ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_ X __ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro
i
/Zpi\' £ ¥County Manager Other agehcy review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

o P
[———]

Agenda Item No. \l\—



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License — Firehouse BBQ — 171 S C St., Virginia
City, NV 89440 — Applicant is Rich Connell.

2. Recommended motion: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License — Firehouse BBQ - 171 S
C St., Virginia City, NV 89440 — Applicant is Rich Connell.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Second reading for On-Sale Liquor License — Firehouse BBQ - 171 S C St,,
Virginia City, NV 89440 — Applicant is Rich Connell.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
X Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro
/ :;QVQV County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~re
Ad bd

Agenda Item No. \&5



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
GAMING BOARD

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for Gaming License — Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel & Recharge
Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV. Business operations 6595 S Jones, Las Vegas NV
89118. Applicant name is Steven Arcana.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve the Second reading for Gaming License — Sartini
Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel & Recharge Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV. Business
operations 6595 S Jones, Las Vegas NV 89118. Applicant name is Steven Arcana.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Second reading for Gaming License — Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel &

Recharge Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV. Business operations 6595 S Jones, Las
Vegas NV 89118. Applicant name is Steven Arcana.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

mﬁ%/f\

‘ / 7
(ﬁgit_ County Manager Other agency review:

—~—

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L Fonn |
Cmed banmad

Agenda Item No. ]1



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for General Business License — Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel &
Recharge Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV. Business operations 6595 S Jones, Las
Vegas NV 89118. Applicant name is Steven Arcana.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the Second reading for General Business License
— Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6 Hotel & Recharge Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV.
Business operations 6595 S Jones, Las Vegas NV 89118. Applicant name is Steven
Arcana.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Second reading for General Business License — Sartini Gaming, DBA Studio 6

Hotel & Recharge Bar. 795 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV. Business operations 6595 S Jones,
Las Vegas NV 89118. Applicant name is Steven Arcana.

s. Support_ing materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

/) <vd/‘ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
e b

Agenda Item No. Iq



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for General Business License — Rockwell Security, LLC. 1555 E Lincoln
Way, Sparks, NV 89434. Unarmed uniformed security officers.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the second reading for General Business License
— Rockwell Security, LLC. 1555 E Lincoln Way, Sparks, NV 89434. Unarmed uniformed
security officers.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Second reading for General Business License — Rockwell Security, LLC. 1555
E Lincoln Way, Sparks, NV 89434, Unarmed uniformed security officers.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~ X __ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald An/tirpro

C—

: i\ Wy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

-
L e

Agenda Item No. (5



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for General Business License — Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse — 62
N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing business license.

2. Recommended motion: Second reading for General Business License — Virginia City Brewery
& Taphouse — 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing
business license.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst. /
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Second reading for General Business License — Virginia City Brewery &

Taphouse — 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add Frederic Cline to the existing
business license.

S. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None
 Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antlnoro

/ “m”mm"::sﬁ ‘

c/ (@
/m_&ﬂ ounty Manager Other agency review:
/

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— -
[ —

Agenda Item No. ) |



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/17/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Commissioner signature requested on the Nevada State Liquor License Application for
the Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse.

2. Recommended motion: I motion for the Commissioners to sign the Nevada State Liquor
License application for the Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Commissioner signature requested on the Nevada State Liquor License
Application for the Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
\ ;
7. Legal review required: iu-. District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

=z e
/ B R S
/47;!__ County Manager Other agency review:

S #

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

ey
—_—

Agenda Item No.22.22,



NEVADA STATE LIOUOR LICENSE APPLICATION

The Board of County Commissioners or Incorporated Cities Governing Body Members must forward
the approved and signed Form LTD 06 application to the Nevada Department of Taxation (NRS 369.200).

NGoz :,,,/”v Please note Per NRS 369.220 (3) the Nevada State Liquor License is nontransferable.
Il Application is being submitted for Taxpayer ID:

| New Business [ Location Change  [8] Additional Location 1012478971
P Application is for: [3 Importer/Wholesaler Liquor License Manufacturer Liquor License

Xl Importer/Wholesaler License Type (Check all that apply):
] Importer and Wholesaler of Wine, Beer and Spirits ~ [_] Importer and Wholesaler of Beer
[[] Wholesaler of Wine, Beer and Spirits [ Wholesaler of Beer

23 Manufacturer License Type (Check all that apply): [] Brew Pub [ ] Brewer [ Craft Distillery
[] Estate Distillery [} Instructional Wine Facility [} Winemaker  [_] Rectifier

Sl Business Type: [[] Corporation [®]LLC [ Partnership [JIndividual []Other:

U Date Incorporated/Organized: 2.4.2011 State where Incorporated/Organized: NV

I Anticipated Start Date of Location: 04/01/2018 Federal Tax ID: 27-4990116

LBl Name of Business: Phone Number:
Combination Seven LLC (707) 940-4000

Pl DBA, if any: Fax Number:
Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse

I8 Business Address:

24737 Amold Drive, Sonoma, CA 95476
BB Location of Operation:

62 N. C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440

P Mailing Address:
24737 Amold Drive, Sonoma, CA 95476

B8 Email Address: fcline@clineceliars.com

Name: Title: SSN:
Frederic T.Cline Managing Member/Trustee 569-66-6017
Residence Address: % Owned:
532 Second Street East, Sonoma, CA 95476 See trusts below
Name: Title: SSN:

Nancy B. Cline Managing Member/Trustee 554-33-4726
Residence Address: % Owned:
532 Second Street East, Sonoma, CA 95476 See trusts below

Name: Title: SSN:
Frederic and Nancy Cline Family Trust dated March 5, 1991 LLC Member

Residence Address: % Owned:
532 Second Street East, Sonoma, CA 95476 351%

Name: Title: SSN:
Cline Children's Irrevocable Trust dated December 30, 1996 LLC Member

Residence Address: % Owned:
532 Second Street East, Sonoma, CA 95476 49%

LTD 06 Revision Date 11/8/17



if Partnership, is the agreement recorded?
[JYes [JNo N / A

Operating under a Fictitious Firm Name? [l Yes [ 1No | In what county and city is it recorded in?
(Supply a certified copy of the certificate to the Department) | Storey County, Virginia City

In what county and city is it recorded in?

WB Has applicant applied for a local County or City license? If so, where?
M Yes [INo Storey County

Has applicant secured all necessary Federal permits? TTB Permit Number (Supply a copy of permit):
Yes [ ]No BR-NV-21032

Is the location of operations shared with any other business?
[ Yes No Ifyes, please provide the following:

Business Name: Type of Operations:

Business Name: Type of Operations:

Business Name: Type of Operations:

Does any person listed on this application engage in manufacturing, importing, wholesaling or retailing
alcoholic beverages through another company? [ ] Yes No If yes, please provide the following:

Person’s Name: % Owned:

Business Name: Type of Operations:

Person’s Name: % Owned:

Business Name: Type of Operations:

Have any individuals with interest, financial or otherwise, in the applicant’s business, ever been convicted of a
violation of Federal or any state liquor laws? [ ] Yes No If so, provide the following:

Name: When:
Explain:

APPLICANT’S AFFIRMATION: By signing I certify that, to the best of my knowledge under penalty of perjury,
the information contained herein is correct and acknowledge that pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
239.330, it is a category C felony to knowingly offer any false or forged instrument for filing to the Nevada
Department of Taxation. In addition, if I am granted a liquor license, I understand that [ am expected to comply with
all liquor laws, including, but not limited to NRS 369 and 597, Nevada Administration Code, and all Federal laws.
Noncompliance can result in fines, suspension or revocation of my license, and criminal prosecution.

Name of responsible party: Frederic T. Cline Title: Managing Member
/ Date: Bf[g‘_/g

Signature:

If the location of business operations is in one of the following cities,
Boulder City, Caliente, Carlin, Carson City, Elko, Ely, Fallon, Fernley, Henderson, Las Vegas, Lovelock,
Mesquite, North Las Vegas, Reno, Sparks, Wells, West Wendover, Winnemucca or Yerington, then Submit page
1, 2 and 3 to that Incorporated Cities Governing Board for review.

All other locations, submit page 1, 2 and 4 to the Board of County Commissioners for review,

2
LTD 06 Revision Date 11/8/17



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVAL PAGE

For all Non-Incorporated Cities

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Remarks and recommendations by the County Commissioners:

Board of County Commissioners:

Chairman:

Member:

Member:

[seal]

Member:

Member:

ATTEST:

, County Clerk

On this day of 20 , the application for a Nevada State Liquor License

for has been [:lApproved DDenied

LTD 06 Revision Date 11/8/17




NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION  Taxnaver ID: 1012478971

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706
> Date: March 14, 2018

SURETY BOND POSTED TO SECURE PERFORMANCE UNDER TITLE 32

CHAPTER 369 LIQUOR EXCISE TAX

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: Bond Number S7TBSBHW3676

That we, COMBINATION SEVEN LLC ,
of 24737 Arnold Drive, Sonoma, CA 95475 ,
as principal and Hartford Fire Insurance Company
a surety company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut , and authorized to do

business under the laws of the State of Nevada, as surety,

ARE HELD AND FIRMLY BOUND UNTO THE STATE OF NEVADA for its use and benefit in the penal sum of
One Thousand Dollars ($.1,000.00 ), lawful money of the United States of America, for
which sum, well and truly to be paid, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly
and severally, by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT:

WHEREAS, the principal is subject to Title 32, Chapter 369 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, and pursuant to Title 32,
Chapter 369 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, this Surety Bond is required; and

WHEREAS, a demand has been made upon the principal by the Nevada Department of Taxation for security for the payment
of the taxes.

Now THEREFORE, if the principal shall comply with all the provisions of Title 32, Chapter 369 of the Nevada Revised
Statutes, and any amendments thereto, and in particular, pay all taxes, interest, and penalties promptly when due, including
taxes, interest, and penalties which are now due and those which may become due, then the surety shall have no obligation to
perform under this bond.

Upon failure of the principal to comply with any or all of the provisions of said acts and any amendments thereto, and in
patticular on the principal’s failure to pay all taxes, interest, and penalties promptly when due, and when demanded by the
Nevada Department of Taxation, the Nevada Department of Taxation may make demand upon the surety for the payment of
the amount of the unpaid taxes, interest, and penalties by said principal up to, but not to exceed the amount of the surety’s
liability as defined by this bond, and in addition any costs or attorney’s fees incurred in collecting the same from said surety.

The surety is assuring to the Nevada Department of Taxation, the principal’s full compliance with Title 32, Chapter 369 of
the Nevada Revised Statutes, and with any amendment thereof, and all the terms, conditions, and provisions of said law shall
be deemed to be incorporated in and made a part of this bond as fully as if set forth in full here.

The surety herein reserves the right to withdraw as such surety except as to any liability already incurred or accrued
hereunder. The surety may withdraw upon the giving of written notice of such withdrawal to the Nevada Department of
Taxation, provided, however, that no withdrawal shall be effective for any purpose until 30 days shall have elapsed from and
after the receipt of such notice by the Nevada Department of Taxation. Furthermore, no withdrawal shall in anyway affect the
liability of said surety arising out of any actions or inactions made by the principal herein prior to the expiration of such period
of 30 days, regardless of whether or not an assessment for tax due on the receipt from such sales has been levied before the
lapse of such 30 days.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the principal and said surety have hereunto caused this instrument to be executed at

this ™ day of March 2018

THIS BOND MUST BE COUNTERSIGNED BY A NEVADA

RESIDENT OF THE ISSUING COMPANY. COMBINATIQN,SEVEN LLC
— [/ Puinsipet=\
By ] l——

\ Nevada Resident Agent Principal n?{xst complete applicable acknowledgment on reverse

iO U Mingrad Sh’uT Tpah N \/5740"” ord Fire Insurance Company

Addrece

Wl DI\ 7,*0@? B

Telephone Number

Molina, Attorney-in-Fact

Syr€ty must complete affidavit g#qualification on reverse

BND-SUR-01.01
Revised 9-16-14
Page 1



AFFIDAVIT OF QUALIFICATION

. (Must be completed by surety)
State of CM‘ ﬁof nia.
88
County of SUT) 0o
On the J W day of March in the year 2018 | before me personally appeared
DO}/] Na& W] C l ( ﬂ& , being first duly sworn on oath deposes and says that (s)he is the

Aier r)«@\‘l - {ﬂ - C act , of said insurance company, and that (s)he is duly authorized to execute and deliver the
foregoing obligation; that said insurance company is authorized to execute the same and has complied in all respects with the laws of

Nevada in reference to becoming sole surety upon bonds, undertaking and obligations

e | TonPowed-
Sonoma County 3 Notary Public
Mvcc::::;:?e:ﬁ?ﬁozom ) Residing at Santa Ros=_ (.)a L€ornia
S s/ [202

My commission expires

[Seal]

Onthe 2l ot dayo

to me known who, being by me

in the year 2018 , before e personally appeared Frederic T. Cline

worn, did depose and s hat (s)he resides in Senoon o CA. that

(s)he is the Managing Member ing#6n Seven LLC the corporation which executed the instrument on

the reverse and which is described therein, ¢ instrument on behalf of the said corporation; that (8)he was

authorized to do so by Article i oration of the said corporation, and by order of the Board of

> /R lic

Notary
Residing at 00&22/ , &L 77 4]
My commission expires 4'9’4) - ﬁO / g

SHNING "0 AHIHI

[Seal]

L SOLE OWNER, LLC, LLP OR PARTNERSHIP ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of ( ﬂ//@f 44/&

S8

County of Coisor??
Onthe 2/ st day of MQ in the year eX0 /¢ ol , before me personally appeared ? MIZW (B v CLW €
to me known who, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: That (s)he is ZHM%M? ”7”W {h@g égz \i&ﬂ-@l. JA1&

and that (s)he is duly authorized to execute on behalf of the said business the instrument on the reverse and which is described

therein. - CHERYL BR’INKS
PN Commlssnon » 206'5058
S AREA  Notary Public - California
, Sonoma County 1 // Notary Puu( ic /%
3 . 26.20 Residing at (’7& é/ é{ /744./

My comm1ssng1r/es Zﬂ& v4 J/

BND-SUR-01.01
Revised 9-16-14
Page 2



‘ Direct Inquiries/Claims to:
THE HARTFORD

POWER OF ATTORNEY misai

Bond.Claims@thehartford.com
call: 888-266-3488 or fax: 860-757-5835

Agency Name: NORTH BAY INSURANCE BROKERS

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: Agency Code: 57-110615

Hartford Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut

D Hartford Casualty Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

E Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
D Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
E Twin City Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

[:I Hartford Insurance Company of lllinois, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Tilinois

: Hartford Insurance Company of the Midwest, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana
I:l Hartford Insurance Company of the Southeast, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Florida

having their home office in Hartford, Connecticut (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Companies”) do hereby make, constitute and appoint
Donna Molina

its true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety(ies) only as delineated above by , and to execute, seal and acknowiedge the
following bond, undertaking, contract or written instrument:

Bond No. 57BSBHW3676

Naming Combination Seven, LLC as Principal,

and Nevada Department of Taxation as Obligee,

in the amount of See Bond Form(s) on behalf of Company in its business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performance of
contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions or proceedings allowed by law.

In Witness Whereof, and as authorized by a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies on May 6, 2015 the Companies have
caused these presents to be signed by its Senior Vice President and its corporate seals to be hereto affixed, duly attested by its Assistant
Secretary. Further, pursuant to Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies, the Companies hereby unambiguously affirm that they are
and will be bound by any mechanically applied signatures applied to this Power of Attorney.

5‘1937‘ B4
INCLLTTIE S A
ety
% 5.

/zf'

John Gray, Assistant Secretary M. Ross Fisher, Senior Vice President

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
} ss. Hartford

COUNTY OF HARTFORD

On this 5th day of January, 2018, before me personally came M. Ross Fisher, to me known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and
say: that he resides in the County of Hartford, State of Connecticut; that he is the Senior Vice President of the Companies, the corporations
described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seals of the said corporations; that the seals affixed to the said
instrument are such corporate seals; that they were so affixed by authority of the Boards of Directors of said corporations and that he signed his
name thereto by like authority.

YA lavsT" MW
Kathleen T. Maynard
Notary Public
My Commission Expires July 31, 2021

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Assistant Vice President of the Companies, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a true and correct
copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which is still in full force effective as of March 15, 2018.

Signed and sealed at the City of Hartford.
2\
~ M‘-_ {; £ “g»ez.'\
* 13

38

2 e
1979 § isg‘ ip7
> <

A 8 is

/&W‘; s, S
Kevin He¢kman, Assistant Vice President

e S ]

4 Cilddg!

SN
L)
AR

ePOA 2018



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4-17-18 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meetmg A
* follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller

Legal review required:

____ District Attomey
8. Rcm.md.bx
ent Department Name:
S v,

ounty Manager Other agency review:

9, Boardﬂactlon:
(] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L —

Agenda Item No. 5 2



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business §i

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0 66 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « mfield@storeycounty.org

b Licensing

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office April 3,2018

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the April 17, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county: ‘

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

OROZErRF-rEOMMEOWp

Ec:

E.S.S.1, LLC — Contractor / 1400 W. Shady Grove ~ Grand Prairie, TX

PINNACLE GRINDING AND GROOVING LLC - Contractor / 272 Hill St ~ Reno, NV
SWITCH, LTD ~ General / 240 E. Sydney ~ McCarren, NV

TEKLUS CONSTRUCTION. LLC - Contractor / 250 De Wick Ct ~ Sparks, NV
SPRUCE, LLC - General / 9604 Prototype Ct ~ Reno, NV

HOLTZ CONSUTTING GROUP LLC —General / 4770 S. Dragoon Dr ~ Chandler, AZ
ANNIE TAUTZ — General / 5625 De Ponti Dr ~ Orangevale, CA

RIDGEVIEW INVESTMENTS P.T. LLC — General / 2573 Shirley Lake Ct ~ Reno, NV
PETRONIK AUTOMATIONA INC - General / 7900 N. Sam Houston Pkwy ~ Houston, TX
BREX EQUIPMENT LLC - General / 2600 E. Mustang Rd ~ Sparks, NV

FP&C CONSUTLANTS KC, LLC- General / 1330 Burlington St ~ North Kansa City, MO
KOMATSU EQUIPMENT COMPANY - General / 900 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV

. PURCELL TIRE NW, INC - General / 1250 E. 6" St~ Reno, NV

EVANS COMPONENETS, INC - General / 7606 SW. Bridgeport Rd ~ Portland, OR
ONQGLOBAL CX -~ General / 2602 Alessandro Ct ~ Sparks, NV

RELIANCE ENGINEERING LLC - Contractor / 490 Sunshine Ln ~ Reno, NV
NEVADA CHILLER AND BOILER, INC - Contractor / 415 8™ St ~ Hawthorne, NV

Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



CORRESPONDENCE

ltem 4



April 3, 2018

Storey County Board of Commissioners
PO Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

To: Marshall McBride, Chairman, Jack McDuffy, Lance Gillman
Gentlemen:

We wish to address a recent problematic event concerning the Ponderosa Mine Tour and the
sewer work being done on B Street and Taylor. As you may recall, it snowed heavily from
March 16 through the 18%, where on March 19, Greg Hess met with James Jarrett, foreman for
Ames Construction, Mike Nevin, project manager, and Jason Wierzbicki, Storey County Public
Works to discuss the area at the corner of Taylor and B Street, and immediately south of Taylor
on B Street regarding the new sewer placement, street drainage and tunnel protection in order
to prevent damage to the Ponderosa Mine Tunnel Business below. The probability of such
damage to the mine came from the experience of twenty years ago, when the county replaced
sewer lines in the same area, and caused major flooding and damage to the mine at that time.

This time, when Mr. Hess spoke with all concerned in the attempt to ward off any such
problems, and with rains in the forecast, Mr. Hess was told by Foreman Jarrett that Ames would
soon be working that area of B Street in the near future. On March 22, Ames removed the
pavement there, leaving the open dirt below subject to unrelenting heavy rains and snow melt
that came on March 22 and 23. The rains cut a ditch in the exposed soils which drained into the
mine, causing a lot of damage.

On March 23, Mr. Hess again met with Ames Foreman Jarrett to show him the damage and the
following day called Pat Whitten to notify Mr. Whitten of the problem as well. Of course, the
mine had to be closed as of March 22, and repairs were begun on March 24, after the rains
subsided. On March 26, Mr. Hess called Mike Nevin to discuss solving the water problem into
the mine from the street before any more rains came.

The mine remained closed from March 22 and re-opened for business the afternoon of March
28, 2018.

The owners of the Ponderosa Mine Tour (a forty-year-old business) Greg Hess and Angelo
Petrini, feel that the liability for this damage and loss of business rests with both Ames
Construction and Storey County due to the facts that (a) Foreman James Jarrett had been
informed of the likelihood of such damage in the event of heavy rains on top of 18” of snow
ahead of time, and {b) the weather forecast for heavy rains, and therefore (c) work in the area
mentioned should have been delayed until weather conditions would not have caused the
subsequent water damages to the mine tunnel.

1|Pagé



Below is the list of expenses incurred from the damages and loss of business due to the “short-
sightedness” of Ames Construction and Storey County sewer project

Ponderosa Mine Repair Expenses:

Labor $1000.00
Employees 330.00
Lumber 1316.32
Hardware 161.77
Lost Income* 3005.00
Total $5813.09

*Based on revenue for same period 2017-53005.00.

The information in this letter has been submitted for the purpose of obtaining reimbursement
from Ames Construction and/or Storey County to the Ponderosa Mine Tours business for
damages incurred. If you desire more information, receipts, etc., please do not hesitate to
contact Greg Hess Sr. at 847-0685.

Thank you for your consideration/action in this matter.

Respectfully,

reg Hess, Sr. Owner, Ponderosa Mine Tours

Angelo Petrini, Owner, Ponderosa Mine Tours

CC: Pat Whitten, County Manager
Mike Nevin, Project Manager, Storey County
Jason Wierzbicki, Storey County Public Works
James Jarrett, Foreman, Ames Construction

2|Page



